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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“‘Directors”) of Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”, “Consun”, “Consun
Pharmaceutical” or “Consun Pharmaceutical Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

l. Industrial and Business Review

In 2021, we entered the post-pandemic era, and
affected by the pandemic at home and aboard and
domestic and international political and economic
factors, national economic growth slowed down and
pressure on business operations was intensified, while
the domestic pharmaceutical market environment in
2021 has been even more volatile. As medical reform
policies continued to deepen, the control pressure
on total expenditure for medical insurance has been
increasing, the coverage of national centralized
pharmaceutical procurement continued to expand, and
cross-province alliances became normalized with the
quantity procurement, coupled with the promotion of
DRG (Diagnosis Related Groups, which is commonly
known as the payment by disease types) and rising raw
material prices, the pharmaceutical industry continued
to be affected by a variety of factors. Even so, the
staff of Consun Pharmaceutical were still hardworking
and kept forging ahead, and has achieved a gratifying
performance in 2021. The Group’'s sales revenue
exceeded RMB2 billion for the first time. Operating
profit continued to present a positive growth.

In 2021, the Group recorded sales revenue of
approximately RMB2,045 million, representing an
increase of approximately 16.6% over last year, and its
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was approximately RMB590 million, representing an
increase of approximately 18.3% over last year.
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In terms of business segments, sales revenue of

Consun Pharmaceutical Segment amounted to

approximately RMB1,733 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 15.6%,
among which:

1)

The sales revenue of kidney medicines
amounted to approximately RMB1,365
in 2021,
year-on-year increase of approximately
17.1%. The Uremic Clearance Granules (fk
S/58AL), which is the Group’s flagship

million representing a

product, has been improving steadily
and achieved sales revenue of RMB1,313
million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 16.7%. According to MENET,
in the market of Chinese medicines of
creatinine reduction (including UCG,
Shenkang injection, Shenshuaining and
Haikunshenxi), the market share of the
Uremic Clearance Granules reached over
33% in 2021 and ranked the first, with
both sales and market share reaching
record highs. In the Clinical Application
Guidelines for Chinese Medicines in
the Treatment of Specialty Conditions
KRR ECERBERERKERER))
which was officially published in 2021,
Uremic Clearance Granules were the
only “strongly recommended” medicine
included in the Guidelines, further
strengthening the Company’s academic
foundation for clinical promotion. The
Kidney Repair and Edema Alleviation
Granules (m&{b)Z%EH) also achieved
satisfactory results with sales revenue
of RMB52 million,
year-on-year increase of 33.8%.

representing a
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Sales revenue of medical contrast medium
was approximately RMB141 million in
2021, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 3.8%. By adopting
measures such as flexibly responding to
centralized procurement, accelerating
consistency evaluation, and using core
expert's influence and brand building
to strengthen the base of core large
customers, the main market of contrast
medium product was stabilized and
business growth turned positive. Among
our medical products, the iodine product
“Kanglexian (FE%£%8)" was launched in
many areas with nearly 150 new hospitals
introducing it, which contributed a lot to
the results of the Company.

Sales revenue of gynaecology and
paediatrics drugs has exceeded RMB200
million (approximately RMB206 million) in
2021, representing a year-on-year increase
of over 13.9%. With good taste, high safety
and catalog access, Yuanlikang (&7
FZ) (Iron-dextrin Oral Solution) is listed in
category B of the national reimbursement
drug list (2020 version), National List of
Essential Medicines (2018 version) and
IDA Clinical Pathway Recommended Drug
(county level). Through a combination
of marketing strategies such as using
brand marketing in cities to build the
brand power of the product, entering the
pediatric drug guidelines, and capturing
the preventive iron supplement patients in
gynaecology and obstetrics, the Company
has broken the “double low” bottleneck
of single production and low coverage,
and realized the speedy advancement
in pediatrics and gynaecology and
obstetrics.
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The Yulin Pharmaceutical Segment recorded
sales revenue of approximately RMB312 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of over
22.8% and profit of RMB17 million before fair
value adjustment arising from acquisition of Yulin
Pharmaceutical Segment, achieving the first
profit turnaround after restructuring. The OTC
marketing team of Yulin Pharmaceutical adhered
to the basic strategy of “speaking for the brand,
pipeline empowerment and terminal sales” and
deepened the management standard of “refining
the terminal, doing pure sales, training the team
In the
second half of 2021, we launched a series of

and all staff working at the frontline”.

actions such as chain blasting, underwriting,
roadshows and product endorsement to activate
products, teams and customers, and we have
seen initial results in brand building, terminal
sales and pipeline governance, and our pipeline
order and customer satisfaction have been
significantly improved.

The new retail and foreign trade segment
continued to make efforts, and multi-channel
marketing control realized its goals. There
was breakthrough progress in the Group’s
new retail self-operated platform, achieving
a multi-model parallel development and a
two-pronged development of pharmaceuticals
plus health products. In terms of foreign trade,
the Group completed the registration of Zheng
Gu Shui (IEE®7K) and Grosvenor Momordica
and Chrysanthemum Granules (%% R
#I) in Indonesia, and as of the end of December
2021, the Group’s products have been sold to
28 countries, and the products of Consun and
Yulin Pharmaceutical series have entered into the
international market.
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4, Breakthrough progress was also made in the

admission of drug catalogues:

1)

Jigucao Capsules (#&ERB%) and Pain-
relieving Antidiarrheal Capsules (%% Lt
SEEEEE) were included in the National
Medical Insurance Drug Catalogue (E
R EIR B &%) after negotiation, and six
products including the Kidney Repair
and Edema Alleviation Granules and
Zheng Gu Shui have been released from
medical insurance restrictions. As of
December 2021, a total of 66 products
have been included in the Drug Catalogue
for National Basic Medical Insurance,
Work-Related Injury Insurance and
Maternity Insurance (2021) (ElREAREE
R - THRBRAMEESRREER B (2021
))), demonstrating the clinical value of
the products of Consun Pharmaceutical
series.

Five star products, including Zheng Gu Shui,
Yunxiang Windeliminating and Pain-relieving
Tincture (E&E4RE LEFEAT), Jigucao Capsules,
Shiduging Capsule (Z2&F5B%E) and
Shiduging Tablets (Z&F/&F), were selected
in the 2021 Recommended List of Guangxi
Famous and Excellent Industrial Products
KEAREIFEERMBEEBE)) published by
the Department of Industry and Information
Technology of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region, and the “Preparation Method of Zheng
Gu Shui” was selected as the sixth batch
of representative items of intangible cultural
heritage in Yulin City, fully demonstrating the
hard-core strength of products of Consun and
Yulin Pharmaceutical series.
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Il. Progress of R&D and innovation

Based on the R&D strategy of “independent and joint R&D
at the same time”, the Group has made new progress in
independent R&D and has opened up a new situation in
cooperative R&D as follows:

1. Independent R&D

As for independent R&D, consistency evaluation
of iopamidol has successfully passed production
verification; the interim trial of iodixanol and
perfluoropropane lipid microspheres (ZFEAZF),
which is the first project under research using
ultrasound microbubble, were completed, and
the R&D progress has exceeded expectations;
the taste correction project of the Kidney Repair
and Edema Alleviation Granules has completed
process validation and stability study and has
been submitted to the Guangdong Provincial
Medical Products Administration for filing and
the filing result of “filed” has been announced
by the National Medical Products Administration;
the interim trial of lanthanum carbonate active
pharmaceutical ingredients was completed; the
phase Il clinical study of Astragali Powder Pellet
(HERMA) was completed with over 60% of
cases enrolled. We are striving to complete the
filing and registration of the consistency evaluation
of Gadopentetic Acid Dimeglumine Salt Injection
(L BL B fZ £ 51/), iopamidol injection (HiHES
SESTR) and iodixanol injection (F5eEEESTR)
within 2022, and achieve 100% case enrollment
in the Phase Il clinical study of Astragali Powder
Pellet.
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2. Cooperation in R&D

1)

The Group has joined hands with WuXi
AppTec, Brilliant Pharmaceutical and
other industry leaders in the R&D of
innovative kidney drugs and contrast
medium products as well as the guarantee
of active pharmaceutical ingredients, and
has launched a new mode of strategic
cooperation, which were also important
milestones in the R&D of innovative drugs
and a new starting point for the Group’s
sustainable development in the future. The
Group has signed a 10-year term strategic
cooperation agreement with WuXi AppTec,
during which WuXi AppTec will give priority
to us in the development of the world’s
leading innovative small molecule chemical
drugs for nephropathy in China, and we
have already commenced cooperation
on three projects. As the R&D pipeline of
contrast medium of Brilliant Pharmaceutical
covers most of iodine contrast medium,
gadolinium contrast medium preparation
and active pharmaceutical ingredients, and
it has strong strength and fast progress in
R&D, it is consistent with the development
of our business segment of contrast
medium. At present, the joint project of
iopromide injection has completed the
interim trial.
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2) By joining hands with Macau University 2) BB PR KBS ST E

of Science and Technology, we have
completed all the work of the Guangdong
Provincial Science and Technology Project
themed “Research on the Active Ingredients
and Mechanism of Kidney Repair and
Edema Alleviation Granules on Preventing
Proteinuria in Diabetic Kidney Diseases” in
the Joint Innovation Area of Guangdong,
Hong Kong and Macau and are ready to
complete the project acceptance. This
project received unanimous praise from
the Science and Technology Development
Fund of Macao Government.

We have achieved the phrasal goals for
the collaboration with Shenzhen Institute
of Advanced Technology of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences. The “drug-eluting
micro-bubble” research has completed the
contracted work and realized the phrasal
development goals ahead of schedule.
It has been proven in animal studies that
the drug can be targeted and released at
the tumor site with good biocompatibility,
which can effectively improve the survival
rate of animals.
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1. Strategic deployment measures

s

Construction of production bases

Accelerating the construction of Horgos
production base in Xinjiang and continuously
improving the Group’s production capacity
layout.

In response to the national strategy of the
development of Xinjiang and the development
of Horgos into the major port on the Eurasia
Continental Bridge Corridor under the “Belt and
Road” initiative and to cope with the current
challenges in the external environment such as
the complicated and ever-changing policies of the
domestic pharmaceutical market and rising costs,
Consun Pharmaceutical (Inner Mongolia) Co.,
Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has established a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Consun Pharmaceutical (Horgos) Co., Ltd., in
Horgos, Xinjiang based on the preliminary on-
site inspection, investigation and research study
on the Horgos Economic Development Zone in
Xinjiang.

Through the establishment of a company and the
construction of a production base in Northwest
China, the Group can enhance, improve and
optimize the deployment of its industrial bases,
expand the product coverage in various provinces
in Northwest China and foster a balanced layout
of production bases covering the entire country by
shortening the transportation radius (Guangzhou
base, Inner Mongolia base, Yulin base and
Horgos base). Meanwhile, the Group can increase
the local purchases by fully leveraging the
advantages of the diverse and abundant supply
of Chinese medicines in Northwest China. In
addition, the vigorous efforts of China and Horgos
in developing the industries of commerce, trade
and logistics provide strong support for solving
transportation and logistics efficiency problems in
the border regions.
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In addition to the above factors, according
to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance, the
State Administration of Taxation, the National
Development and Reform Commission and the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
on Enterprise Income Tax Incentives Directory
for Encouraged Industries in Poverty Areas of
Xinjiang (Cai Shui [2021] No. 42) (BB -« #
BB BERFEZLZ  ITENEESIERDENR
EBREMEEHSBBEREXCEMEHEERR &
REAN) (BAFi[2021]425R)) and the Notice of the
Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
of Taxation on Income Tax Incentives Policy for
Newly-established Enterprises in Poverty Areas
of Xinjiang and Kashi and Horgos as Two Special
Economic Development Zones (Cai Shui [2021]
No. 27) (KBAERER - i 7542 5 BE 7 3 98 IR B 1th [ Ko
B ERRITMESASERZERFTPECEMS
MEEBRAEA) (MH[2021]275%)),
Pharmaceutical (Horgos) Co., Ltd. is entitled to
various supports, including the “five reductions

Consun

and five exemptions” tax incentives for ten years,
which will be beneficial to the development
of Consun Pharmaceutical (Horgos) Co., Ltd.
over the next five to ten years and will generate
significant benefit on its return of profits.

The planning and construction of the production
base in Horgos started in 2021. Despite the
unfavorable conditions such as epidemic control
and construction difficulties in winter, nearly
80% of the construction work has now been
completed, and trial operation and production
are expected to start in the first half of 2022.
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Cooperation with Conba

On 7 January 2022, the Company published
an announcement, announcing the signing of a
strategic cooperation framework agreement with
Conba (600572.SH), an A-share listed company
and also one of the top 50 companies in the
domestic Chinese medicine industry, under which
the two parties will develop a strong alliance and
an all-round strategic cooperation through equity
cooperation and business cooperation (marketing
cooperation, R&D cooperation, asset and business
integration), etc.

In terms of equity cooperation, Conba intends
to invest in Consun Pharmaceutical through
appropriate means when opportunities arise
and hold its equity for a long term; in terms of
marketing cooperation, Conba intends to entrust
the sales team of Consun Pharmaceutical with
the sales rights of the hospital market in China
for the products of the relevant specialty areas
owned by companies under Conba; in terms of
digital marketing, Conba will assist and support
Consun Pharmaceutical in establishing a digital
platform for the marketing of pharmaceutical and
health products and its business development.
Consun Pharmaceutical is willing to cooperate
with Conba in all aspects of branding and
marketing of its OTC products. In terms of R&D
cooperation, both parties will transfer to each
other the existing projects and interests in core
areas of strength and those under research
when opportunities arise, and both parties will
jointly promote the introduction of innovative
drug pipelines in the urological system (mainly
nephrology) to Consun Pharmaceutical. In
terms of asset and business cooperation, the
integration of assets and businesses will be
carried out on the basis of the principle that
it will help to significantly enhance the core
strengths and competitiveness of the other

party.

The cooperation is based on the common
industry foundation and mission of Conba and
Consun Pharmaceutical, and will have a positive
impact on the business of both parties.

Chairman’s Statement
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IV. Brand

Building and Shareholder Returns

On the 2021 China Brand Value Evaluation
List, the brand value of Consun Pharmaceutical
reached RMB4,984 million and the brand value
of Yulin Pharmaceutical reached RMB1,360
million. Consun Pharmaceutical Group ranked
32nd on the “China’s TOP 100 Chinese
Medicine Enterprises List (B &A%
TOP100#E1THE)";
and Shiduging Capsule were listed among
“China’s Pharmaceutical Brands” for many

Uremic Clearance Granules

years consecutively. With its strong overall
corporate strength and brand influence, Consun
Pharmaceutical won the “Best Brand Value
Award” of the Best Listed Companies in Greater
China by Gelonghui, and Uremic Clearance
Granules and Shiduging Capsule were on the list
of Outstanding Chinese National Medicine Brand
Enterprises in 2020. Consun Pharmaceutical
and Yulin Pharmaceutical have been granted
with numerous awards and their brand influence
continues to increase.

The Company has been examining the situation
and making timely use of internal funds to
repurchase shares in the normal course of
business, and repurchased a total of 10,115,000
shares in 2021, which were subsequently
cancelled on 26 January 2022, representing
approximately 1.2% of the total share capital
before the repurchase.

In order to recognize the full support of all
shareholders, the Board of the Company also
proposed to distribute a final dividend of HKDO.2
per share for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Coupled with the interim dividend of HKDO.1 per
share, the total dividend for the year was HKDO.3
per share, representing approximately 33.3% of
the earnings for the year.
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Outlook

Looking ahead to 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic is
expected to end and the global economic recovery
is imminent. Although the pharmaceutical market is
facing many uncertainties, the pharmaceutical industry,
as a sunrise industry that never declines, is full of
vitality. As we bid farewell to the fruitful Year of the Ox
and enter into the vibrant Year of the Tiger, Consun
Pharmaceutical will continue to expand and advance
with the “strong bearing of an ox, and the piercing
gaze of a tiger”, not only working silently like the ox
and moving forward with strength, but also examining
the situation with a far-sighted and sharp gaze like the
tiger, seizing the opportunity to create value.

1. The Group's original intention of “building
flagship products for kidney disease” remains
unchanged and its prospects are unlimited.
According to the statistics, the global prevalence
of CKD (chronic kidney disease) has reached
14.3%, with approximately 850 million patients
all over the world, and it is expected that CKD
will become the fifth worldwide leading cause of
death by 2040. In China, the prevalence of CKD
among people aged 18 or above is about 10.8%.
According to the latest census results in 2021,
it is estimated that there are currently about 150
million CKD patients in China and the Uremic
Clearance Granules, as an exclusive product with
proven efficacy in the treatment of CKD through
evidence-based research, have a wide market
prospect and huge potential. Although the overall
growth rate of Chinese medicines continued to
slow down in 2021 due to the epidemic, Consun
Pharmaceutical Group achieved significant
growth in its Uremic Clearance Granules and the
Kidney Repair and Edema Alleviation Granules
against adversity compared with similar products,
demonstrating the good growth and anti-risk
capability of the Group’s nephrology products.
In 2022, the State will gradually restore the
scope of the reimbursement for drug included
in the medical insurance catalogue to the scope
of product instruction, and the Group's major
competing products in the nephrology product
line will be subject to restrictions on medical
insurance reimbursement to varying degrees. As
the Group’s Uremic Clearance Granules belongs
to a national essential medicine and Class A
drug under medical insurance policy with no
prescription restrictions while the Kidney Repair
and Edema Alleviation Granules belongs to Class
B drug under medical insurance policy without
prescription restrictions, the Group can seize
the favorable opportunity to increase product
differentiation and achieve further rapid growth.
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Centralized pharmaceutical procurement
has become a major trend, and Consun
Pharmaceutical has obvious advantages in its
main products. Six batches and seven rounds
of national centralized procurement have been
launched. The future centralized procurement
will be expanded towards biological drugs and
Chinese medicines. At present, the centralized
procurement of Chinese medicines is mainly
conducted by cross-province alliances.
The Uremic Clearance Granules and similar
competitive products are currently included
in the centralized procurement catalogues of
individual cross-province alliances. However,
the Uremic Clearance Granules are exclusive
products and have been proven to be effective in
delaying the progression of CKD in high quality
RCT studies. In 2020, it became the only Chinese
medicine that was “strongly recommended” in
the Clinical Application Guidelines for Chinese
Medicines in the Treatment of Stage 3-5 Chronic
Kidney Diseases (Non-dialysis) (71 %8512 14
E s 3-5 BIGEEMNT)ERKEATER) for delaying
the progression of CKD; while the competitive
products in this category with unclear mechanism
of action and no quality evidence-based research
conducted can only reduce creatinine for a short
period of time; and some competitive products
containing cordyceps or single-ingredient with no
syndrome differentiation conducted by Chinese
medicine practitioner and evidence-based
research conducted are only used as adjunctive
medicines to improve patients’ individual
symptoms and are only “weakly recommended”
some of the
competitive products are not included in the

in the guidelines. Besides,
guidelines due to insufficient clinical evidences.
Therefore, compared with its competitive
products, the Uremic Clearance Granules has
better clinical evidence of its effectiveness and is
believed to be in a better position to control the
price reduction within an affordable range in the
cross-province alliance centralized procurement
to ensure sustainable growth of the Uremic
Clearance Granules.
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Benefiting from the new national primary care
and chronic disease policy, we will be able to
achieve greater business volume growth. The
State promotes the “hierarchical diagnosis and
treatment system”, which proposes primary
initial diagnosis, and introduces policies such as
the 986 policy on essential medicines and the
increase in the proportion of medical insurance
reimbursement for grass-root medical institutions,
encouraging patients to visit grass-root medical
institutions and patients with chronic diseases
to shift from secondary and tertiary hospitals
to grass-root medical institutions for chronic
disease management and consultation, which
will greatly enhance the potentials of these
institutions. The Group has been promoting its
products in grass-root medical institutions for
many years and can leverage on the favourable
policies of the State for grass-root medical
institutions and the characteristics of the Uremic
Clearance Granules as a national essential
medicine to achieve rapid growth of the product
in these medical institutions. In 2021, the National
Health Commission published the “Notice on the
Long-term Prescription Management Regulations
(Trial)” KEAREERBETERRE (F17) R
F1)), as CKD is a chronic disease, the Uremic
Clearance Granules and the Kidney Repair and
Edema Alleviation Granules can also effectively
take advantage of the national policy on
long-term prescriptions for chronic diseases to
promote the use of the products in full doses and
full course of treatment to gain new incremental
volume.
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4. In the future, the Group will continue to
improve and optimize the management and
incentive mechanisms, continue to strengthen
and deepen the development in nephrology,
expand imaging, cultivate the product line of
gynaecology and paediatrics drugs and achieve
breakthrough in OTC; strengthen the research
and development capability of new product and
academic promotion capability of the Consun
Pharmaceutical Segment, build the brand
marketing value and terminal marketing capability
of the Yulin Pharmaceutical Segment; seize
market opportunities and policy dividend, and
expand the pattern of responding to competition
and breakthrough development to the entire
industrial chain. Guided by the philosophy of
‘one will go fast if travelling alone, but go far
when travelling with others”, we will also be able
to work with our outstanding peers to empower
each other in the areas of raw material supply,
production synergy, R&D collaboration, digital
marketing and patient services.

What we do today depends on how we judge the future,
and how the future will be depends on how we design it
today. The year 2022 marks the 25th anniversary of the
founding of Consun Pharmaceutical. Time flies like an
arrow. Over the past 25 years, Consun Pharmaceutical
has grown from scratch, from small to large, from weak
to strong and from single-business to diversified, and
has achieved remarkable results. The potential energy
accumulated over past 24 years of development will
be transformed into momentum for us to reach new
heights. We are ready to create and witness new glories
together with our customers, investors and employees.
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Financial Highlights
MREE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020 Change
20214 20204 =t
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 (%)
Results E5 AR¥T T AREET T (%)
Revenue WA 2,044,660 1,752,830 16.6%
Profit before taxation A8 A g A 695,861 583,736 19.2%
Profit for the year attributable ZAYNGIL iy
to equity shareholders of the AL F % A
Company 590,172 498,788 18.3%
Earnings per share Bhix&
(expressed in RMB Yuan) (AARETTIIR)
- Basic —BER 0.74 0.61 21.3%
— Diluted — ¥ 0.73 0.61 19.7%
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2021 2020 Change
20215 20204 -2 d
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 (%)
Financial Position B AR R AR¥T R AR®ETTT (%)
Total assets mEE 4,362,738 3,950,253 10.4%
Total equity attributable to PAN/NET 5
equity shareholders of JEIL R AR R
the Company 2,617,705 2,220,367 17.9%
Net assets per share BRFEE
(expressed in RMB Yuan (ABRARETIITR)
per share) (Note) (H1aE) 3.18 2.71 17.3%
Net debt (interest bearing FEEGrRaERE S
liabilities less cash and cash LIREFEY) st & Net cash Net cash NA
equivalents) to equity ratio FRE FIR TiE A

Note: Net assets per share is calculated based on the total equity

attributable to equity shareholders of the Company divided by

the number of ordinary shares.

Wret : BROFEEULR A mRIFIE B BB
ABBEREEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year of 2021, the Group’s revenue was
RMB2,044,660,000 representing an increase of approximately
16.6% as compared with RMB1,752,830,000 for 2020.
Categorized by product lines, sales of kidney medicines
recorded an increase of approximately 17.1% as compared
with last year, among which, Uremic Clearance Granules
(“UCG”) remained the Group’s key product, and became
the No. 1 brand for Chinese medicines for kidney diseases;
sales of medical contrast medium recorded an increase of
approximately 3.8% as compared with last year, maintained
a leading position in the domestic medical contrast medium
market for magnetic resonance imaging; sales of orthopaedics
medicines recorded a decrease of approximately 17.7%;
sales of dermatologic medicines recorded an increase of
approximately 108.5%; sales of hepatobiliary medicines
recorded an increase of approximately 86.8%; sales of the
gynaecology and paediatrics drugs recorded an increase of
approximately 13.9%. The increase in overall sales revenue
was mainly due to the Group’s constant commitment to
expanding product markets and developing sales network
across China.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year of 2021, the Group's gross profit was
RMB1,527,336,000, representing an increase of approximately
15.6% as compared with RMB1,321,671,000 for 2020. The
increase in gross profit was mainly attributable to the increase
in sales. For the year of 2021, the Group’s average gross profit
margin was approximately 74.7%, representing a decrease
of 0.7% as compared with the 75.4% for last year, which was
mainly attributable to an increase in costs as a result of the
increase in the prices of certain raw materials during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other Income

For the year of 2021, the Group’'s other incomes were
RMB63,384,000, which mainly included government grants,
interest income and net exchange gain. Compared with
RMB58,826,000 for 2020, the increase of approximately 7.7%
was mainly due to the increase in interest incomes.

Distribution Costs

For the year of 2021, the Group’s distribution costs were
RMB620,041,000, representing an increase of approximately
14.2% as compared with RMB542,930,000 for 2020. The
increase in distribution costs was mainly due to increased
marketing and academic promotion campaigns to expand the
marketing and distribution networks.

Administrative Expenses

For the year of 2021, the Group’'s administrative expenses
were RMB279,956,000, representing an increase of
approximately 37.9% as compared with RMB203,067,000 for
2020. The increase in administrative expenses was attributable
to the increase in research and development expenses and
the provision for impairment of inventories during the year.

Reversals/(Recognition) of Impairment Loss on Trade and
Other Receivables

For the year of 2021, the Group’s reversal of impairment
loss on trade and other receivables was RMB18,043,000,
as compared with a recognition of impairment loss of
RMB29,363,000 for 2020, which was mainly due to the
decrease in the gross carrying amounts of trade receivables
past due over 1 year.

Finance Costs

For the year of 2021, finance costs were RMB12,905,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 39.7% as compared
with RMB21,401,000 for 2020, which was mainly attributable to
the decrease in interest rate of borrowings during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

Income Tax

For the year of 2021, the Group's income tax expenses were
RMB108,744,000, representing an increase of approximately
6.6% as compared with RMB101,993,000 for 2020, which
was mainly due to the increase in profit before taxation, tax
concessions and the increase in dividend withholding tax
during the year. The effective tax rate (income tax expenses
divided by profit before taxation) decreased by approximately
1.9% from 17.5% for 2020 to 15.6% for 2021. The decrease
was mainly due to the preferential income tax relief and
exemption policies enjoyed by Consun Pharmaceutical
(Horgos) Co., Ltd. in 2021.

Annual Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company and Earnings Per Share

For the year of 2021, the Group’s annual profit was
RMB590,172,000, representing an increase of approximately
18.3% as compared with RMB498,788,000 for 2020. The basic
earnings per share increased by approximately 21.3% from
RMBO0.61 for 2020 to RMBO0.74 for 2021. The diluted earnings
per share increased by approximately 19.7% from RMBO0.61
for 2020 to RMBO0.73 for 2021.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Trade Debtors and Bills Receivable

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of trade debtors
and bills receivable was RMB351,226,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 21.7% as compared with the
balance of RMB448,540,000 as at 31 December 2020. Trade
receivables turnover days for 2021 were 71.4 days, decreased
by 54.8 days from 126.2 days for 2020, which was mainly due
to enhanced management in trade debtors.

Inventories

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of inventories was
RMB243,035,000, representing an increase of approximately
6.9% as compared with the balance of RMB227,374,000 as
at 31 December 2020. Inventory turnover days for 2021 were
165.9 days, decreased by 19.5 days from 185.4 days for
2020, which was mainly due to the enhanced management in
inventories during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of trade payables was
RMB66,638,000, representing an increase of approximately
30.9% as compared with the balance of RMB50,889,000 as
at 31 December 2020. Trade payables turnover days for 2021
were 41.5 days, decreased by 3.5 days from 45.0 days for
2020, which was mainly due to the acceleration in processing
trade payables.

Cash Flows

For the year of 2021, the Group’s net cash generated from
operating activities was RMB725,537,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 16.3% as compared with
RMB867,058,000 for 2020, which was mainly attributable to
the increase in wages and salaries expenses, payment for
operational procurement and tax expenses during the year.
For the year of 2021, the Group’s net cash used in investing
activities was RMB298,305,000, representing an increase of
approximately 1,060.6% as compared with RMB25,703,000
for 2020, which was mainly due to the increase in wealth
management products of certificates of large-sum deposit
issued by the bank and expenditure for acquisition of plant
and equipment. For the year of 2021, the Group’s net cash
used in financing activities was RMB166,659,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 40.4% as compared with the net
cash used in financing activities of RMB279,804,000 for 2020,
which was mainly due to the decrease in share buy-back
during the year.

Cash and Bank Balances and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’'s cash and bank
balances were RMB2,196,323,000, representing an increase of
approximately 13.2% as compared with RMB1,940,273,000 as
at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
total loans and borrowings amounted to RMB599,302,000,
representing an increase of approximately 9.1% as compared
with RMB549,414,000 as at 31 December 2020, which was
mainly due to additional bank loans during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained
a healthy liquidity position throughout the year of 2021. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet its funding requirements from
time to time. Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are
mainly denominated in RMB and HKD.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group, representing the total interest
bearing borrowings divided by total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2021
was 22.9% (31 December 2020: 24.7%). The decrease in
gearing ratio was mainly due to the increase in total equity
attributable to equity shareholders as a result of the increase
in current assets during the year.

EXCHANGE RATE RISKS

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB
and HKD. The majority of assets and liabilities are also
denominated in RMB and HKD, and there are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies. The
Group faces exchange rate risk due to fluctuation of exchange
rates. During the year, the Group did not commit to any
financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency
risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In 2021, the Company issued 4,593,118 ordinary shares
pursuant to employees’ exercise of share options granted
under the Share Option Scheme (adopted on 2 December
2013) (2020: Nil).

In 2021, the Company repurchased 10,115,000 shares (2020:
45,907,000 shares) of its own ordinary shares through the
Stock Exchange at a total consideration of approximately
HKD36,836,000 (approximately RMB30,151,000) and all of
these repurchased shares were cancelled on 26 January
2022.

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant changes
in the Company’s capital structure. The Company’s capital
comprises ordinary shares and other reserves.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately RMB482,495,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB473,870,000).

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021,
employees (31 December 2020: 2,583 employees).

the Group hired a total of 2,768
The
total staff costs (including the directors’ remuneration) for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB365,996,000
(2020: RMB283,943,000). The salaries of the employees were
determined with reference to individual performance, work
experience, qualification and current industry practices.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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On top of basic salaries, bonus is payable by reference to
the Group's performance as well as individual's performance.
Other staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory
Provident Fund in Hong Kong and various retirement benefits
schemes and other relevant insurance, including pension
funds, medical insurance and unemployment insurance for
employees who are employed by our Group pursuant to
the PRC rules and regulations and the prevailing regulatory
requirements of the PRC. Save as disclosed above, the Group
has not set up or participated in any other pension scheme(s).
The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept
at a competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group's salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually.
The Group also operates a share option scheme adopted by
the Group on 2 December 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
and a share award scheme adopted on 21 July 2014 (the
“Share Award Scheme”), where options to subscribe for
shares and share awards may be granted to the Directors and
employees of the Group.

The Group made considerable efforts in continuing education
and training programs for its staff, to continuously enhance
their knowledge, skills and team spirit. The Group regularly
provided internal and external training courses for relevant
staff according to their needs.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for investments in its subsidiaries, during the year
ended 31 December 2021,
significant investment in equity interest in any other company.

the Group did not hold any

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS
Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in this report, as at

the date of this report, the Group did not have other future
plans for material investments and capital assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies during
2021.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, four of the Group’s patents with
a carrying amount of approximately RMB2,500,000 were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (as at 31
December 2020: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2020: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Management continues to manage the Group's key risk
exposures, including operational risks (e.g. ensuring high
quality of medicine products, safety in the production process
and efficiency in the distribution processes), financial risks
(e.g. through budget control and cash flow management) and
compliance risks (ensuring the relevant rules and regulations
are complied with) on a daily basis. Management also pays
close attention to the recent developments of national policies
in respect of the pharmaceutical industry, which is a key
uncertainty facing the Group, and formulates and adjusts the
relevant policies of the Group accordingly on a timely basis.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to achieving environmental
sustainability and incorporating it in the Group’s daily
operations. Other than complying with all relevant
environmental rules and regulations, management always
encourage water, energy and materials saving and recycling
practice which are considered in the performance appraisal
process.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year of 2021, there was no incidence of significant

non-compliance of laws and regulations that is relevant to the

Group's operations.

CHANGES IN INDUSTRIAL POLICIES AND THEIR
EFFECT

1.

Introduction and Implementation of Supporting
Documents for New Drug Administration Law

After the newly revised Drug Administration Law
took effect on 1 December 2019, Monitoring and
Administration Measures on Drug Manufacturing and
Administration Measures on Drug Registration were
promulgated successively in 2020, and Administration
Measures for Post-Approval Changes of Drug (Trial) and
the corresponding technical guidelines for the research
on changes of marketed pharmaceutical products were
promulgated in 2021, which have further specified the
subject responsibility of marketing authorization holders
(MAH) and improved related system, revised various
standards of research and development technology and
registration management of chemical drugs, biological
drugs, Chinese medicines and raw, auxiliary and
packaging materials for chemical drugs and continued
to reform and enhance the evaluation and approval
system and manufacturing management, so as to
clarify the classification and registration measures at
source and strengthen the manufacturing regulation.
The system of MAH will be beneficial to the Group’s
resource consolidation and conducive to mitigating
research and development risks and shortening the
time of launching new products. The implementation
of subject responsibility of MAH will lead to more
standardized requirements regarding corporate
research and development and manufacturing stages.
On the one hand, the Group implemented subject
responsibility of MAH and strictly complied with relevant
requirements, on the other hand, the Group fully
leveraged the guidelines of national policies for internal
resource consolidation of the Group so as to improve

operating efficiency and reduce operating costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Adjustments on the National Medical Insurance Drug
Catalogue

On 3 December 2021, the 2021 Drug Catalogue
for National Basic Medical Insurance, Trade and
Commerce Insurance and Maternity Insurance
(hereinafter referred to as the “National Medical
Insurance Drug Catalogue”) was issued, and officially
took effect nationwide since 1 January 2022. The
National Medical Insurance Drug Catalogue included
2,860 kinds of drugs in total, comprising 1,486 kinds
of Western medicines and 1,374 kinds of Chinese
medicines. The Group has a total of 66 drug products
included in the 2021 National Medical Insurance
Drug Catalogue, of which, two proprietary Chinese
medicines, namely Jigucao Capsule and Pain-relieving
Anti-diarrheal Soft Capsule, are national negotiated
drugs and neither of them is subject to restrictions on
hospital use and reimbursement. In 2021, the National
Healthcare Security Administration (NHSA) issued the
Guiding Opinions on Establishing and Improving the
‘Dual-Channel” Management Mechanism for Negotiated
Medicines under the National Medical Insurance (K@
RRYTEBERERKA En ERE EERIINES
Z 7)) and the Notice on Continuing to Implement
Negotiated Medicines in Response to the Normalized
National Medical Insurance Negotiations ({85 i# & &l
RERAABERCFEMUTAAERZ TENRI)),
under which designated retail pharmacies are included
in the secured supply of negotiated medicines on top
of those supplied by designated medical institutions.
Patients will be able to purchase the relevant national
negotiated medicines in both hospitals and pharmacies
with their prescriptions and entitled to the coverage of
the unified medical insurance payment policy. On 31
December 2021, National Administration of Traditional
Chinese Medicine of NHSA issued Guiding Opinions
on Medical Insurance Support for the Heritage and
Innovative Development of Traditional Chinese Medicine
KEARBRFPEESASFERNIEEER)), which
requires the inclusion of eligible Chinese medicine
beverages, Chinese medicines and Chinese medicine
preparations in medical institutions into the National
Medical Insurance Drug Catalogue in accordance
with regulations. The preparation and use of Chinese
medicines that have been included in the catalogue
through national negotiations will be included in the
monitoring and evaluation. Leveraging the “dual-
channel” drug management mechanism to expand the
pipeline of drugs for insured patients to designated
retail pharmacies and better ensure the drug needs
of the insured patients. This will enable the Group to
broaden the pipeline of nationally negotiated drugs and
enhance accessibility.
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Centralized Quantity Procurement Policy of the
Government

As of December 2021, the Chinese government has
organized six centralized quantity pharmaceutical
procurements, of which the first five procurements were
relating to chemical drugs, and the sixth procurement
was relating to insulin particularly. In 2021, several
major documents have set out requirements for
quantity procurement, which included Opinions on
Promoting Normalized and Systemized Centralised
Quantity Pharmaceutical Procurement (B8R HESh%E
mEFTERBIETRLHELARENER)), Notice
on the Publication of the Major Tasks for Deepening
the Reform of the Medical and Health System in
2021 KRN ERCBEFERBNFE2021FEHT
{E(ETEH)EED)), the 14th Five-Year Plan for Universal
Healthcare Security (‘TR 2REFERERZ)) and
Implementation Opinions of the Steering Group of the
State Council on Deepening the Reform of the Medical
and Health System about Deepening the Reform of the
Medical and Health System through the Experience of
Sanming City, Fujian Province (E7&Fr 31l 58 LiferA g2
RN PERENEARRABEBRREZE AT KBRARLE
BEARHNENE®RER)). Although no product of
the Group has been included in centralised quantity
procurement, as the scope of centralized quantity
procurement is continuously expanding, the Group
may also be involved. Being aware of such a trend, the
Group has begun to deploy, and actively responded
to policy changes through a series of measures such
as continuously optimizing the business structure,
promoting transformation and upgrade, accelerating
the research and development of new products and
reasonably controlling and managing costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Heritage and Innovative Development of
Traditional Chinese Medicine Supported by China
with a Promising Future for Traditional Chinese
Medicine

For four consecutive years, the State Council’s Report
on the Work of the Government has mentioned the
support for the development of traditional Chinese
medicine. The State Council, the National Healthcare
Security Administration, National Healthcare Security
Administration, National Health Commission, National
Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine, National
Medical Products Administration and other departments
have issued documents to promote the heritage
and innovative development of traditional Chinese
medicine, and have issued and implemented a number
of measures to promote the development of traditional
Chinese medicine. As a kind of unique health resource
in China, traditional Chinese medicine plays an
important role in the economic and social development
of the country. With the further development of China’s
new industrialisation, informatisation, urbanisation and
modernisation of agriculture, the accelerated ageing
of the population and the flourishing development of
the healthcare service industry, there is an increasing
demand for traditional Chinese medicine services
from the public, and there is an urgent need to inherit,
develop and make good use of traditional Chinese
medicine, and to give full play to its role in deepening
the reform of the medical and health system for the
benefit of human health. It is expected that the public
acceptance of traditional Chinese medicine will be
considerably increased in the foreseeable future,
thereby promoting a good pattern for the whole society
to develop traditional Chinese medicine in concerted
efforts.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EENEEEEAEBBE

DIRECTORS

The Board is fully responsible for management and operations.
The following table sets forth information regarding our

Directors as at the reporting date:

Ex

EEREEAREEREEER - TRIHES
K& B HINEHR

Appointment Date Age

Name #E ZEHH T

Executive Director BITES

Mr. An Meng (Chairman) LI E (FE) 24 March 2021 50
20213 A24H

Ms. Li Qian (Founder, Vice Chairlady, R L (BIIEN ~ BIE/E - 24 December 2012 57

Chief Executive Officer) BEEHITE) 201212 A24H

Professor Zhu Quan REHIHR 24 December 2012 82
2012512 A24H

Mr. Xu Hanxing RHERE 24 March 2021 28
20213 A24H

Non-executive Director FHITES

Ms. Zhang Lihua SREEZE L4 9 July 2021 45
20217 A9H

Independent Non-executive Director BYIHTES

Mr. Su Yuanfu BRLAB 2 December 2013 76
201312 A2H

Mr. Feng Zhongshi B E LA 2 December 2013 63
2013F12 A2H

Ms. Chen Yujun PREABZ T 31 May 2019 42
20195 A31H
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. An Meng (% /&), aged 50, is our chairman and an
executive Director. He was appointed as our executive
Director with effect from 24 March 2021 and was appointed as
our chairman with effect from 9 July 2021. He is also a director
of Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical Company Limited*
(“Guangzhou Consun”’) (EBINFEEZEFRAA]). Mr. An is
primarily responsible for the overall management, operations,
investment and the charting and reviewing of corporate
directions and strategies of our Group.

Mr. An has obtained an Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) degree from the China Europe
International Business School and has over 20 years of
experience in the property insurance and venture capital
industries. From December 1992 to May 2007, Mr. An worked
with the PICC Insurance Group* (FFEARRKER),
served as the deputy director of market development division

and

of PICC Property and Casualty Co., Ltd. Guangzhou Branch*
(FEARVERBRNDERAGEMD2AAE]), as the general
manager of its Guangzhou Haizhu Branch* (EM &%z A 7))
and as the general manager of its Guangzhou Yuexiu Branch*
(BM#FHZAF]). From June 2007 to August 2014, Mr. An
worked with China Taiping General Insurance Group* (1 EIX
F{REEE), and served as the general manager of Taiping
General Insurance Co., Ltd. Guangdong Province Branch*
(KRFHERBRERARERAE D AF) and as the marketing
general manager, the deputy general manager, the secretary
of the disciplinary committee and the head of compliance of its
head office. In November 2014, Mr. An co-founded Shenzhen
Yaxi Pisi Technology Company Limited (“Yaxi Pisi”)* (Z3IT
& MATRIR AR AF) and acted as its CEO, responsible for
the development of an APP for children health management
named “Yimiaobao”™ (JZHEE). In October 2015, Yaxi Pisi
was sold as a whole to a company in the same industry and
realised investment gains. Since March 2016, Mr. An has been
serving as one of the partners of Huiyue Growth Investment
Fund (limited partnership)* (EHKEREEESTE(BREE))
since he joined Fibonacci VC* (FIITH TR E AIERLER A A).
Mr. An is the husband of Ms. Zhang Lihua, a non-executive
Director.
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VICE CHAIRLADY AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Li Qian (%2f&), aged 57,
executive Director and chief executive officer.

is our vice chairlady, an
She was
appointed as our executive Director with effect from 24
December 2012 and was appointed as our vice chairlady
with effect from 1 June 2018. She is also the chairlady of
Guangzhou Consun, and a director of Consun Pharmaceutical
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.* (“Inner Mongolia Consun”) (5
BEZE(NSH)AREEAF), Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group Co., Ltd.* (“Yulin Pharmaceutical”) (/& =Rl
BREME2AF]) and Consun Pharmaceutical (Horgos) Co., Ltd.*
(“Horgos Consun’) (FEEZ3 (ERRH) BRAR]). Ms. Li is
primarily responsible for formulating the Group’s strategies
and their executions, managing the Group’s overall operations,
and directing the daily operations in all aspects.

Ms. Li has over 30 years of experience in the business of
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Li
worked at Southern Medical University from October 1989
to April 1998. Ms. Li joined our Group in 1997 as one of the
founders when Consun Pharmaceutical was newly set-up, and
served as the associate director of general manager’s office,
human resources manager, deputy executive general manager
and deputy sales general manager of Guangzhou Consun.
Ms. Li has also served as a director and the general manager
(which was redesignated as chief executive officer in May
2008) of Guangzhou Consun since November 1999.
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Ms. Li obtained a master’s degree in business administration
at Asia International Open University (Macau) in November
2007. She has obtained 3 invention patents and published
research papers on the “Chinese Journal of Clinical Medicine”*
« BFR R B2 22455 )). Ms. Li was awarded as Excellent Private
Entrepreneur* (EFR&E® %K) by Tongliao City People’s
Government of the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in
July 2008, and a Model Worker* (4 &)#£#) by Inner Mongolia
People’s Government in April 2010. In December 2010, she
obtained the Third Prize for Technological Progress in the
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region* (A5 & BARRHRH#E &
=%1¥). In December 2011, she was recognised as Famous
Entrepreneur in Pharmaceutical Industry of Guangdong
Province* (EER& & 217X E X% K) by Guangdong Province
Pharmaceutical Industry Association* (JER A BT ). In
April 2014, she was elected as Chinese Pharmaceutical Brand
Woman* (B (B477%) mhE %), In February 2017, she
was accredited as Excellent Entrepreneur in Pharmaceutical
Industry of Guangdong Province* (EEREEBREEITEESCE
). In December 2017, she was awarded the Best Business
Leader Award* (S{ERZSEM) by “China Finance™ (FE%
B)). In September 2018, she was ranked fourth on the Forbes
Top 10 Female CEOs in China* ({8 & EBSREFH10
AZZZ % CEQ). In 2019, she was honoured as one of the China
Economic Top 10 Commercial Mulan* (& B4R+ A %A
) in the China Economic Influential Person of the Year* (&
BB 2 NEEAY). In 2020, she was honoured as both
Pharmaceutical Entrepreneur with Extraordinary Contributions
to Pandemic Fight* (BEEEEXNBEXLEHMEER) and
Outstanding Business Figure of the year in Pharmaceutical
Industry* (BEEZEFEHALLEAY) at the Demonstration
Show of Influential Figures (Brands) in Pharmaceutical Industry
in Guangdong Province* (EREEBEHEXZZENAY (M)
ZY|EKEBTEE)), and she was awarded 2021 Responsible
Business Leader* (2021FE H L% <E#) at the 11th China
Charity Festival and 2021 Corporate Social Responsibility
Carnival* (BF+—fah B RS BE2021 b ERSE TR FE).
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Ms. Li is a Local Registered Pharmacist of Guangdong
Province* (& & B JE M) recognised by Guangdong Food
and Drug Administration* (ERARmEmMEEEIERE). Since
May 2012, she has been appointed as a member of the First
Expert Committee for Kidney Disease and Blood Purify of
China Medical Women’s Association* (£ — @ LB e =
iR R MR F( L ERE
as the deputy councillor of Expert Committee for Professional

= ey

E ). In October 2014, she was elected
Committee of Chinese Medicine Product Development and
Incubation of China Association of Traditional Chinese
Medicine* (FEIFEpehEEnREHEIEEEEXZTER).
August 2016, she was elected as the deputy councillor of the

In

First Expert Committee for Chinese Medicine Development
and Research for Kidney Disease of China Association of
Traditional Chinese Medicine* (A B #5145 & 55 — fiE B s Fh 253%
EHIFEE¥EZEE) and a member of the Pharmacoeconomics
Expert Committee* (E¥EESZEHEEZLZE®). In July 2017, she
was elected as a member of the Standing Committee of the
Encephalopathy Medicine Research Professional Committee
of China Association of Traditional Chinese Medicine* (F/F[E
TEGSMRENARTEXEZEFEZ). In November 2017,
she was elected as the deputy director of the Physician
Working Committee of the Non-Public Medical and Health
Institutions*GEAY BEFEMBEM TIEZEERIFEEEZE) of
the Chinese Medical Doctor Association* (FF &1 ), and
in July 2021, she was appointed as a member of the Research
and Development Committee of the Integration of Traditional
Chinese and Western Medicine* (FRAERIANEHEEELE S
Z 8) of the China Medical Education Association* (7[5 58 &2k
AE1%E). Ms. Li is the mother of Mr. Xu Hanxing, an executive
Director.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Zhu Quan (%%), aged 82, is our executive
Director. He was appointed as our executive Director with
effect from 24 December 2012. Professor Zhu is also a director
and the chief scientist of Guangzhou Consun. Professor Zhu
joined our Group in August 2006 as the chief scientist of
Guangzhou Consun. Professor Zhu is primarily responsible for
the product research and development of our Group.
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Professor Zhu has over 50 years of experience in teaching
and research at medical school and in the business of
pharmaceutical industry. He served various positions, such
as a deputy director of medicine department, a director
of National Standardization Laboratory for Chinese Herbal
Pharmacology* (BIZR R &t 2 LEI2 EER =), a Ph.D. candidate
supervisor at Nanjing University of Chinese Medicine* (F
R %A E) between October 1981 and November 2005
and served as professor and Ph.D. candidate supervisor at
Macau University of Science and Technology* (RFIREHZA
&) during the period from 2003 to 2019. Professor Zhu also
served as an expert for Science & Technology Commission of
National Ministry of Education* (BIZR# B HEIERIITZ B ), an
assessment expert for Department of Life Science of National
Natural Science Foundation* (BEIZR B ARIEBES A mTIEE),
a drug evaluation expert in Jiangsu Province and in the PRC
and a State Council Special Allowance Expert.

Professor Zhu graduated from China Academy of Traditional
Chinese Medicine* (FFE#®EET) (now known as China
Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences* (B EERIZpT)) in
November 1981 with a master's degree in pharmacology of
traditional Chinese medicine.

Mr. Xu Hanxing (iR £), aged 28, is our executive Director.
He was appointed as our executive Director with effect from
24 March 2021.

Mr. Xu obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
(Public Accounting) and a Master of Science in Financial
Management from Lubin School of Business, Pace University
in the United States. Mr. Xu joined the Group in November
2020 and is currently acting as a commercial director. From
September 2018 to November 2020, Mr. Xu worked with
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong and served as a senior
associate. Mr. Xu is the son of Ms. Li Qian, our vice chairlady,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhang Lihua (5REZE), aged 45, is our non-executive
Director. She was appointed as our non-executive Director
with effect from 9 July 2021.

Ms. Zhang obtained a doctoral degree of medicine from
Southern Medical University in June 2013. Ms. Zhang is
currently serving as a deputy chief physician at the affiliated
hospital of Southern Medical University. She is also a
committee member of the Specialized Committee on Basic
Theory of Chinese Association of Integrative Medicine* (4
HHABEC e ENEREXEES),
of the Gynecology Quality Control Centre of Traditional
Chinese Medicine in Guangdong Province* (EBR%H EFET
ZE3EH L), a director of Guangdong Province Population
Culture Promotion Association* (EERA AHAX{L{RES) and
a standing committee member of its Entrepreneur Health
Culture Professional Committee* (PEREEX(LHELZE
)

(o)
8 /)

an expert member

and an evaluation expert for the High-level Talents in
Guangdong Province. Ms. Zhang has been awarded a second
prize for the 2019 Guangdong Scientific and Technological
Advancement Award* (BERERHEF L %), a second
prize for the Excellent Textbook (Higher Education) in China
by Ministry of Education* (B BE2BREXZHM (REHFHE) =
% %) and a second prize of Science and Technology Award
by Chinese Association of Integrative Medicine* (7 B = 7f & 45
SEGREBRT %) In 2019, Ms. Zhang was selected as
Guangdong Province Outstanding Young Medical Talent* (&
RAGRHEFEEEAA). Ms. Zhang is the wife of Mr. An Meng,
our chairman and an executive Director.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Su Yuanfu (%Jcf&), aged 76, is our independent non-
executive Director. He was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director with effect from 2 December 2013.

Mr. Su graduated from the Fourth Military Medical University
of the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC* (FREIAR
RINEENEEKNE) in December 1969 and obtained a
master’'s degree in radiopathology at the same university
in December 1982. Mr. Su served various positions at the
People's Liberation Army of the PRC. From January 1970 to
August 1979, he served as a doctor at General Hospital of
Tibet Military Region* (P E®ABERT). Between January
1984 and November 1995, Mr. Su served as the director of
science and research office, the dean of academic affairs, the
deputy superintendent and superintendent of the first affiliated
hospital respectively at the Fourth Military Medical University
of the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC. From November
1995 to June 1998, he served as the director general of
Technology Training Bureau of the Department of Health of
the General Logistics Department* (4212 £)&BET 4 2RFIE).
Between June 1998 and June 2004, Mr. Su served as the
director of the department of medical administration and the
deputy superintendent respectively at the General Hospital of
the People’s Liberation Army* (B2 E & EPFt). Mr. Su has been
a standing director of Chinese Hospital Association* (# B E&p5z
# &) during the period from 2004 to 2019.
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Mr. Feng Zhongshi (/%) aged 63, is our independent
non-executive Director. He was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director with effect from 2 December 2013.

Mr. Feng is a lawyer qualified in the PRC. He is currently a
partner of Beijing Gaodie Law Firm* (1t =™ &R E2EMEHT).
He graduated from China University of Political Science and
Law* (FREIBUAAER) in July 1986 with a bachelor's degree in
law. From July 1986 to January 1993, Mr. Feng worked at the
Department of Justice of Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region*
(A H B)AERAEE). He served as a lawyer at Inner Mongolia
Jingji Law Office* (AE&H&ERMEAT) (now known as
Jingshi Law Office* (&tEEZRIEMFAT)) from 1993 to 1995.
Between 1996 and 2002, Mr. Feng served as a partner at Inner
Mongolia Huicong Law Office* (N5 & ZRERMELFT). From
1996 to 2003, he also served as the head of legal department
of Beijing Hui Cong International Information Co., Ltd.* (3t
EBEEREABRAA). Between 2002 and 2009, Mr. Feng
served as a lawyer of Beijing Zhong Rui Law Firm* (1t R T 5
M EFT). Between June 2011 and January 2013, he served
as a partner of Beijing Jin Li Law Firm* (3t R & B2 =75
FFT).
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Ms. Chen Yujun (f(RE%), aged 42, is our independent non-
executive Director. She was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director with effect from 31 May 2019.

Ms. Chen has over 15 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and corporate finance. She has been a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 2010 and obtained a bachelor's degree in arts and a
bachelor’s degree in management from Guangdong University
of Foreign Studies* (BER/NEINEAZ) in 2005. Ms. Chen
has been the financial controller of financial management
center of Huabang Holdings Group Co., Ltd* (ZEHIEREES
R A7) since November 2021. Prior to that, she worked with
Guangzhou Fineland Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (&
M EFEMEZREEGRAR) as the vice general manager
of the financial management center from February 2018 to
September 2021; worked with Shanghai Eyugame Network
Technology Co., Ltd.* (L85 RABERHEBR A A]) as the chief
financial officer from March 2016 to February 2018; worked
with the Group as the chief financial officer from April 2014
to March 2016 and as deputy chief financial officer from May
2013 to March 2014; and worked with KPMG in the audit
department from July 2005 to May 2012 at various posts.

Save as disclosed above, each of our Directors has not been
a director of any other publicly listed company during the past
three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhou Shangwen (/A% X), aged 52, is a director and
vice president of Guangzhou Consun. Mr. Zhou joined our
Group in April 2004 as a marketing manager for Guangdong
province. Between April 2004 and June 2013, Mr. Zhou served
various positions at Guangzhou Consun, such as regional
marketing manager, marketing director for our kidney drugs
and president assistant. He has been the vice president of
Guangzhou Consun since July 2013 and has been a director
of Guangzhou Consun since June 2020. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Zhou worked at Guangzhou Brain Hospital* (/&
MBS RIZERT) between July 1995 and March 1997. Between
August 1997 and April 2004, Mr. Zhou successively worked
at Servier (Tianjin) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (F#E (KiE)
BlEAFR /N F]). Mr. Zhou graduated from Beijing Medical
University* (JbFRERIAE) (now known as Peking University
Health Science Centre* (It ARZEEEL)) in July 1995 with a

bachelor’s degree in mental health.

Ms. Fang Lanfen (/5% 7%), aged 59, is a vice president of
Guangzhou Consun. Ms. Fang joined our Group in July 1999
as a business manager. Between July 1999 to July 2013, Ms.
Fang served various positions at Guangzhou Consun, such as
business manager, regional marketing manager and marketing
director. She has been the vice president of Guangzhou
Consun since July 2013. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Fang
worked at Guzhen County Hospital* (EISEEZEFE) between
July 1985 and September 1989, and at Water Resource
Department of Anhui Province Hospital* (Z#%& /K FIEEERT)
between September 1989 and July 1999. Ms. Fang graduated
from Bengbu Medical College* (¥ EE[7T) with a bachelor's

degree in medical in July 1985.
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Mr. Fang Peicheng (75153), aged 43, is the Group’s vice
president and chief financial officer, who also oversees the
work of the investment management center. Mr. Fang joined
our Group in August 2010 as an audit manager. He worked
at different positions during August 2010 to October 2020,
including audit manager, audit and legal director, president
assistant and the Group’s chief financial officer. He was
appointed as vice president in November 2020. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Fang worked as internal auditor in companies
including KEDA Industrial Group Co., Ltd.* (REZ2LERMNER
A\l), Meadville Holdings Ltd.* (E# R ER A F]) and Xilong
Chemical Company Limited* (Fafket TIRMHER A R)), etc.

Mr. Fang graduated from Nan Hua College of Industry and
Commerce* (FAZ T EPT) major in computer accounting in
July 2002, and graduated from China University of Petroleum
(Eastern China) Accounting Profession* (FF B A AE (F
) &2 EH%) with a bachelor’'s degree in management in
July 2008. Mr. Fang has the Audit Professional Qualification
(Intermediate) granted by Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Securities of the People’'s Republic of China* (F#E AR
HFE A HERMEERESL) and the Certified Internal Auditor
Qualification granted by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA).
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Mr. Gao Haien (=/82), aged 53, is our Board secretary
and the board secretary of Guangzhou Consun. Mr. Gao
joined our Group in August 2007 as the board secretary
of Guangzhou Consun. Mr. Gao has been the manager
and legal representative of Guangzhou Consun and Inner
Mongolia Consun since March 2013, the manager and legal
representative of Yulin Pharmaceutical and Guangzhou
Consun since August 2015, a director of Yulin Pharmaceutical
and Inner Mongolia Consun since August 2018, and a director
and legal representative of Horgos Consun since December
2020. Mr. Gao also acted as a joint company secretary of the
Company from 15 April 2014 to 31 May 2017. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Gao successively served as a general manager
of the accessories store and the assistant to headquarters
general manager of Shenzhen Sunyes Tools Co. Ltd.* (FIJImH
o T H@#H/ERMRAF) from January 2006 to August 2007.
Between July 1995 and January 2006, Mr. Gao successively
served as a senior engineer of IDT Data System Factory* (&
BFXfEM) and a technology manager of Shenzhen Aomeidi
Digital Technology Co. Ltd.* (RYIITH BE@#EFE R AR A F]).

Mr. Gao graduated from China University of Mining and
Technology* (FEBEZEAZ) in July 1992 with a bachelor's
degree in engineering and subsequently obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics at the same university in January 1994.
He obtained a master's degree in business administration at
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law* (FEE&EBUA
KE) in June 2012. Mr. Gao holds Professional Certificate in
Securities (Band 11)* (BHFEFFEKERRFE (ZHR)) granted
by Securities Association of China* (FEZE%¥1%€) and
Board Secretary Certificate* (2= RWEEKFZE) granted by
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yau Chi Ming (f£7#%8H), aged 55, has been our company
secretary since he joined our Group in March 2013. Mr. Yau
is responsible for our company secretarial matters and he
has over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting.
Mr. Yau is a certified public accountant and is a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
is also acting as an independent non-executive director of
Cosmo Lady (China) Holdings Company Limited (HK listing
stock code: 2298). Prior to joining our Group, he worked at an
international audit firm from August 1992 to November 1994
and from May 1995 to October 2012, during which he was
promoted to partner in July 2007. Mr. Yau graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in December 1992 with a bachelor’s
degree in social sciences.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one
of the top priorities of the Company. The Board believes that
good corporate governance is one of the areas that lead to
the success of the Company and in balancing the interests
of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board
is devoted to ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and
effectiveness of such principles and practices.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code as contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2021.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
THE DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company
confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all the Directors have complied with the required standards of
dealing as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2021.

+
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises
eight Directors, of which four are executive Directors, one
is non-executive Director and three are independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board during 2021
and up to the date of this report is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. An Meng (Chairman) (appointed as executive Director on
24 March 2021 and appointed as chairman on 9 July 2021)
Mr. An Yubao (Founder, Chairman) (resigned, effective from

9 July 2021)
Ms. Li Qian (Founder, Vice Chairlady, Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Zhu Quan
Mr. Xu Hanxing (appointed on 24 March 2021)

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Zhang Lihua (appointed on 9 July 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Su Yuanfu
Mr. Feng Zhongshi
Ms. Chen Yujun

Biographical details of current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 34 to 47.
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Mr. An Yubao, Ms. Li Qian and Mr. YOUNG Wai Po, Peter
(each of them a substantial shareholder of the Company and
collectively are controlling shareholders of the Company)
entered into an acting in concert agreement which was
terminated by a deed of termination on 16 December 2016.
As at the date of this report, Mr. An, Ms. Li and Mr. Young
were still being considered as acting in concert under the
Takeovers Code as they had not made a submission to obtain
confirmation from the SFC that they were no longer acting
in concert pursuant to note 3 to the definition of “acting in
concert” of the Takeovers Code.

Mr. An Meng, our Chairman and executive Director, is the
son of Mr. An Yubao, a substantial shareholder, and is the
husband of Ms. Zhang Lihua, our non-executive Director. Mr.
Xu Hanxing, our executive Director, is the son of Ms. Li Qian,
our vice chairlady, executive Director and chief executive
officer and a substantial shareholder.

Save as disclosed above, each of the Directors is not
connected with any other Directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company and there are no other relationship, including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between the Directors.

In order to have a clear division between the management of
the Board and the day-to-day management of the business
operation of the Company, the role of the Chairman is separate
from that of the Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman focuses
on overall corporate development and strategic direction of
the Group and provides leadership for the Board and oversees
the efficient functioning of the Board. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for all day-to-day corporate management
matters as well as planning and developing the Group’s
strategy. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce
their independence and to ensure a balance of power and
authority.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

During the year of 2021, there were three independent non-
executive Directors representing one third or more of the
Board, and one of them, Ms. Chen Yujun has accounting
professional qualifications. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and thus are independent in

accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
managing the Company’s affairs, including the responsibilities
for the adoption of long-term strategies and appointing and
supervising senior management to ensure that the operation
of the Group is conducted in accordance with the objective
of the Group. The Board is also responsible for determining
the Company’s corporate governance policies which include:
(i) development and review of the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; (ii) review and monitoring
of the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; (iii) review and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (iv) review and monitoring of
the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and Directors; and (v) review of the Company’s
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for
guiding and monitoring the Company in discharging its
duties, certain responsibilities are delegated to various Board
committees which have been established by the Board to
deal with different aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless
otherwise specified in their respective written terms of
reference as approved by the Board, these Board committees
are governed by the Company’s articles of association
(“Articles of Association”) as well as the Board’s policies
and practices (in so far as the same are not in conflict with
the provisions contained in the Articles of Association). With
the new composition of members of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee, the independent
non-executive Directors will be able to effectively devote their
time to perform the duties required by the respective Board
committees.

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of
implementing its strategies and the day-to-day operation to
the management of the Company under the leadership of
the executive Directors. Clear guidance has been made as
to the matters that should be reserved to the Board for its
decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital, finance
and financial reporting, internal controls, communication with
shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.
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The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set
out on pages 108 to 235 were prepared on the basis set out
in note 1(b) to the financial statements. Financial results of the
Group are announced in a timely manner in accordance with
statutory and/or regulatory requirements. The declaration of
reporting responsibility issued by the external auditor of the
Company on the Company’s financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 95 to 107.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times
a year (does not include obtaining Board consent through
circulating written resolutions) at approximately quarterly
intervals, to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operational and financial performance of the Company. Other
Board meetings will be held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors. During the year of 2021, the Board held
five meetings.
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TREBRSE

GENERAL MEETINGS

An annual general meeting was held by the Company on 21

May 2021.

Details of Directors’ attendance of board meetings and general

meetings are as follows:

BRRAE

R2021F5 A21 B A RRIRIT TREBAFAE -

EEFTHRETREZLBRRAGHNFEWT ¢

No. of No. of
attendance/ attendance/
No. of board No. of general
meetings meetings
HERE HERE
Director BEE EERERNRH BRRAERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. An Meng (Chairman) (appointed as LA (FE) (R20214F3 A 4/4 1/1
executive Director on 24 March 2021 ARBLZERMITES -
and appointed as chairman on 9 July Nmo02147 A9
2021) ZEEERE)
Mr. An Yubao (Chairman) (resigned, TEE L () (BEBFE - 2/2 11
effective from 9 July 2021) H2021F7 A9HBAER)
Ms. Li Qian (Vice Chairladly, RiEL T (BIEE 5/5 1/
Chief Executive Officer) HEHITE)
Professor Zhu Quan REHR 5/5 1/
Mr. Xu Hanxing (appointed on TR E ST (20214 4/4 1/
24 March 2021) BA24HEZE)
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Zhang Lihua (appointed on SREEZEL 4 (120214 3/3 NA
9 July 2021) 7TROREZE) T
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFEHTES
Mr. Su Yuanfu BT 5/5 11
Mr. Feng Zhongshi SRE S E 5/5 1/1
Ms. Chen Yujun BREF 2+ 5/5 1/1
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At least 14 days’ notices are given to all Directors in advance
for attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting
agendas and other relevant information are provided to
the Directors at least 3 days before the date of the Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional
matters in the agenda for Board meetings and have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

By providing all Directors with relevant guideline, updated
materials and training regarding the relevant laws and
applicable regulations, the duties and responsibilities of being
a Director, and relevant disclosure requirements, the Group
ensure that each Director understands and is familiar with the
relevant rules and the latest development. The Group has also
provided funding to each Director, to encourage Directors to
participate in various continuous professional development
courses, to ensure that each Director continue to possess the
necessary knowledge and skills to take part in and contribute
to the Board's affairs.
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For the year of 2021, the Directors’ participation in continuous

R2021 5 E  EFLENKEIXERIZIN

professional development training is as follows: TS ¢
Training related
to corporate
governance,
regulatory
development
and other
relevant
professional
topics
ERLEER -
EERER
HibHEAE
Director B= FEME
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. An Yubao (Chairman) (appointed as executive L& (/) (FR202143 H24H \
Director on 24 March 2021 and appointed as BEZERPITES - RIN202145
chairman on 9 July 2021) TROBEZERER)
Mr. An Yubao (Chairman) (resigned, effective from TEVE LA (£/F) (BT - Xl
9 July 2021) B2021F7 A9 R BLE)
Ms. Li Qian (Vice Chairlady, Chief Executive Officer) RELT (BILE - BEHITE) V
Professor Zhu Quan REHE V
Mr. Xu Hanxing (appointed on 24 March 2021) B E S (7R2021F3 A24H \/
BEE)
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Zhang Lihua (appointed on 9 July 2021) REEL 4 (R202157 A9REE(T) N
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Su Yuanfu FTiEEE v
Mr. Feng Zhongshi R E S E V
Ms. Chen Yujun PREZE 2+ V

All Directors have provided record of training attendance and
the Company will continue to arrange and/or fund the training
in accordance with paragraph C.1.4 of the Code Provisions.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

All Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the
Company for a specific term of three years from the date of
appointment, subject to re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation. However,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third shall be the
name of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire in
each year will be those who have been longest in the office
since their last re-election or appointment but as for persons
who became or were last re-elected as Directors on the same
day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Such retiring Directors may,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of shareholders after their appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall
then be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.3.1 of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference were amended on 20
March 2019 and are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition and diversity of the
Board on regular basis; identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; and make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-election of Directors. When identifying
suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination Committee
will carry out the selection process by making reference to a
series of criteria as bases, including but not limited to skills,
experience, education background, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, and taking into consideration of the Company’s
Board Diversity Policy. All candidates must be able to meet
the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director should also meet the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Qualified
candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.
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As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee RAHRERH  EZEE8E€hH =K EHEK  E
comprises three members and two of them are independent HMEZABIIFNITES (D RlAFFTELE (£
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Su Yuanfu (Chairman), &) HBREEZLLT)UR—BAENITESE (AL
Ms. Chen Yujun and one Executive Director, namely Mr. An  J&%4E) o« R20214F » IRREZESRIT TMAS
Meng. In 2021, the Nomination Committee held two meeting i@ KZ8SkELFeENFEBOT ¢

and details of the committee members’ attendance are as

follows:
No. of
attendance/
No. of
committee
meeting
HERE
Committee member ZEgNE ZEEERRY
Independent non-Executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. Su Yuanfu (Committee Chairman) BrRrkE(ZESLE) 2/2
Ms. Chen Yujun PREAR I 2/2
Executive Director HITES
Mr. An Meng (appointed on 9 July 2021) LIRS (R2021F7 AOBEZRT) 11
Mr. An Yubao (resigned, effective from 9 July 2021) ZEVE LA (EFHE - B20214 1/1

7 A9BER)

The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and REZEGRN TESZRHHEME  RIEMAEMK -
composition of the Board, and assessed the independence 1% T B EATESFTHE LM - LERRAER
of the independent non-executive Directors and concluded H®IKEERZ T(ELBEREEZEZHT

that the Company’s Board Diversity Policy has been properly

implemented.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With
a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development, and has
adopted the Board Diversity Policy.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy, the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least 40% of the members of the Board shall be
non-executive directors or independent non-executive
directors;

(B) at least 1/3 of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(C) at least 1 of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or relevant financial management
professional qualifications;

(D) at least 50% of the members of the Board shall have 7

years or more of experience in the industry he/she is
specialised in; and

at least 2 of the members of the Board shall have
China-related work experience.
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The Board always attaches great importance to the above
measurable objectives. Following the appointments of two
executive Directors on 23 March 2021 (with effect from 24
March 2021),
the Board decreased to 37.5%, which was slightly less than

the proportion of non-executive Directors of

the target of 40%. After appointing Ms. Zhang Lihua as the
non-executive Director on 9 July 2021, the proportion of non-
executive Directors of the Board was restored to 50%. Save as
disclosed above, the Board has been meeting the measurable
objectives of the Board Diversity Policy during the year ended
31 December 2021.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph E.1.2 of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee will review the proposals
made by the management on the remuneration of Directors
and senior management and make recommendation to the
Board. The Board will have final authority to approve the
recommendations made by the Remuneration Committee.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee also
include making recommendation to the Board on the overall
remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors
and senior management of the Group and to ensure none
of the Directors determine their own remuneration. The
emoluments of executive Directors are determined based
on the skills, knowledge, individual performance as well as
contributions, the scope of responsibility and accountability
of such Directors, taking into consideration of the Company’s
performance and prevailing market conditions. The
remuneration policy of non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is to ensure that the
non-executive Directors are adequately compensated for their
efforts and time dedicated to the Company’s affairs including
their participation in respective Board committees. The
emoluments of Directors are also determined with reference to
their skills, experience, knowledge, duties and market trends.
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As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three members and two of them are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Feng Zhongshi
(Chairman), Mr. Su Yuanfu and one executive Director, namely
Ms. Li Qian. In 2021, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings and details of the committee members’ attendance
are as follows:

RAREBE FMEEeR=-RKEHEK - &
PRERBEIENTES (DRIRBHELE (X
B)EEBTREE) AR —BARATES (AR
BFEL L) o R20214F @ HTMEERRITTRAE

A

% RZREENBHESENHABOT

No. of

attendance/

No. of

committee

meeting

HERE

Committee member ZEgHE ZEESRRHY
Independent non-Executive Directors BAFHTES

Mr. Feng Zhongshi (Committee Chairman) BRERE(ZEEFE) 2/2

Mr. Su Yuanfu TR 2/2

Executive Director HITES
Ms. Li Qian RiELL 2/2

The Remuneration Committee assessed the performance,
reviewed the proposal made by management on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
and made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Details of remuneration of Directors are set out
in note 6 to the Financial Statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph D.3.3 and D.3.7 of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference were amended on 16
December 2015 and came into effective from 1 January 2016,
which are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and has held regular
meetings to review and make recommendations to improve
the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal controls. The primary duties of the Audit Committee,
among other things, are to make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor, review the financial statements and oversee financial
reporting, risk management and internal control procedures of
the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists
of three members and all of them are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Chen Yujun (Chairlady), Mr.
Feng Zhongshi and Mr. Su Yuanfu. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with management of the Company the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee also met with the external auditors and reviewed
the Annual Results.
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In 2021, the Audit Committee held two meetings and details of R20214F @ BERZESRT TMASE K% 8
the committee members’ attendance are as follows: ERELREEENFBOT

No. of

attendance/

No. of

committee

meeting

HERE

Committee member ZEEHE ZEESERRHE

Independent non-Executive Directors BYFHTES

Ms. Chen Yujun (Committee Chairladly) BMEBELZL (ZEEE2EE) 2/2

Mr. Feng Zhongshi BB LA 2/2

Mr. Su Yuanfu BRITfRiE 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and discussed risk management, internal
controls and financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee
also met with the external auditors and reviewed this annual
report of the Company. The Board has not taken a different
view from the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
designation or dismissal of external auditors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year of 2021, the Company engaged KPMG as the
external auditors. Apart from providing audit services, KPMG
also provided interim financial statements review. The fees in
respect of audit and non-audit services provided by KPMG for
the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB2,300,000 and RMB500,000 respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 95 to 107.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
Group to maintain a sound and effective risk management and
internal control system, and making review on its effectiveness
at least once a year. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in fulfilling its governance role over finance, operations,
compliance, risk management and internal control of the
Group. The Group’s Audit and Legal Centre assists the Board
and the Audit Committee in reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control system on an
ongoing basis. The Board is regularly updated on significant
risks which may affect the performance of the Group.

The Group's internal control system is designed to safeguard
assets against misappropriation and unauthorized disposition,
to ensure compliance of relevant ordinances and rules, to
ensure proper maintenance of accounting records for provision
of reliable financial information used within the business or for
publication and to manage operational risks. The controls built
into the risk management system are intended to manage,
not eliminate, significant risks in the Group’s business
environment. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to business objective, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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The Group has established on-going procedures for
identifying, assessing and managing the significant
risks involved with the Group. Meanwhile, it reviews the
effectiveness of the relevant internal control system. These
procedures include but not limited to: (1) the Group has
established and continued to improve the risk management
structure and internal control mechanism, and has regularly
conducted project audit and annual risk assessment
according to the risk management system code and annual
plan; (2) to identify the significant risks involved in the
business and assess the impact of such risks on the business
of the Group; (8) information gathering channels, to ensure
material or potential inside information being captured and
kept confidential until timely disclosure is made in accordance
with the Listing Rules; (4) to conduct gap analysis on the
internal control measures in response to the significant
risks, and make recommendations on the improvement of
its internal audit functions; (5) to continuously follow up and
supervise the implementation of relevant measures against
the recommended improvements; (6) continuously update
and improve the relevant management systems, authorization
manuals and operating procedures to enhance management
normalization and efficiency; and (7) establishing a more
comprehensive investor relationship management system to
ensure investors’' understanding of the Company’s situation
and to protect investors’ right to know.

The Group’s Audit and Legal Centre assists in implementing
the risk management practices and prepares regular work
reports on whether the relevant internal control is adequate
and effective in the previous year. The Audit Committee
will report to the Board on the implementation of the risk
management and internal control policy, including the
identification of risk factors and assessment on which grades
of risks are acceptable by the Group and the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control policy.

Based on the report prepared by the Group’s Audit and Legal
Centre and Audit Committee, the Board believes that the
risk management and internal control system of the Group is
proper, adequate and effective, and the Group has complied
with the provisions of risk management and internal control as
contained in the corporate governance code. The Group will
continue to review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system in coming years.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yau Chi Ming, being our company secretary, is primarily
responsible for the company secretarial work of the Group. Mr.
Yau attended no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during 2021.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The shareholders of the Company may make requisition for
the convening of an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) of
the Company in accordance with the procedures set out in the
Articles of Association as follows:

(1) Any one or more shareholders, who at the date of
deposit of the requisition hold not less than one tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings, shall have the right, by
written notice, to require an EGM to be called by the
Directors of the Company for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

(2) Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in the PRC

Address: 71, Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section,
Guangzhou Economic and Technological
Development District, Guangzhou, PRC

Email: ir@chinaconsun.com
Attention:  Company Secretary

Registered Address of the Company

Address:  Windward 3
Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350
Grand Cayman KY 1-1108
Cayman Islands
Attention: ~ Company Secretary
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(3) The Board will convene an EGM within 21 days from the
date of deposit of the requisition.

(4) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board does not
proceed duly to convene such EGM, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

For matters in relation to the Board, shareholders can
contact the Company at the following:

Address: 71, Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section,
Guangzhou Economic and Technological
Development District, Guangzhou, PRC

Email: ir@chinaconsun.com
Tel: (86) 20-82264529
Fax: (86) 20-82261886

Attention: ~ Company Secretary

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his
or her proposal (“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact
information at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, the address is: 22nd Floor, World-Wide House,
19, Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Board will be asked to
include the Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of ordinary resolution of the
Company.

(2) At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution of the
Company in an EGM of the Company or an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting
of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining
a high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor
relations. The Company is committed to a policy of open and
timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders
and public investors.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including interim and annual reports and public
announcements. Extensive information about the Company’s
activities for the year ended 31 December 2021 has been
provided in this annual report. While the annual general
meeting provides a valuable forum for direct communication
between the Board and its shareholders, the Company also
maintains its website (http://www.chinaconsun.com) to provide
an alternative communication channel for the public and its
shareholders. All corporate communication and Company's
latest updates are available on the Company’s website for
public’s information.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there has been no
significant change in the Company'’s constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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The Board of the Company are pleased to present the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements (the “Financial Statements”) of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 13 to the Financial Statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 5 to 20 and pages 22 to 33 of this
annual report, which form part of this director’s report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2021 and its state of affairs as at 31 December 2021 are set
out in the Financial Statements on pages 108 to 235.

The Company paid an interim dividend of HKDO.1 per share
in 2021, which amounted to approximately RMB66,874,000
(2020 interim dividend: HKDO0.08 per share, which amounted
to approximately RMB58,458,000). The Board proposed to
declare a final dividend of HKDO.2 per share, which amounted
to approximately RMB128,691,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020 final dividend: HKDO0.20 per share,
totally approximately RMB133,950,000). The proposed final
dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting to be held on Friday,
27 May 2022 and, if approved, is expected to be paid on or
about Friday, 17 June 2022 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday,
10 June 2022. The final dividend is declared and will be paid
in HKD.
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DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, charitable and
other donations made by the Group amounted to approximately
RMB5,143,000 (2020: approximately RMB2,450,000).

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Company may declare and pay dividends out of our
distributable reserves as permitted under the relevant law.
The payment and the amount of any dividends will depend
on the results of the Group’s operations, cash flow, financial
condition, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividends, future prospects and other factors that the
Board may consider relevant. A decision to distribute any
interim dividend or recommend any final dividend will be
at the discretion of the Board. In addition, any payment of
final dividend will be subject to approval by the Company’s
shareholders. The Board reviews the Company's dividend
policy from time to time in light of the following factors in
determining whether dividends are to be declared and paid:

- financial results of the Group;

- shareholders’ interests;

- general business conditions, strategies and future
expansion needs;

= the Company’s capital requirements;

- the payment by the subsidiaries of cash dividends to
the Company;

- possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the
Group; and

- other factors the Board may consider relevant.

These are no arrangements under which a shareholder has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December
2017 to 2021 is set out on page 236. This summary does not
form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in share capital of the Company during the
year of 2021 are set out in note 24 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s distributable
reserves, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman lIslands, amounted to RMB1,015,522,000 (2020:
RMB605,519,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains good business relationships with its
suppliers and customers, which are beneficial for the Group’s
healthy long-term development.

For the year of 2021, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Company’s five largest customers, including sales to entities
which are known to the Group to be under common control
with these customers, accounted for approximately 58.2% of
the total revenue for the year; sales to the largest customer
accounted for approximately 24.9% thereof. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Company’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 51.4% of the total purchase for
the year; purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 31.6% thereof.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders who owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.
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SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
note 13 to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND
USE RIGHTS

Details of changes in the Group’'s investment property,
property, plant and equipment and land use rights during
the year of 2021 are set out in notes 9 to 11 to the Financial
Statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year of 2021, the Group’s total capital expenditure
amounted to RMB89,440,000 (2020: RMB53,304,000) which
was used for acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
land use rights. Details of movements the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and land use rights are set out in notes
10 and 11 to the Financial Statements.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the Group's loans and borrowings as at 31
December 2021 are set out in note 19 to the Financial
Statements.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. An Meng (Chairman) (appointed as executive director on
24 March 2021 and appointed as chairman on 9 July 2021)
Mr. An Yubao (Founder, Chairman) (resigned, effective from

9 July 2021)
Ms. Li Qian (Founder, Vice Chairlady, Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Zhu Quan
Mr. Xu Hanxing (appointed on 24 March 2021)

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Zhang Lihua (appointed on 9 July 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Su Yuanfu
Mr. Feng Zhongshi
Ms. Chen Yujun

Each of the Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of three years from the
date of appointment, automatically renewable for a further one
year subject to director’s rotation pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company and can be terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other. None of the Directors has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within 1 year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

The Company has received annual confirmation on
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of
them are considered to be independent.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one
third of the existing Directors shall retire from office at each
annual general meeting, and any additional Director appointed
by the Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Ms. Li Qian, Ms. Zhang Lihua and Mr. Feng
Zhongshi shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, and being eligible, offers themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management Profile” on pages 34 to 47 of this
annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company has been entered into or existed during the year.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of tax relief or exemption
available to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Mr. An Yubao, Ms. Li Qian, the vice chairlady of
the Board, and Mr. YOUNG Wai Po, Peter (collectively,
the “Controlling Shareholders” or “Non-Competing
Covenantors”) entered into a deed of non-competition (“Deed
of Non-Competition”) on 2 December 2013, pursuant to
which the Non-Competing Covenantors have irrevocably
and severally (but not jointly and severally) undertaken
to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of each of
the members of the Group) that with effect from the date
of Listing and for as long as the shares of the Company
remain so listed on the Stock Exchange and the Controlling
Shareholders are individually or collectively with any of his/
its associates interested directly or indirectly in not less than
30.0% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company
(the “Restricted Period”), the Non-Competing Covenantors or
their respective associates shall not, (i) directly or indirectly
engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render
any services to or otherwise be involved in any business
(whether as owner, director, operator, licensor, licensee,
partner, shareholder, joint venturer, employee, consultant or
otherwise) in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the existing business carried on by the Group (the
“Restricted Business”); and (ii) directly or indirectly take any
action which constitutes an interference with or a disruption
of the Restricted Business including, but not limited to, (a)
solicitation of any existing or then existing employees of the
Group for employment by them or their associates (excluding
the Group); (b) solicitation of any current or then current
customers and/or suppliers and/or former customers and/
or suppliers of the Group for the preceding 6 months at the
relevant time away from the Group; and (c) without the consent
from the Company, making use of any information pertaining
to the business of the Group which may have come to their
knowledge in their capacity as Substantial Shareholders for
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the purpose of engaging, investing or participating in any
Restricted Business. Each of the Non-Competing Covenantors
severally (but not jointly and severally) undertakes to the
Company (for itself and for the benefit of each of the members
of the Group) that, in respect of any order or any part of it
undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by him/her or his/
her associates for the Restricted Business, it shall and shall
procure that his/her associates shall, unconditionally use
reasonable endeavours to procure that such customer(s) to
appoint or contract directly with any member of the Group for
the Restricted Business under the relevant order.

Each of the Non-Competing Covenantors jointly and
severally undertakes to indemnify and keep indemnified the
Group against any damage, loss or liability suffered by the
Company or any other member of the Group arising out of
or in connection with any breach of its undertakings and/
or obligations under the Deed of Non-Competition, including
any costs and expenses incurred as a result of such breach
provided that such indemnity shall be without prejudice to
any other rights and remedies the Company is entitled to in
relation to any such breach, including specific performance,
and all such other things and remedies are hereby expressly
reserved by the Company.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to
the Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition provided to the Company until (i) the date on
which the Company’s shares cease to be listed on the Stock
Exchange; or (ii) the date on which the relevant Covenantor
and his/its associates cease to own 30% or more of the then
issued share capital of the Company directly or indirectly;
whichever occurs first.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company had
reviewed the status of compliance as well as confirmation by
the Controlling Shareholders of the Company and, on the basis
of such confirmation, are of the view that such Controlling
Shareholders have complied with their non-competition
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition and these
non-competition undertakings have been enforced by the
Company in accordance with its terms.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company did not enter into any transactions which
constitute non-exempt connected transactions within the
meaning of the Listing Rules during the year of 2021.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved
for adoption on 2 December 2013 for the purpose to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to eligible participants and for such other purposes
as the Board approve from time to time. Subject to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at their absolute
discretion, grant or invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes to take up options to subscribe for shares:
(a) any employee, supplier/service provider, customer,
partner or joint-venture partner of the Group (including any
director, whether executive and whether independent or not,
of the Group) who is in full-time or part-time employment with
the Company or any subsidiaries, (b) any person who have
contributed or may contribute to the Group. The total number
of share which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue on the date of Listing
unless the Company seeks the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share
Option Scheme provided that options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of the Company will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating 10% limit.
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The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option
granted shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer for the grant of option (“Date of Grant”)
which must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding the
Date of Grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay
HKD1.00 to the Company as consideration for the grant. The
acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be
made within the date as specified in the offer letter issued
by the Company. The exercise period of any option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall not be longer than 10
years commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the
last day of such 10-year period subject to the provisions for
early termination as contained in the Share Option Scheme.
The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
grantee under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall
be subject to issuance of a circular by the Company and
approved by its shareholders in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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Subject to earlier termination by the shareholders in general BRIELBRENRIRE A S ESBIRATLL - T
meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be BEREZIBHFEMBHETERNER - B 2021
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the Adoption 128318 - BREESINFGFERB1E11E
Date. As at 31 December 2021, the remaining life of the Share A °

Option Scheme was 1 year and 11 months.

Details of share options outstanding during the year are as FREARITERERZEEBOT ¢
follows:

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
Tranche 1 January during during during 31 December
number 2021 the year the year the year 2021
12021 % 2021
1A1A 124318
Hak KT ERRL ERTE EREH I R AT
000 000 000 000 000
T T T T T
Directors and/
or substantial BER /9
shareholders TERR
Mr. An Yubao26® ZHEEENDE 2014 T3
201452834 3,000 - - - 3,000
2014 T4
0145 £ 44t 3,000 - - = 3,000
2016 T7¢
2016 £ 74 1,200 - - = 1,200
2016 T8
20165284 1,200 - - - 1,200
2016 79
20165 E9Ht 1,600 - = = 1,600
2019 T5¢
20194 E5H¢ 2,333 = = (1,458) 875
2019 T6¥
20195264 3,500 - - - 3,500
2020 T2
2020 E 24t 844 = = = 844
Sub-total Nt 16,677 - - (1,458) 15,219
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Outstanding Outstanding

as at Granted Exercised Expired as at

Tranche 1 January during during during 31 December

number 2021 the year the year the year 2021

12021 % 2021

1818 124318

it 1e RATE FEREM ERTE EREH e R AT

000 000 000 000 000

T T Tk T T
Ms. Li Qian@ PEgLR 2014 734

201452834 3,000 - - - 3,000
2014 T4

20145 £ 44t 3,000 - - - 3,000
2016 T7¢

2016 £ 74 1,200 - = - 1,200
2016 T8

20165284 1,200 - - - 1,200
2016 79

20165 £94t 1,600 - - - 1,600
2019 T5¢

20194 E54t¢ 2,333 - = (1,458) 875
2019 T6©

20195264 3,500 - - - 3,500
2020 T2

2020 E 24t 844 - = = 844

Sub-total Nt 16,677 - - (1,458) 15,219
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Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
Tranche 1 January during during during 31 December
number 2021 the year the year the year 2021
#2021% #2021%
1A1A 12A31H
#3k KT FERRH ERfTR EREH WA ATE
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
TR T T TR TR
Professor Zhu Quan®  REHE! 2014 T4
20145 F 1 720 - - - 720
2014 T2®
2014FF24 480 - - - 480
2016 T4®
2016FF44 600 - - - 600
2016 T51
20165 £54 358 - - - 358
2016 T6%
2016FF64: 330 - - - 330
2019 T2
20195 E 24t 240 - = (48) 192
2019 T3
20195 £34 320 - - - 320
Sub-total Nat 3,048 - - (48) 3,000
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Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
Tranche 1 January during during during 31 December
number 2021 the year the year the year 2021
#2021% #2021%
1A1H 12A31H
#3k AT FERRH ERfTR EREH WA ATE
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
TR TR T T TR
Employees =
In aggregate Ly 2014 T1@
20145 £ 14t 3,496 - = (708) 2,788
2014 T2
20145 F 24t 3,385 - - (611) 2,774
2016 T1¢
20165 £ 14t 6,255 - (893) (875) 4,487
2016 T2
2016 E 24t 6,238 - (893) (875) 4470
2016 T3
20165 F34 8,342 - (1,189) (1,165) 5988
2019 T1¢
2019FF 140 558 - - - 558
2019 T2
20195 E 24t 11,109 - (329) (3,983) 6,797
2019 T3
20195 £ 34 14,812 - - (1,208) 13,604
2020 T1%
2020 E 14t 15,995 = (1,289) (6,133) 8,573
Sub-total Nt 70,190 - (4,593) (15,558) 50,039
Total 106,592 - (4,593) (18,522) 83,477
Notes: Btat -
1. A Director of the Company 1. ARAEE
2 A substantial shareholder of the Company 2. AR EBRR
3. Resigned from the position as a Director of the Company, 3. EFTARAEFBE - 52021F7H9HEE

effective from 9 July 2021

bid
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4. Share options granted before 1 January 2021: 4. R2021F 14 1 H AT 89FE R -

Date of Grant

as per Board’s Exercise
Tranche Number approval Vesting Period Exercise Period Price
REZRHERN
#E55% R BH SR 1T TEEE
from to from to
H £ 22| &
DD/MM/YYYY ~ DD/MM/YYYY — DD/MM/YYYY  DD/MM/YYYY — DD/MM/YYYY HKD
BB/ % B/ R/% B/ R/% BB/ % B R/ % BT
2014 T1
20145514t 24/03/2014 24/03/2014 23/03/2015 24/03/2015 23/03/2024 6.64
2014 T2
2014F F 24k 24/03/2014 24/03/2014 23/03/2016 24/03/2016 23/03/2024 6.64
2014 T3
2014F 534k 24/03/2014 28/05/2014* 23/03/2015 24/03/2015 23/03/2024 6.64
2014 T4
2014 E 4%t 24/03/2014 28/05/2014* 23/03/2016 24/03/2016 23/03/2024 6.64
2016 T1
2016 & 11t 01/04/2016 01/04/2016 31/03/2017 01/04/2017 31/03/2026 4.01
2016 T2
2016 F 24t 01/04/2016 01/04/2016 31/03/2018 01/04/2018 31/03/2026 4.01
2016 T3
2016 FE 34t 01/04/2016 01/04/2016 31/03/2019 01/04/2019 31/03/2026 4.01
2016 T4
2016F F 44t 01/04/2016 01/04/2016 31/03/2017 01/04/2017 31/03/2026 4.01
2016 T5
2016 E 54k 01/04/2016 01/04/2016 31/03/2018 01/04/2018 31/03/2026 4.01
2016 T6
2016 FF 64t 01/04/2016 01/04/2016 31/03/2019 01/04/2019 31/03/2026 4.01
2016 T7
2016 E7H#E 01/04/2016 27/05/2016* 31/03/2017 01/04/2017 31/03/2026 4.01
2016 T8
2016 E8Ht 01/04/2016 27/05/2016* 31/03/2018 01/04/2018 31/03/2026 4.01
2016 T9
201659t 01/04/2016 27/05/2016* 31/03/2019 01/04/2019 31/03/2026 4.01
2019 T1
2019 & 14t 02/01/2019 02/01/2019 31/03/2020 01/04/2020 01/01/2029 4.476
2019 T2
2019 F 24t 02/01/2019 02/01/2019 31/03/2021 01/04/2021 01/01/2029 4.476
2019 T3
2019 534k 02/01/2019 02/01/2019 31/03/2022 01/04/2022 01/01/2029 4.476
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as per Board’s Exercise
Tranche Number approval Vesting Period Exercise Period Price
REZRREN
#E55% RHBH R 1T TEE
from to from to
H £ 23] g
DD/MM/YYYY  DD/MM/YYYY — DD/MM/YYYY  DD/MM/YYYY  DD/MM/YYYY HKD
B/R/% BAR/% B/R/% B/R/% BAR/% T
2019 T5
20194 F 54 02/01/2019 31/05/2019* 31/03/2021 01/04/2021 01/01/2029 4.476
2019 T6
2019F Fo6#t 02/01/2019 31/05/2019* 31/03/2022 01/04/2022 01/01/2029 4.476
2020 T1
2020 F 14 24/03/2020 24/03/2020 31/03/2021 01/04/2021 23/03/2030 3.280
2020 T2
2020 F 24t 18/06/2020 18/06/2020 31/03/2021 01/04/2021 17/06/2030 3.440

the date on which the relevant shareholders’ approval was

granted

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had a
weighted average exercise price of HKD4.68 and a weighted-
average remaining contractual life of 5.3 years.

As at the date of this report, totally 83,232,448 ordinary shares
were available for issue under the Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 10.2% of the total issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2021 was any of the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the shares in, or debentures of, the Company, or
had exercised any such right.

*

SRR EN B 5

R2021F12 8318 » WAITEBAEINE TS
THEEBEAE4.68FL NMETFHRGENFERE
5.3% o

RARRE HE] - & 3£83,232,448 A% & 3@ A% #5 AT R
BT I T 317 - RERAQAF N ARS BHH
BEITRMOAEZ410.2% °

bR -t BE AR BT 219N - MELE2021F12 H31H
LEFEEMEHE  ARRSENBRRERMN—F
MEXRBEALHENETNR - BEESAARI
AR A EMEABER RN S EEE
ER - TEEMES - HESIRMmI8AEARNF
ZHEBRBEARRRG S EEENEMENKE
TEERBREER -
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board of the Company had adopted a Share Award
Scheme (“Share Award Scheme”) on 21 July 2014 as
a means to recognise the contributions by the selected
employees and provide them with incentives in order to retain
them for the continual operation and development of the Group
and attract suitable personnel for the further development of
the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the selected employees
may be granted during the duration of the Share Award
Scheme an award in the form of awarded shares (“Awarded
Shares”). Awarded Shares will be purchased by the trustee
of the Company (“Trustee”) on the market out of cash
contributed by the Company and be held on trust for the
selected employees until such shares are vested on them in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme.
The Board shall not make any further award of Awarded
Shares which will result in the nominal value of the shares
awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected employee under the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

As at 31 December 2021, 18,583,000 ordinary shares were
held by the Trustee under the Share Award Scheme, among
which 18,483,000 shares were held on behalf of the Company
while the remaining 100,000 shares were held on behalf of
certain employees.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors and chief executives
of the Company had the following interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company, its group members and/or associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be

kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code:

Nature of Interest and Capacity

Report of Directors
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EERERTHRAERKRS HEROKE
BEESIAR

MR2021F12H31H ' EFERARAAIEZTHA
BRARR - EEBKE R AR/ SEEEE
(ERABHLHEGRN ((FERBERE ) 5
XVE) MR 5 « RN REEZS HEE R
AMBEBEHF KB EKAIEIS2EH[EFTENERL
iz EmIAR - IRBRETAE STAER
DRI R R EmSOA B AT

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

Number and Class
of Securities("

Name of Director B2 EEHBERSH EHEHERERO BAREBD

An Meng Zhh Beneficial owner 14,531,000 Shares (L) 1.76%(L)
ERHEA 14,531,000A% (L)

An Meng® 2 Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 197,324,000 Shares (L) 23.94%(L)
MIEEEREA 197,324,000 (L)
Sub-total 211,855,000 Shares (L) 25.70%(L)
Nt 211,855,0008%(L)

Zhang Lihua® REBER) Interest of spouse 211,855,000 Shares (L) 25.70%(L)
[RLEr 211,855,000f%(L)

Li Qian® HE@ Beneficial owner 22,936,899 Shares (L) 2.78%(L)
BREAA 22,936,899f% (L)

Li Qian® RIF6 Interest of controlled corporation 128,426,000 Shares (L) 15.58%(L)
R EEER 128,426,000%(L)
Sub-total 151,362,899 Shares (L) 18.36%(L)
Nt 151,362,899/% (L)

Zhu Quan® REW Beneficial owner 2,999,700 Shares (L) 0.36%(L)

EREEA

2,999,700 (L)
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Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares
of the Company or the relevant associated corporation.

2) The entire issued share capital of Central Success

Developments Limited (“Central Success”) is owned by Aali
Resources Limited. Aali Resources Limited is held in the name
of BOS Trustee Limited as a trustee of a discretionary trust,
of which Mr. An Yubao is the founder and Mr. An Meng is one
of the beneficiaries. Therefore, AN Meng is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Central Success under the

provisions of SFO..

(3) Ms. Zhang Lihua is the wife of Mr. An Meng and therefore is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares/interests held by Mr.
An Meng.

(4) Including interests in relation to 15,219,000 share options and
2,999,700 share options granted to Ms. Li Qian and Professor
Zhu Quan respectively under the Share Option Scheme
adopted on 2 December 2013.

(5) The entire issued share capital of Double Grace International
Limited ("“Double Grace”) is owned by Ms. Li Qian, therefore,
Ms. Li Qian is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held

by Double Grace under the provisions of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
other interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, any of its group
members or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following persons/entities (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had, or were
deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company, its group members and/
or associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part

m

XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Nature of Interest and Capacity

2021412318 -
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Number and Class
of Securities™

FERRRAQ AR RABBERAD 2
R/ HRHKR

REBEMAM  LWTALS
B(ESIARAZTETBRAEBRIIN REARQ
Al EEEKE QR R, SAREEE 2 Bk
HEBDF  BEARRSEBREESLNE
fERBISEXVERE 2 R FE 35 BB E XA M AR R B ER
MERIORR  HECAREESF LG EDIE
BIIEARBRFENECMANERIORE ¢

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

Name of Shareholder BREER/ 2 BEEER S5 EZHERERO BAREESL

An Yubao® ZHEO Beneficial owner 25,632,455 Shares (L) 3.11%(L)
ERBEEA 25,632,4550% (L)

An Yubao® ZHEC Founder of a discretionary trust 197,324,000 Shares (L) 23.94%(L)
BEETERILA 197,324,000/%(L)
Sub-total 222,956,455 Shares (L) 27.05%(L)
g 222,956,455 (L)

BOS Trustee Limited® BOS Trustee Limited® Trustee 197,324,000 Shares (L) 23.94%(L)
fR5EA 197,324,000/%(L)

Aali Resources Limited® Aali Resources Limited®  Interest of controlled corporation 197,324,000 Shares (L) 23.94%(L)
R EE RS 197,324,000/%(L)

Central Success® HR© Beneficial owner 197,324,000 shares (L) 23.94%(L)
ERBEA 197,324,000/%(L)

Double Grace® Double Grace® Beneficial owner 128,426,000 shares (L) 15.58%(L)
ERBEA 128,426,000/%(L)

Guidoz Limited® Guidoz Limited® Beneficial owner 110,050,000 shares (L) 13.35%(L)
ERBEA 110,050,000A%(L)

Young Wai Po, Peter® HERE Interest of controlled corporation 110,050,000 shares (L) 13.35%(L)

RS EE S

110,050,0008(L)
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Notes:

(1)

2

(3)

(4)

(%)

Save

“«

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares
of the Company or the relevant group member. The letter
“S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of the

Company or the relevant group member.

Including interests in relation to 15,219,000 share options
granted to Mr. An Yubao under the Share Option Scheme
adopted on 2 December 2013.

The entire issued share capital of Central Success is owned by
Aali Resources Limited. Aali Resources Limited is held in the
name of BOS Trustee Limited as a trustee of a discretionary
trust, of which Mr. An Yubao is the founder. Therefore, Mr. An
Yubao is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by

Central Success under the provisions of SFO.

The entire issued share capital of Double Grace is legally
and beneficially owned by Ms. Li. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Li
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Double

Grace.

The entire issued share capital of Guidoz Limited is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. Young. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Young is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Guidoz Limited.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the

Directors were not aware of any other persons/entities (other

than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who

had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company, its group members or associated

corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO

or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or Controlling Shareholders of the Company or any
of their respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group
or has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

In 2021, the Company repurchased 10,115,000 shares of its
own ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange at a total
consideration of approximately HKD36,836,000 (approximately
RMB30,151,000) and all of these repurchased shares were
cancelled on 26 January 2022. For monthly breakdown of
repurchased shares, please refer to note 24(b) to the financial
statements.

In 2021, the Company issued a total of 4,593,118 ordinary
shares pursuant to employees’ exercise of share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme (adopted on 2
December 2013) at a consideration between HKD3.28 and
HKD4.476 per share. The weighted average closing price of
the Company’s shares immediately before the dates on which
such share options were exercised is approximately HKD5.38.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeem any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporative activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in
force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section
470 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance when the
Report of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved
in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can
be found in the Corporate Governance Report contained on
pages 48 to 69 in this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Friday, 27 May
2022. Shareholders should refer to details regarding the
annual general meeting in the circular of the Company to be
issued in due course and the notice of the annual general
meeting and form of proxy accompanying thereto.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the Company
to attend the annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 27
May 2022, the Company’s register of members will be closed
from Tuesday, 24 May 2022 to Friday, 27 May 2022 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting, all completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 May 2022.

In addition, to determine shareholders’ entitlement to the final
dividend, the Company’s register of members will be closed
from Tuesday, 7 June 2022 to Friday, 10 June 2022 (both days
inclusive). In order to qualify for the entitlements to the final
dividend, all completed transfers documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on Monday, 6
June 2022.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD mEHREE
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting AEBMEAREHZ EEFBIH R VB REM
period are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. 7230 °

Save as disclosed above and in other parts of this report, as  r E X RAIREEMEBDAIREE I - RARE
at the date of this report, the Group has no significant events B » NEB W ET M FE BHEH B AREHIE
after the reporting period required to be disclosed. £IF o

AUDITORS Z BB

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, KPMG, is to be RARAFEERITZRREFFEAS £ @ BIE2
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the EZXETERTHHMESFTH ST EHETHRZ

=

Company. E
By order of the Board EREZ R

Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited BERESERRAA
An Meng Zi&

Chairman and Executive Director TERHNTESE

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022 BB 202243 A23H
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 108 to
235, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY 2B AMERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS BAEETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FIEEFFTHEEBRERMNORELE  RAHAN
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the HIGAPBREANZIRAEENEH - ELSE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These BRERMBAEEEAMEHRERTEEERE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the H#fTEREN - R TSHELEHIEHEBNE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming & °

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

ol

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FRE#FSEERA



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR E

REETER (&)

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements
WATER : RHEEZH

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(t).

FRHGE R EIRENZ2 R 1() B & F B -

The Key Audit Matter
BEETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHWETNAEEZSE

Revenue mainly comprises sales of pharmaceutical
products to a large number of distributors
throughout Mainland China.
WAEEBERAPBEAES RS EHEmHEEER -

Each year, the Group enters into standardised
agreements with its distributors setting out
the key terms of the distribution arrangements
(“Distributor Agreements”), including the terms
of delivery and policies for sales rebates and sales
returns. Purchase orders are then placed with the
Group and products are delivered to the location
designated by the distributor, at which point
the control of the goods are considered to have
been transferred to the distributor and revenue is
recognised at the point.

ERETFHEALHEE LIRE(CHRE - SR EHIILH
ZH ([REFHH]) OEZEF - BRIMMNETAR
HERMRHEERENBE - KEEFHEZEEN BE5EH
TEREE  mMERURNEHETCHE B &
miE SRR A EEE T A B HE AR E i

=7
s ©

We identified recognition of revenue from distributor
arrangements as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key performance indicators
of the Group and therefore there is an inherent
risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition of
revenue by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.
HPIRRERAKE L HA LR ABARESFE
REZBAT) BESEHP-KBERKBRIER  WEFE
BT BRI R WA RHUZEEUSE B R IR E
BRER

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue from distributor arrangements included the
following:
It aT LR K B K HE LR AN BT R 24
AT :

e assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management'’s
key internal controls which govern revenue
recognition;

o MEEBEMRERABERNBERAIEZTERR
WIT BRI

e inspecting Distributor Agreements, on a
sample basis, to understand the terms of the
sales transactions, including the terms of
delivery, applicable rebates and sales return
arrangements and to assess the Group's
revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

o WMERELHEHE  UERHEEXZINKER (2
BRAN - BRERMNMEHEREZENRR) - AR2

ZHRTLERNRETH ESERNRAERE
AE

e for a sample of revenue transactions recorded
just before and after the year end, inspecting the
related goods delivery notes, which had been
signed by the distributors as evidence of their
receipt of the goods, to assess if the related
revenue had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period on the basis of the terms of sale
as set out in the Distributor Agreements and the
terms of the purchase orders;

o BMIFRFELEBAERARNBRARGEARMS @ &
E*Efﬁﬁﬁiéu%iﬁﬂf(EEEW%?%“% ERE I
HEMNER) - AT HEBRARS E*E%zﬁﬁﬁﬁ
1% ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ1\%?X&M§J$E’Jﬂ%ﬁ HE R
HAR AR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY 2B AMERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REETER (&)

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

WATERR | RHERHE

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(1).

BRI A BRI E2 RATAE 1) B EaT R

The Key Audit Matter
BEETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNAEEZSE

for a sample of sales rebates recorded during
the year, comparing the details of the bases of
the rebate calculations and the rebate ratios
with the terms of the underlying Distributor
Agreements and comparing the rebate bases
(e.g. the sales amounts settled during the year)
to sub-ledgers and underlying bank remittances,
cheques, bills and other payment slips (where
applicable);
HFAARNHERMNEARN S - LLERMOE
LB ROR T b 2R i 5 15 B AR R A 35 78 1R R O R AR -
AR RENeEEH (NFRNEENHESR) &
DEBRLEENRITER  XF ERERIEMAMAR
Wk (@ f)

scrutinising the sales ledger after the year end
to identify significant credit notes issued and
sales returns and inspecting relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the related
adjustments to revenue had been accounted for
in the appropriate financial period in accordance
with the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards; and

BMEFERRNEE D RRARBPIE % H e KX
BB MHERE - U RREEE X AT K
ANETOHEBERBRRESEREBERITEAERNRAE
REENTBHBAAR : &

inspecting significant manual adjustments to
revenue raised during the reporting period,
enquiring of management the reasons for
such adjustments and comparing the details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
BMERBERANHRAEHOERALRAE - @F
PR A AR RE KRB SR
MRt -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR E

REETER (&)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

EZRURENAACGEBRER

Refer to note 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(j).

BRI EN L 25(a) RITGE1() B 27 BE

The Key Audit Matter
BEETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHWETNAEEZSE

As at 31 December 2021 the carrying value
of the Group’s net trade receivables totalled
RMB222,590,000, net of an allowance of
RMB80,041,000 for expected credit losses (ECLs).
R2021F 128310+ EXEE S EWFIANKREE
R RS A ARE222500,0007T  HMBRTEHEEE
1B AR #80,041,0007T °

Management measures the loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL of the trade
receivables, based on ageing of the receivables
and loss rate for trade receivables, current market
conditions and forward-looking information.
According to the experience of the Group, the loss
patterns for different customers are not significantly
different and therefore, the receivables are not
segmented for measurement of loss allowance.
ERERBERYKIBENRRLRESREFIEBEEX - &
AR AT E R RESENE S REGRIAENEERF
BHNEMEEEEEAEEEEE - RE E5E
Eh  TREFHNEEENERBETR - Bt - B
FIEEETEL D BT EEEEE -

We identified expected credit loss allowance for
trade receivables as a key audit matter because
trade receivables and loss allowance are material to
the Group and because the recognition of expected
credit losses is inherently subjective and requires
the exercise of significant management judgement.

BMRAESRERENTEREEEEREBARE
2 REASEZREFEAREEREN S£EWmMS
BEX YABRRBHREEEREFETENLE  RFEE
BEITHEEARAE -

Our audit procedures to assess the expected credit
loss allowance for trade receivables included the

following:
BT EE S REFIENFEREE B RRENETIE
FrEfEATERT

obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating
to credit control, debt collection and estimate
of expected credit losses and making related
allowances;

TR EEHEEREERET  WEKRAFTABEEEEL
TEL R RA B E A B R B SR N AR BRIV AR 5T ~ BT SGE
TERRL

evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating
the credit loss allowance with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standard;

2ERTEAENNRENE EXERETEEER
B RIBUR

obtaining an understanding on the key data
and assumptions of the expected credit loss
model adopted by the management, including
the historical default data, and the assumptions
involved in management’s estimated loss rate;
THREEREMRMIASEEBEELNNEZEIE MR
®BEBTEANBBUANEEEABERXNMET
RS R KB
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY 2B AMERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REETER (&)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

EZRURENAREEHRERE

Refer to note 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(j).

Bt & IR Wit 26(a) R A 1() B & 5T R

Flﬁ/
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BEETER BN ETFOAEEZEE

assessing the appropriateness of management’s
estimates of loss allowance by examining the
information used by management to derive such
estimates, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current market conditions and forward-

looking information;

BREHNEEESL ARG AERNER - 253
ABEEOBENEEERE LHEEEBERESRE

BRMARAEEEMELEE
BRBIRREEHGTRELE

A AHEERE

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items
in the trade receivables ageing report were
classified within the appropriate ageing category
by comparing individual items with underlying

sales invoices; and

b kit ed ttf{IE‘JlﬁﬁéﬁnyEﬁfﬁ%ﬁ‘%ﬁ CFHEE SR
WHRIRRERREANER RS E D REEENREKE
Bl R

re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2021 based on the Group’s
credit loss allowance policies.
BiE SSEENEEBBEBHEBER
F12A31 BRI EIERME -

- BHETE R 2021
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR E

REETER (&)

Assessing potential impairment of intangible assets — trademark

AR EE - BENEERE

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(j).

BRI A EBRM T 12 RATEE 1)) BB -

The Key Audit Matter
BARETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRAMETOMEEZSE

The Group acquired Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Yulin Pharmaceutical Group”) in
2016 and recognised intangible assets — trademark
with indefinite useful life arising from the acquisition.
EEER016FWEEAEMBUEEEBREELF
REWBAR (SHEA EMNERE]) - WHEIAWE
FEMEAZAERFHAERANELEE — BF -

Management allocated intangible assets -
trademark to the cash generating unit of Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group (“Relevant CGU”) and
performed impairment testing annually whether or
not there was any indication of impairment.
ERECHENEE RIS EIMHRESENRS
EABML((HARSEEEN]) - WIRFETRER
& ERESFEEARETR

Our audit procedures to assess the potential
impairment of intangible assets — trademark included
the following:

HPF BT EE - BENEERENEAEFERE
AT -

e evaluating management’s impairment assessment
model, including the identification of and the
allocation of intangible assets — trademark to the
Relevant CGU with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;

o MAEREMRAENGEL  BE2ERITETER
WARERPBETLEE - ARMEESEEHBRRCE
- VA

e evaluating the competence, experience, capability
and objectivity of the external valuer engaged
by management to perform the calculation of
the recoverable amount of intangible assets -
trademark;

e NEBEEEEMZREAHENEE —BAENATKDE
FETAHERINEEMNER - £58 e NEH
M

e challenging the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in the discounted cash flow forecast,
including future revenue, future cost of sales,
and other operating expenses, by comparing
relevant data with the financial budget which
was approved by the management, and by
comparison with historical performance of the
Relevant CGU and our knowledge of the business
of Group;

o HWWHMELMETAFRANBE AT RER(EH
BRERKBA - RRFEERAREML LR ) ZE
BE - HEARLKEBMESEREEEH ANV KR
B URKEBHEBRECEESMNE LRI ERM
H BSREEEBHRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY 2B AMERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REETER (&)

LB EE - BENEERE

Assessing potential impairment of intangible assets — trademark

FRHGE R BEREN T 12 RT3 1)) 8 5 BOF

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(j).

The Key Audit Matter
BERBETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RN ET 0 R IE % E1E

Management engaged an external valuer to assess
the recoverable amount of the Relevant CGU using
the value in use method by preparing a discounted
cash flow forecast derived from the most recent
financial forecast approved by the management
covering a five-year period.
ERECDEZB—2INEMEER - WEREREEEEME
RS ELBUNAIWESEETHG  HERREE
BEMENSESMBEN ORELFHME) B RO
RBEEMETER -

The assessment of the recoverable amount of the
Relevant CGU involves significant management
estimation and judgement, in particular in
determining the key assumptions adopted in the
cash flow forecast, which include future revenue,
future cost of sales, other operating expenses, and
the discount rate applied.
HRAReEAEUNAKNEEBENTETRERNE
BREMLEMAG - FhIEREHE S RETRRR RN
HRE - HPBEREEA - RREEXAS - Mg
B < M E R B9 HT 3R % -

We identified the assessment of impairment of
intangible assets — trademark as a key audit matter
because determining the level of impairment, if
any, involves a significant degree of management
judgement, which can be inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.
HPSFEEVEE - BRORENRBRESSE
B REAREEREKT () FREREENER
BHE  EPFHEERETHEEN YA X2ERER
MERHNTE -

e comparing the data in discounted cash flow
forecast prepared in the prior year with the current
year's performance to assess how accurate the
prior year's discounted cash flow forecast was
and making enquiries of management as to the
reasons for any significant variations identified;

o IBREFHEFRFEEREWANBBEERNFERR
NEHEEFH IR METRA S E ER - WHRLATHS
HEOEAEXRRERERESHIEN

e involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing whether the valuation
methodologies adopted by the external valuer
in the preparation of the discounted cash flow
forecast is appropriate with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards, and assessing whether discount rate
applied in the discounted cash flow forecast was
within the range adopted by other companies in
the same industry;

o ZERTHAENRE  ZTRAEEZRHHEK
1P filr M ER ik (BRI 7 A L 4T ER IR & O 28 FERI R ER AR &Y

HEFEERRE  URFETRRERETEASE

AT RERERNEMRIZE R ARANEENR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR E

REETER (&)

Assessing potential impairment of intangible assets — trademark

SFEEEE - BEEERE

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(j).

BRRRFE R EBRM T 12 RATGE 1)) BB -

The Key Audit Matter
BEETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REHETNAEEZSBE

performing a sensitivity analysis of key
assumptions, including future revenue growth
rates, future gross margins and the discount rate
applied in the discounted cash flow forecast
and considering the resulting impact on the
impairment testing and whether there was any
indicator of management bias in the selection of
these key assumptions; and

HEARBR (BREARBALRE - REENE LI
BHReRETRAPEANIFTERER) ETHREIN -
WERHLEREIREENTERIEZSBRR
BRREREFEEMNERERENTR : &

considering the disclosures in the financial
statements in respect of management’s
impairment assessments of intangible assets —
trademark allocated to the Relevant CGU with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

S2ERITEAENNRE - ERUBHRRTARER
BHOEEEBAReEFEVNNEBLEE — BIREST
MR HE KR &+
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY 2B AMERE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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EEFHHMERRR - HMERBENERE
BANZHER - BIBEREHBERER LEM

R BRI RS -

BAEEEMBRRNERL TREEMESR
BT T EREEMERBEREMTANERE

o
HARMEBAMFREOES - RMANEEL
MERMES - EULBET  ERRLELRT
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EAFEEAEBRREFEEAHRRIANIE
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EEFEERERRL - RAFTEHREZEE -
FESE  BFPRAERSRS -

EERGaMBRRAKENEE
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BEEARBE(RARGRIDNEBEELREREE
M ENEAMBRE  YHERR/EZERM
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBERE

BREMHET RSB RRARENEE

BAMBER  RUGAMBHRABBELTFA
HARFFRERMEBMNERNHREARGEE
RiE - YHABRERMERNZBEI RS - HM
EERBBBRESE - RILAIN  BAORED
AAEEMAR - P AIRARENARAET - Y
EREMATRREIFIBEREE -

BERERSKFORE  BTERERRER
BRI ERETNES  EX -EXERRATHE
AR RE IR o SR RPRAL A A R ERFF Sk SE AR 512 -
MR EEHEMEBKELLERAETESS
B 75 3R 3R {50 PR & KRR B 7% SR 3R PIT 4 HH O AR
E - AIBRRERRAERIEERX -

ERBEFEEENETENERES  BMAE
BT EXRAE R TEXEREE - BTN

— BRI EERRTFRERME RS W
BHREAGFEERERRANER - ReT &
HITEEF AR ELRR - ARER
FRMEENEEE  ERRMAERN
Eif - RMFFRIBES R EBR - B - &
BER - ERER - SOEBRABDIESZ
£ Rt REERARFMEHNEAE
AR H R B = O R BE 3R IR R A RR T B BN
R B A SRR A R o

TRREEH A A ERES T E ERAHE
EMESEF - EALFY SRERNIE
HEBERMERER -

- FRMEEEFTRASITEENRELRIEL
SRHMEFTMERREN S EME -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Li Shiu Chung.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE2021F 12 A31 B IEFE (AARKIITR)

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
Kzt AR®T ARET T
Revenue KA 2 2,044,660 1,752,830
Cost of sales SHE KA (517,324) (431,159)
Gross profit EF 1,527,336 1,321,671
Other income E bz A 3 63,384 58,826
Distribution costs PANi=ID N (620,041) (542,930)
Administrative expenses THHAX (279,956) (203,067)
Reversals/(recognition) of impairment  #&[E /(#R) B85 R EM
loss on trade and other receivables FEMGRIB HY R (BB 18 16 & 25(a) 18,043 (29,363)
Profit from operations MR 708,766 605,137
Finance costs B & A AR 4(a) (12,905) (21,401)
Profit before taxation BAER 4 695,861 583,736
Income tax FrisHi 5(a) (108,744) (101,993)
Profit for the year FREA 587,117 481,743
Attributable to: BT AL B4 :
— Equity shareholders of the — AR A EERR
Company 590,172 498,788
— Non-controlling interests — FEIE R i (3,055) (17,045)
Profit for the year FRER 587,117 481,743
Earnings per share (RMB yuan) BRERN(ARER) 8
- Basic — HAK 0.74 0.61
~ Diluted — e 0.73 0.61

The notes on pages 115 to 235 form part of these financial

statements. Details of dividends payable to equity

shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the

year are set out in note 24(c).

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FRE#FSEERA
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
RERmREMZEER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BHZE2021F12 A31 B ILFE AARKBITR)

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTF T ARETTT

Profit for the year FREF 587,117 481,743
Other comprehensive income for the year HETHEEHIEZTERZN
that may be reclassified subsequently to FREMEENE :

profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of financial B B AFEREINER Y

statements of operations outside the BRIk MO BE A= R
mainland China 163 (1,127)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERZEZE 587,280 480,616
Attributable to: BT ALHER:
— Equity shareholders of the Company — AR AR 590,335 497,661
— Non-controlling interests — FEIE AR M (3,055) (17,045)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEHEUWNEHEEE 587,280 480,616

The notes on pages 115 to 235 form part of these financial HF115EEF 2358 2 Wi BZEHBHREANAE

statements. R EB (D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%;Ut>R‘%%

as at 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)

R2021FE12 31 B (LAARETR)

2021 2020
20215 20204
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
it AR®F ARBFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties "EYZE 9 15,620 16,121
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB R 10 724,633 675,773
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 11 133,815 123,675
Intangible assets mILEE 12 341,664 371,423
Other prepayments E M IER SR 14 44,318 45,679
Deferred tax assets REBIBE E 23(c) 46,859 58,885
Total non-currentassets _ FR®EERE 1,306,909 1,291,556
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7B 15 243,035 227,374
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b el F I8 16 369,567 458,426
Prepayments AR FIE 14,584 32,624
Deposits with banks with original REIBAR BB =(EA K
maturity date over three months RITIFK 230,000 =
Restricted cash R HE e 17 2,320 =
Cash and cash equivalents He MReESEER 17 2,196,323 1,940,273
Total currentassets = #ABEESE 3,055,829 2,658,697
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables H 5 N E bR RIE 18 750,214 709,712
Loans and borrowings B ER 19 599,302 549,414
Lease liabilities HERE 20 3,124 =
Deferred income JRIEUS 75 21 2,231 1,629
Current taxation BNHARR 3% 23(a) 2,536 71,108
Total current liabilites ==~~~ #&&8f&#® 1,357,407 1,331,863
Netcurrentassets = *®EEFE 1,698,422 1,326,834
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARS 3,005,331 2,618,390



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
nv_\éﬁji%ﬂﬁ)‘ﬂr%%

as at 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)

M2021E12 A31 8 (LAARKTIR)

2021 2020
20215 20204
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
it ARET T ARBFIT
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 20 8,547 =
Deferred income EIEUS 75 21 16,700 15,629
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE 23(c) 69,303 86,263
Total non-current liabilites  ~~~~ *n®&&f#® 94550 . 101,892
Net assets EEFE 2,910,781 2,516,498
Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital [N 24(d) 64,800 64,424
Reserves i 24(e) 2,552,905 2,155,943
Total equity attributable to equity RATEERREGEREEE
shareholders of the Company 2,617,705 2,220,367
Non-controlling interests =R FE 293,076 296,131
Total equity R 2,910,781 2,516,498

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors 202293 23 B EE = BHL/ERIRETE -
on 23 March 2022.

An Meng Li Qian
T BB

Chairman Vice Chairlady, Chief Executive Officer
T EIFE - AAEH

The notes on pages 115 to 235 form part of these financial HF115EEF 2358 2 Wi BZEHBHREANAE

statements. R EB (D ©
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE#HE @
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HZE2021F12 A31 B IEFE (AARETR)

wh

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HZE2021F12 A31 B IEFE (AARETR)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BZE2021F 12 A31 B IEFE (AARKIITR)

2021 2020
20215 20204
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
HtaF ARBT R ARBTIT
Operating activities KRETTE
Cash generated from operations KRB TR S 17(b) 907,787 982,376
PRC income tax paid BERPBEATEEH 23(a) (134,683) (115,318)
PRC dividend withholding tax paid B AR B AR B TR0 AL 23(a) (47,567) —
Net cash generated from operating E&EBFIEREFHE
activitlies e 725,537 e
Investing activities KREEE
Interest received 2 UWH B 31,943 27,888
Payment for deposits with banks with  REIFHBBE={EA K
original maturity date over three H|ITHERIT K
month (350,000) -
Proceeds from deposits with banks with R 2|8 B #8:8 = 1@ A #E1T
original maturity date over three RTS8
months 120,000 -
Payment for restricted cash SR BRI (2,320) =
Payment for purchase of property, plant B E ¥ - BME & RERTE
and equipment (98,250) (48,703)
Payment for intangible assets X R A ERRIE - (5,000)
Proceeds received from disposal of BERHEME - BE K
property, plant and equipment RIEFTS A 322 112
Net cash used in investing activities RREBMARERE  (298,308) (25703)
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans HIBIRITE KNSR 17(c) 295,716 263,757
Repayments of bank loans RITE BN 17(c) (232,878) (237,924)
Proceeds from shares issued under BRI T BT R G
share option scheme FriSsIR 24(d)(ii) 14,567 =
Dividends paid to equity shareholders B4R &l#E AR AL E
of the Company (198,078) (131,491)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BTS2 ERELD 17(c) (2,930) -
Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ BEftf& 2 FIEZH 17(c) (343) =
Finance costs paid BB E KA 17(c) (12,562) (21,401)
Payment for repurchase of shares fERI B2 B AR Bl 8H Y
which were subsequently cancelled B& 15 B9 FRIE
by the Company 24(b) (30,151) (152,745)
Net cash used in financing activities MEZEBAAREFE (1668589 (279.804)
Net increase in cash and cash ReERBLEEBEREMFE
equivalents 260,573 561,551
Cash and cash equivalents at MB1EHNRER
1 January He&%EER 1,940,273 1,383,232
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXESEHNTE
changes (4,523) (4,510)
Cash and cash equivalents at M12A31ANEER
31 December RE%EER 2,196,323 1,940,273
The notes on pages 115 to 235 form part of these financial HF115EEF 2358 2 Wi BZEHBREANAE
statements. RKER 5 o

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERE#HXSEEFRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”),

all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial

which collective term includes

Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”), rounded to
the nearest thousand, which is the functional
currency of the subsidiaries carrying out the
principal activities of the Group.

fRE SRR M EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

1 BEASHEE
(a) EHREH

ZEMBRRDREMEERNE
B BHREER (BB BHREE
Al mRE - EEAGRBREES
A ([BEEHEMAE]) R
o B0 P P B0 {8 5! & 78 B 7 ¥
R FAGER ([FEEEE
Bl R ARBEARER
AIRBEAC(RARRDD MR BERE -
ZEVBRRNTEEEMERS
PIERARRES EmARA (T EWR
B &0 B AR R RS - AN BATER
B ARG ET BRI T XHEE

ERGFMAGEEME TRAE
BERITE A E R AR A HIR
ERANBTEY GRS ENER
Ko M1 (c) N A S A IR A
SEERYCREZEFMHRRAR
MEXERZEERMEHNER
SETBREBRHEER -

(b) MBHRRNWERERE

HZE2021F12 A31 B IEFE W4
EUMERERBEARTLENBA
Al (AT REE]) -

FEMBHRRAARE ([ARY%])
25 UHNBEFEATT - AR
BERNEAKBIEXBHOMNBE L
AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

1

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FERE#Z

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 28.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these
financial statements for the current accounting
period:

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16,
Interest rate benchmark reform — phase 2

HKFRS 16,
Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond
30 June 2021

° Amendments to

None of these amendments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior years have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

fRE SRR M EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

1 EXREHEE(E)

B BEZE
AEBEERAE R Z S5
BREA T HELSMASHE
B BF IS ER] (EFTA)

(c)

. BEPEREEREIWR -
BB ERE3N - BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEEAIN - UAREBIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

Investment property

Investment properties are land and buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(i)) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property.

fRE SRR M EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

1

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

()

Investment property (Continued)

Investment properties are measured initially
at cost. The cost of a purchased investment
property comprises its purchases price and
any direct attributable expenditures. Investment
properties are accounted for using the cost
model and stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 1(j)). The cost
of investment property, less its estimated residual
value and accumulated impairment losses, is
depreciated using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful lives as follows.

o Land use rights 57 years

° Buildings 6 years
Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(t)(iii).

Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion

- Machinery and

equipment 5 - 20 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Office equipment 5 years

- Right-of-use assets are depreciated over
the period of the lease term

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise
all costs that are directly attributable to
research and development activities or that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such
activities. Because of the nature of the Group’s
research and development activities, the criteria
for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development
stage of the project when the remaining
development costs are immaterial. Hence both
research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

1

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 1(j)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which

it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for
use or date of acquisition, whichever is shorter
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Patents 8 — 13 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively
from the date of change and in accordance with
the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses

whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A

contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange

for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease

component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and
accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as

a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

1

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(M)

Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are
not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured
at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 1(f) and 1(j)

(ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(@)

As a lessee (Continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from
the right-of-use assets in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to
investments in debt securities carried at
amortised cost (see notes 1(t)(iv) and 1(j)
(i)). Any difference between the initial
fair value and the nominal value of the
deposits is accounted for as additional
lease payments made and is included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way,
a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

1

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FERE#Z

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(M)

Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a change in the scope of a
lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (‘lease modification”) that is
not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are rent concessions
that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of HKFRS 16 Leases.
the Group has taken advantage of

In such cases,

the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative variable lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers
the rent concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments that
are due to be settled within twelve months

after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative
The

rental income from operating leases is

stand-alone selling price basis.

recognised in accordance with note 1(t)

(iii).

When the Group is an intermediate
lessor, the sub-leases are classified as
a finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset
If the head

lease is a short-term lease to which the

arising from the head lease.

Group applies the exemption described in
note 1(i)(i), then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

()

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FERE#Z

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the
financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents
and trade receivables and other
receivables).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:

current effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate

used in the measurement of the
lease receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
lease receivables are always measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MR M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FERE#Z

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any
is held);
days past due. The Group considers both

or (ii) the financial asset is 90

quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue

cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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1

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’'s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying

amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 1(t)(iv) is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset or lease receivable is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MR M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

1

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(ii)

(Continued)
Write-off policy (Continued)

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised
as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss
in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

investment property;

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

= intangible assets; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A
portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (for example,
head office building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating
unit if the allocation can be done
on a reasonable and consistent
basis, or to the smallest group of
cash-generating units if otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

1

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1))
(Continued)
(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in

respect of goodwill is not reversed.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR

n

1

a

]

EXREHBE(E)

() FEFEREEREGE)

(i) RftFnBEZERE (&)

HERRER R

HEEXEMBRS
ELXEMNREER
B E A Y Bl 5 BE
AR B s P R E
BiE - pIREELE
I ERHREBSRES
BRDEANRLDD
REZBReELEN
(SEBARIAARI) By ESA
FEEREE  HER
Fo PR D 5% AL (3%
BRAER) REME
EMREE HEXE
ENKREENEHE
EREAERI A A ER
EHERA (8L
) gERER(D

REEE) T -

B EIRERR

EBAINNEEM
= WAREE R
B & BH AEr R E
MEE - BB EIRE
B8 - BRAEEARE
BEEBEETT R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets

(iii)

(Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
(Continued)

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see note 1(j)(i)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim
period relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

AAREIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FERE#Z

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, in the
process of production for such sale or in the
form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of

services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

}FH
Ji
at
b

!

1

ol

EXREHBE(E)

(k)

K

FERRABEHKBRTRIEL
T MABEEHENEEREPHIMA
MRRERERTEAEEERELR
RERBHEANEE -

FE TSRS & ] 3 FE R BRIK
EIER

B 7R TR IR S AR AR A B
BREMBREKRAR - BN RS
FEREFRBER A LRETR
BIRFrEE M E AR o

AR FESERTEKBERETH
fAEt B ERAET TR A RT3
SRR ©

EELFER  ZEFFENEEE
EEREREBERANRAER R
F e

1% 17 & MURLZE R B3R 3 E A BREE AN
PrBFE BRI E LR MR EE
K H R RER R RIS o (R B HUR
B fr] 93¢ [B] & BR T 00 585 () 3 A HA
ERATFERXEERRD



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 1(t)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for expected
credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 1(j)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional (see note 1(m)).

The current business model of the Group does
not lead to any recognition of contract assets.

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 1(t)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note

1(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant
financing component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method (see note 1(t)).

The amount of contract liabilities are not
individually sufficiently material and therefore
is not separately presented in the statement
of financial position. Relevant information
is collectively presented in trade and other
payables (see note 18).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

1

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see
note 1(1)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction price. Trade
receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
All receivables are subsequently are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method and including an allowance for credit
losses (see note 1(j)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set
out in note 1(j)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at
invoice amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially

at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent

to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings

are stated at amortised cost using the effective

interest method. Interest expense is recognised

in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy

for borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).

Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contribution to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred, except to the
extent that they are included in the cost
of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MR M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

1

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the
binomial tree model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it
is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly
to retained profits).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iiij)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination

benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAIN - LAREIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(r) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ%%I}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEHEBEI - AARKIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EREFEEK(E)

(Continued)

(r)  Income tax (Continued) (r)y FiEH(E)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, BIEATR IR 8 8 SR FE R TR A R I
and movements therein, are presented separately 2PHZEIFERETTEE -
from each other and are not offset. Current tax fisd 2N B S A LR B B OA T 3R BT
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, R LA BN HA 75 78 & A 1K 85 B HI AR
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax HBE - WARS L THIEA -
liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the AIRNEAR IR & E A KR DR A
legally enforceable right to set off current tax {8 - ARGEFETR IR E & ] K SHIE T
assets against current tax liabilities and the HMIBRE :

following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and -  WREHHEEEHAR
liabilities, the Company or the Group RRBRAK BRI FEE
intends either to settle on a net basis, or BHE  FARFRZAEE
to realise the asset and settle the liability RiBEZAE X

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and - HAEEHAEERARE
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes MUEEEERABERR—H
levied by the same taxation authority on BB RLIA T Hh —IARUK
either: BPTEHAE A

- the same taxable entity; or - F—ERNER : 3

= different taxable entities, which, in each - TR ERTER - MtH

future period in which significant amounts EREERREERYE
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are ARBEEEREARBEFTESE
expected to be settled or recovered, R FIEE IR E B Al A
intend to realise the current tax assets and B HE A - RFREEE
settle the current tax liabilities on a net BRI R E KB E A
basis or realise and settle simultaneously. HMEBRE  HAFZRZAE

ENBEZAE -

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERE#HXSEEFRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to

settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
the
provision of services or the use by others of

when it arises from the sale of goods,

the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

fRE SRR M EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

1 EXREHEE(E)

BERIARAE

EAKESARREBEFRAK
BEERMEERT - METZER
RATRET 21 H & B M e LAl
AISEMfhEtE - BERSEME o
TENEHEBEAR - BH IR
TEEBEEENRXHRETIER

(s)

B BN R e AT s R
HE BT EMER  BES
ERRXARBERE  RIFLCENZE
T E AT RE MR o ATRE A B
(EFERER —BHIAERKE
R IR S A IR HERR) TREREL
REEWE - FRIFLEN AL
AREERIEE - BIZE R o

1) WA R E A
RAEBE B EEBKBRFT - ~EE
BEEEE M « RERGHAEM
AETREREFERAAEEEENE
EH D EEUA o

WA E m sl RIS I B IR A &

ERBARUDRNAZERESRE
(TEFERRF=ZJTURNZES

BRERTEPRIAAEABRE
REERER - WATBREER
FHEMFER - YEHREMES
40 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

1

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value
of the amount receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer,
and interest income is accrued separately under
the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The
Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not
adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the
goods.

(iij)  Services income

Revenue from services rendered is
recognised in profit or loss at the time of
provision of the service is completed.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR

n

1

a

]

EXREHBE(E)

®

LONES L ONG-)

MEHHAERNEFRHES12EAN
FEARMEFNZNREAKILD - Y
WARERSENRBEE - LE
ARERZFMEREER S P R
BHTIR IR - mAE M R R R
BERMEEZEBRE - WAEKHNEE
MASERESEABMEFNSNHE
B ER D - AIRIRZ & AR MUK
ABEREBEEBRANEEZENBERR
MEF SRS - NEEFHEEM
RS EAE 155 FE6IEFTNE
BREESE  WEAWBERA12
& B 2k LA R T 3t B K B A 4B AR 30
AR EFAERE -

BRAAREBARE MU AR K

REE—FHBWT

() #HEHm
WATIREFPHA RERE

O gt =7
DDHTEE@I@\ °

(i)  RBWA

KB 1R AR 2 W as 1R
ARG ER R B R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss
in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied
to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset
(see note 1(j)(i)).

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB -

AAREIITR)

1 BEXEFBE(E)

() WARHMEA (E)

(iii)

(iv)

BEHEHHE KA

REHER T HEKHES K
A T3 E HR PR 2= /9 H A
A AEFBEDHTANEBR
R MEMEEMEET R
REEREEEEMGH &S
MR RIBRON o« AR T45
BN R A ZHE T
R EBREE & 5T BRI R R S
YA

F 2 g 25

A B W s B BR A R OX
EREMEEZEFHIA
7 fh ET R RIR & WA ZERE T
REcRMEERAREEH
RRFTHER o BLIRE HACA
S AR EF AR MEEK
st E(AIEHL2R) AL
BELREERENSREE
mE - BERNEAREEN
FREAE - RHEREERE

MERAETS - BBHE
FA 78 7 0 8 5 P AS (ED R

HAERERERE) (RHE
130)(0) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV—\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ‘%El}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAIN - LAREIITR)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EAENKE(Z)
(Continued)
(t)  Revenue and other income (Continued) (t) WA REAMKA (&)
(v)  Government grants v) BFHEE

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group

EALGEREASEKS
U B B 8 BY 3 & 8 T EL Y
WIRGE - BB F
R IEARIR AT ARER

will comply with the conditions attaching to RIEHEREEMREERNF
them. Grants that compensate the Group Y HBI R E LR R —

for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an

HifR A R i 1B a5 M FERR
RN - FEREBEEK
7R B0 1 BN 1) 2 T R A A AT
A HERZBEEENA](E
AEHNBEAERSED

asset are initially recognised as deferred WA e
income and subsequently recognised
as other income in profit or loss over the
useful life of the assets.
(u) Translation of foreign currencies (u) IIEBRE

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates

results of foreign operations are

approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into
Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the

Group’s parent.

e P BHRRMEE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

1 EXREHEE(E)

SNEBRE (F)

BINEHERERRNR S B HER
HSNEERBENERBES AR
% o MR KRIAR AIIRBREHIR
ERHBTIINEEXBED[AR
%o MEANELZRERNEM
WP RER - WX EmARE
HREEPBILRA -

(u)

[CENDZN
e AR L EE R S -

(v)

BEAL

(a) HEUATERT  RALHE
MHRFEKBBAEEE R

-
gk -

(w)

(i) TSI HREEGAR
c3LIE

pig

I

(i) HAEEBEAFS
a1

Iy

BRASESAEET
NRAEANETEEEEK

5 o

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ%%I}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEHEBEI - AARKIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXREHBE(E)
(Continued)
(w) Related parties (Continued) (w) BEEAL(E)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of (b) HEUATEMMBRT  XEE

the following conditions applies: BN E B B

(i) The entity and the Group are (i) ZERBIKAEENR
members of the same group (which A —S&EHKE QT
means that each parent, subsidiary (BN RAR - B A
and fellow subsidiary is related to EISEELG]- NSRS
the others). B BLH {th 75 5 ) o

(i) ~ One entity is an associate or joint (i) XERBEZEEN
venture of the other entity (or an BERRHAERA
associate or joint venture of a (_5273** BBAKE
member of a group of which the NEINEEENKE
other entity is a member). NRAENBERRHA

NS DI

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of (i) MREBHAER—ZF
the same third party. =FREERA e

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a (ivy, XEBRE=7ERE
third entity and the other entity is an MEEARIME &
associate of the third entity. RAGZFE=ZFTERE

BB N A o

(v)  The entity is a post-employment (v) ZEBAKREENNE
benefit plan for the benefit of NEBE A BB ER
employees of either the Group or an REREMEMRL
entity related to the Group. BBERL IR B AT A

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly (vi) ZEBX(a)mHE5
controlled by a person identified in AT HEHI S Z KFE
(a). il o

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has (vii) B (a)(i) PRI AL
significant influence over the HZERAEATE
entity or is a member of the key NHBHERE (N
management personnel of the entity ERNEAF)EE
(or of a parent of the entity). EEEKE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

(x)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(Continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’'s

parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

fRE SRR M EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

1 EXREHBE(E)

BEAL(E)
(b)

(w)

[ 7N 52 [ =X [F) AN SR
ZERARHETIEE
BABRBGZEEBX
HPT 8 S B 2 AR AT

BAF -

(viii)

¥ AT R RBER 8 AL
HEBRSHENTHER
EATHEHRAALEE
HOREERE -

7RI &

BREDH R BRERMEZBEZ D
HENERE DR AEEZEE
BRWENEDEERMFHRE
MEPAFEESRHTREEAR
TR R 15 B AL E B InIAE R o

(x)

A BHmREME - 26 AR5
BERREDE  BRIFZFNRER
BOEERE - BEERMRBIE
B 4AEIFRUE  TPEA
BETE ~ 70 $H 2 am s BB (R AR A FAT {2 1
MDA EERENMEE ST EAE
W e HERINERNEE DB E
REPDAFIRE - QIAEITAGE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ%%I}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEHEBEI - AARKIIR)

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 2 WARD RS
(a) Revenue (a) WA
The principal activities of the Group are the REBNFEXEREMEE KH
manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical B AEASEEEXEBRHE—F
products. Further details regarding the Group's FEHEERKIEE2(D) ©

principal activities are disclosed in note 2(b).

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REBEEFFIL 26 MK AZE
customers by major products is as follows: EEMZIOTFAT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

Kidney medicines Btz 1,364,683 1,165,613
Contrast medium A 140,752 135,553
Orthopedics medicines EREE2Y) 114,316 138,818
Dermatologic medicines 52 B By 108,725 52,156
Hepatobiliary medicines FFiEZed 67,400 36,078
Gynaecology and paediatrics drugs [R5 %) 205,793 180,659
Others HAh 42,991 43,953
2,044,660 1,752,830
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REHEE PRI A A2 WARBA
customers by the timing of revenue recognition RZEERERMET IS 2D FD
and by geographic markets is disclosed in notes A T R EE2(b) (1) & 2(b)(iii) °

2(b)(i) and 2(b)(iii) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

e P BHRRMEE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

2 WAR DI E (&)

(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) WA#E)
Revenue from major customers contributing over KEEBAEERABEI0%ME
10% of the revenue of the Group, is as follows, EEFPHBA (BRAXKERE
including sales to entities which are known to the HZERPXAREN 2 EREL
Group to be under common control with these EVEHE) D
customers:
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Customer A EFH 509,887 493,281
Customer B gEZ 244,159 261,542
As at 31 December 2021, full amount of the 20216128310 - XEERE
transaction price under the Group's existing BHETRZERNZEFARER
contracts was recognised as revenue. RUA o
(b) Segment reporting (b) HPBHE

The Group manages its businesses by product
lines. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has

presented the following two reportable segments.

this
segment manufactures and sells modern

= Consun Pharmaceutical Segment:

Chinese medicines and medical contrast
medium.

this
segment manufactures and sells traditional

- Yulin Pharmaceutical Segment:

Chinese medicines.

AEBREMREREER - A&
B 25 THMERTI2HDHE - B
5T AR SN B E R R FHERER
BRmAAEESRHTREREAR
ABREEHN I AER—E -

-  FREHENE HoRAEE
KIHEBR AR R N B AR
R LLA

- EMRESE: WoREE
K SHEE] %EPEZ*? °

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE®mE @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
nﬁéﬂﬁ%ﬁEEWﬁi

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAIN - LAREIITR)
2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 2 WARDE®mE (2)
(Continued)

(b) ZEE/E(E)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) DEFE BERRE
For the purposes of assessing segment ATk 3 BB R IR M AE 7 B
performance and allocating resources DEER  AEEKHTH
between segments, the Group’s most %f@/\gjﬁﬁurgiﬁﬁt
senior executive management monitors the o EPREIGEIZELS -
results, assets and liabilities attributable to ﬁé&ﬁ{; :

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FERE#Z

each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Segment assets include all tangible,
intangible assets and current assets with
the exception of deferred tax assets.
Segment liabilities include trade creditors,
accruals, bills payable and lease liabilities
attributable to the manufacturing and sales
activities of the individual segments and
bank borrowings managed directly by the
segments with the exception of current
taxation and deferred tax liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference
to sales generated by those segments

DHEEBEMBEANT
%ﬁ%&m@é?’ﬁL
MIBEERIGRIN - DEAE
BREESSMEEEENE
Bl 3 BRAE EE M SH B R BB AL
MEZENER B E
B ENEEREEREN
MRITIE R - mBVEAFE 3 &
EIETIA B B RIFRSD o

WARRXTIR2RZED
MEEMHERRFAX LXK
F BRIGEETT BN

and the expenses incurred by those EENRAX > EEER

segments or which otherwise arise from 7B o

the depreciation or amortisation of assets

attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment RAREHRD BEHNOERR

profit is gross profit. The Group’s senior EH - AEEEXREEEE
REAB Y BBARERD

executive management is provided with
segment information concerning segment
revenue and gross profit.

}FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 2 WAR D EBEHE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) AEB®E (&)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) DHRE BERAMEHE)
(Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts TXHIIREREFFTNLZ
with customers by the timing of revenue B H) 2 M AR ATER 2 B
recognition, as well as information Bz UREE2021
regarding the Group's reportable FR2020%12A31BLLF
segments as provided to the Group’s EH/AEERRFED AR
most senior executive management for AMAAKRERSITHE S
the purposes of resource allocation and ABRENEAEETT 2R
assessment of segment performance for HZEHY -
the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 is set out below:
Consun Pharmaceutical Yulin Pharmaceutical
Segment Segment Total
BEREAD NEEL st
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
0215 2020 0215 020% 1% 000%
For the year ended 31 December RNB’000 RMB000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000
HENRYALEE ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Disaggregated by timing of RUARRZBE A5
revenue recognition
Point in time BRE 1,732,983 1,499,117 31,677 53713 2,044660 1752830
Reportable segment revenue T2RAPRA
Revenue from extemal customers — RESMIEEHMA 1732983 1499117 3677 3713 2004660 1752830
Reportable segment profit EEGEYS]
Gross profit T 137,398 1,215,130 155,938 106541 1,527,336 1,321,671
Interest income from bank deposits ~ R{TFAFISHE 38,142 26,560 1,106 1328 39,248 27,888
Interest expense SRR 11,784 17,978 1,121 3423 12,905 21401
Depreciation and amortsation ERfEREH
for the year 24,282 23,642 48,707 48,153 72,989 7,79
(Reversals)recognition of (BE)/BRESE
impairment losses
- trade and other receivables - BAREMENSE (1,289) (1,401) (16,760) 30,764 (18,043) 29,363
Reportable segment assets NERIPEE 2008311 2391948 1504335 1633707 4,352,646 4025655
Reportable segment liabilities ~ T2#AHEE 1,000,841 779,380 416,044 631201 1416885 1410671
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

2 WARDER®RE (&)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) AEB®E (&)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) A 235585 R A
profit
2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTT
Reportable segment gross profit R B8 AREEINBRE 2 7]
derived from the Group’s ERDEEF
external customers 1,527,336 1,321,671
Other income (note 3) EUA (F5E3) 63,384 58,826
Distribution costs 2 EHB AR (620,041) (542,930)
Administrative expenses THAX (279,956) (203,067)
Reversals/(recognition) of R (R 5 REA
impairment loss on trade and FEWCRIE Y R (E B 18
other receivables 18,043 (29,363)
Finance costs (note 4(a)) BE KA (FiisE4(a)) (12,905) (21,401)
Consolidated profit before 4R E T A
taxation 695,861 583,736

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERE#

EEEBRAA



2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(ii)

e P BHRRMEE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

2 WAR DI E (&)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEEHE(&F)
Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) A 2#7 5855692
profit (Continued) ®(E)

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETTT

Assets
Reportable segment assets
Elimination of inter-segment

BgE
EFRHHBEE 4,352,646 4,025,655
5 2 ] FE U R IE 7 8

EI

receivables (36,767) (134,287)
4,315,879 3,891,368
Deferred tax assets (note 23(c)) IELEFIIEEE (HzE23(c)) 46,859 58,885
Consolidated total assets RAEBEE 4,362,738 3,950,253
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBFIT

Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities AIZ2/HrHaE 1,416,885 1,410,671

Elimination of inter-segment

7 B PRI FE 5 R IR 2 $ $8

payables (36,767) (134,287)
1,380,118 1,276,384

Current taxation (note 23(a)) BVERF 3Kk (B 5E23(a)) 2,536 71,108
Deferred tax liabilities (note 23(c))IEF 8 & & (Ki7E23(c)) 69,303 86,263
Consolidated total liabilities o e U=k 1,451,957 1,433,755
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAIN - LAREIITR)
2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 2 WARDEH®E ()
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(b) EE|E(E)

(iii)  Geographic information (iii) HEEZE
Analysis of the Group's revenue and R AL EII% M4 & F
results as well as analysis of the Group's 2R B R B A B2 on A EE B
carrying amount of segment assets BIEH - AL EIRM R T 5
and additions to property, plant and EUAREBBAREEZ D
equipment by geographical market o ARAEEDHEER
has not been presented as 99% of the EEEME - BEREER
Group’s operating profit is derived from B2 e
activities of manufacturing and sales of
pharmaceutical products in the PRC.
3 OTHER INCOME 3 HAi WA
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
Government grants (i) AT BN (1)
— Unconditional subsidies — (&1 Bh 2,693 5782
— Conditional subsidies (note 21) — B iFHmEL (FHFE21) 4,237 1,696
Net rental income from investment BEYFFHSBA
properties 1,261 1,117
Interest income ) B Yz 39,248 27,888
Loss on disposal of property, plant BB  BEREENEE
and equipment (1,990) (244)
Net exchange gains JFIE 5 ES 11,326 27,366
Others HAh 6,609 (4,779)
63,384 58,826
REHESEEGRAA

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 OTHER INCOME (Continued)

()

Government grants represent various forms of
incentives and subsidies granted to the Group by
the local government authorities in the PRC.

Unconditional subsidies

The entitlements to certain government
grants amounting to RMB2,693,000 (2020:
RMB5,782,000) were unconditional. They
were funds to subsidise the operating
expenses of the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group during the current or prior years.

Conditional subsidies

The remaining government grants were
conditional government grants and initially
recorded as deferred income. The amount
of conditional government grants charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2021
was RMB4,237,000 (2020: RMB1,696,000)
(see note 21).

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a)

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

3 EHftA (&)

(i) BRFMELET BT RFHER T
REB R EEE) K AHAE o

- BEFHER

A 78 A {6 {4 AT /0 B B 5
B AARK2,693,000
7L (2020%F : AR
5,782,0007L) - HRE&EE)
RNEEEFREBEANE R
AEESBEFENLES
)EH o

- BEHELE

H BN B A8 G4BT
e REYPIRELTER AL
IR o BIEHBN MBI ET A
HZE2021F12 31 HIEF
EHReBmRrNESER/AR
4,237,000 (20204 :
AR#1,696,0007T) ( BHt
F£21) °

4 B AT A
BADR T TDINERIA T S HEFH -

Finance costs (a) ®WEREK
2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTIT
Interest on bank loans (note 17(c)) RITEFFL (H5E17(c)) 9,017 13,243
Interest expenses on discounted MIREERNEFREZ (MzE17(c))
bills (note 17(c)) 3,545 8,158
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGERMNE (MiE17(c))
(note 17(c)) 343 =
12,905 21,401
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEREIN  UARBEZITR)
4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 4 BADEF (2)
(b)  Staff costs (b) EBIRAK
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Salaries, wages, bonuses and e IE - e RER
benefits 331,093 265,614
Contributions to defined contribution 55t FUGRRET 25
retirement schemes 11,492 6,164
Equity settled share-based LA RS e 45 & 30 DARR (7 3 EL i
transactions: MRS :
Share Option Scheme (note 22(a))  BEMHETE] (Hi:E22(a)) 20,003 12,165
Share Award Scheme (note 22(b)) B Z&Eh=t &I (MizE22(b)) 3,408 =
365,996 283,943

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
participate in defined contribution retirement
schemes organised by the local government
authorities, to which the PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the eligible employees’ salaries.
The local government authorities are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees. The Group has no other
obligations for payments of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of employees other than
the contributions described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and not previously covered by
the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 30,000. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately, there is no forfeited
contributions that may be used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contribution.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERE#HXSEEFRAA

R ERHERSEHRA LR -
o B Y B R B 2 B 3t 75 R T A R
AR R R HEFORIRET S - Rt
TENERARARRAERERS
TR A DL AT EEL K - i1
TREHEAERRKEENE
BEARSHEE - B Ll gtRsn
AEEYEEMEEXNEENR
R E R KIREH) o

AEENRBEF LRI ERESFT
gRp - REFEERBIRATXE
K5 58 B 5 8 MR IR ET B R IE
ZRE KERBIERTESTE
(MamEstd]) - 2ESFE /R
EHRFURIRGE > BELERAE
2o REBRESHE BEIRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 4 BADRF (&)
(c) Other items (c) HftEH

2021 2020

20215 20204
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BeE  AR%TR ARETET

Depreciation and amortisation MEREEER

charge

— investment properties —EME 9 501 530

- property, plant and equipment — ¥ « HE & R&R{E 10 38,268 38,484

- right-of-use assets —ERAEEE 11 4,461 3,133

— intangible assets —EBREE 12 29,759 29,648
Auditor’'s remuneration ZE RN 5

— audit services — FeT RIS 2,300 2,100

- non-audit services — TR 500 450
(Reversals)/recognition of (Bm),/ #RE S KREM

impairment loss on trade and JE R IE Y R (B T 18

other receivables (18,043) 29,363
Leases charges HEEH 11 3,935 3,819
Research and development TR AR (i)

costs (i) 102,160 83,657
Cost of inventories (ii) 15 & AN (i) 15 517,324 431,159
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ%%I}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEHEBEI - AARKIIR)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 4 BADEF (2)
(c) Other items (Continued) (c) HAER (&)
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021, (i) HZE2021F 12831 B IEF

research and development costs included
RMB27,096,000 (2020: RMB28,392,000)
relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses and low-value lease
charges, which amount is also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in the note 4(b) for
each of these types of expenses.

During the year ended 31 December
2021, cost of inventories included
RMB105,722,000 (2020: RMB101,187,000)
relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses, which amount
is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or
in the note 4(b) for each of these types of
expenses.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR

B MERABEEE TR
N EREHRAZNEE
BEREEZRAEENARYK
27,096,000 (20204 : A
R#28,392,0007T) * WAL
SEINET A L3 kBt 4(b)
5P KRB 1 FE A AR
ERSEENA -
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 REBRRANABH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a)

(BB -

AAREIITR)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HEBRBRANHRER :

profit or loss represents:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTTT
Current tax B HA 5 18
Provision for PRC income tax FRH TS HEE
for the year 67,798 118,684
PRC dividend withholding tax (iv) R BIA% B FEHFL (iv)
(note 23(a)) (MfzE23(a)) 47,567 -
Over-provision for PRC income tax BFFE R BEFTE T B8 &
in respect of prior years (1,687) (1,719)
113678 iGses
Deferred tax EEBR
Origination and reversal of EEREDEREERR
temporary differences 42,633 (14,972)
Effect on distribution of dividends I EDIRAIFZ(iv)
(iv) (note 23(b)) (KizE23(b)) (47,567) =
_______________________ (4,934) . (14972)
108,744 101,993

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE®mE @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

5

AAREIITR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”),
subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and the BVI.

the Group is not

No provision was made for Hong Kong
Profits Tax as the Group did not earn
income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).

Taxable income for the subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC is subject to PRC
income tax rate of 25%, unless otherwise
specified below.

Consun Pharmaceutical (Inner Mongolia)
Co., Ltd. (“Inner Mongolia Consun”)
and Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical

Company Limited (“Guangzhou Consun”)

were qualified as an “High and New

Technology Enterprises”,

Inner Mongolia

Consun and Guangzhou Consun were

entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 15% from 2021 to 2023 and 2020 to
2022, respectively.

Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
Co., Ltd. (“Yulin Pharmaceutical”)
and Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical
Capsule Co., Limited (“Yulin Capsule”)
were qualified as encouraged industry
that operates in western China. Yulin
Pharmaceutical and Yulin Capsule were
entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 15% from 2011 to 2030.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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5

a

]

REBBRANFAER (&)

(a)

FeBRBRANBIEE (&)

() REFSESNMEBRELE
E(RBEZHS]) WA
ARG - REBEBARF
SREREBREZESHM

ERFSH -

(i) BBRAEEREBZE20214F
12 331 B LEF [E I £8 B
TR VS 1S B A
(20204 : &) @ HRAEEHL

BEENERIELRYE -

(iii)

R EFT S -

BRIFTXAZBERE @ KRR
DA BB A R R
B UL A ZE 12 25 % B B0 2 40 4

RE#Z(AFRH)BRE
FRAR([RBEHEE]) &
BINEEZ#EFR AR ([E
MNEE ) BRER S
izl REERERE
MNERERI S RI#2021FF
20234 N 20204F £ 2022 4F
ZXEBEEHRBEE15% o

B EMHEEEEBREE
REI([EMEE|) REA
EMEHBEERAF ([E
MBE]) ERBEANRER
HeEmamEEEAR
EMBER FHRBEG A
2011 EE2030FFEZER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(iiif)

(Continued)

Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
Yuming Chinese Traditional Medicine
Co., Limited
Traditional Medicine”) and Guangxi Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group Hongsheng Trading

(“Yuming Chinese

Co., Limited (“‘Hongsheng Trading”) met
the criteria for preferential income tax rate
granted to small and low profit-making
enterprises in the PRC, and were entitled
to the preferential income tax rate of 10%
in 2021 (2020: 10%).

Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
Yonglv Chinese Traditional Medicine
Industry Co., Limited (“Yonglv Chinese
Traditional Medicine”) met the exemption
criteria on income generated through
planting of agricultural products and was
exempted from PRC income tax in 2020
and 2021.

Consun Pharmaceutical (Horgos) Co.,
Ltd. ("Horgos Consun”) enjoyed the
benefit of income tax exemption for five
years starting from the financial year with
initial operating revenue under the Notice
of the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation on Income
Tax Incentives for Newly-established
Enterprises in Poverty Areas of Xinjiang.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB -

AAREIITR)

5 HRBEZXRANFES (&)

(a) HEBBRAWHEE : (&)

(iif)

(&)
EREESEERHRHEGR
EERAR ([ E8#HPE]) R
ERENREERLEHES
BRABI([RHES]) R
EEERFRTHEHNE
WMAEENEEMEHB
R WHR2021FEZEZER
Fr5Fi %t = 10% (20204 :
10%) °

[P R BB E ok AR R BEE
BRAR ([KBEPE])F
BEREMEBRKANETRRE
Y W 20204 K 2021 4F
RGP B ATSH -

BREX (EARN) ARD
A(EERHEE]) AR
BB AL X BAR M B F
EREAFAZFACHTBABE
RIS 4R R #7 58 IR i b
B ML R ST EBRE
MBAM) B TR AR

B=-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

5

AAREIITR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(iv)

According to the relevant tax law and its
implementation rules, dividends receivable
by non-PRC-resident corporate investors
from PRC-resident enterprises are
subject to withholding tax at 10%, unless
reduced by tax treaties or arrangements,
for profits earned since 1 January
2008. The Company and its Hong Kong
subsidiaries obtained the Certificate of
Resident Status of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and have satisfied
the “Arrangement between the Mainland
of China and the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region for the Avoidance
of Double Taxation and the Prevention
of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes
on income” and therefore have adopted
the withholding tax rate at 5% for PRC
withholding tax purposes for the calendar
year 2020 and the two succeeding
calendar years.

The directors have determined that in
determining the amounts of dividends to
be distributed from PRC subsidiaries to
the Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary in
future, the amounts of dividends declared
or to be declared by the Company and
the repayment schedule of loans and
borrowings of the Company would be
considered. As at 31 December 2021,
deferred tax liabilities of RMB6,257,000
(31 December 2020: RMB18,227,000)
have been provided based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from
Guangzhou Consun to the Company in the
foreseeable future.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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(ivy, BEBEBBEREEHEMA
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BEMREEMEEFEEA

5% M TEHIFREK -

EEZEHEE TEEHREH
B AR AERAREST
fit A <2 &9 B B A& &) 9 K &Y
BESHER  BZEARQ
AIEE R4S E IR A AR &
CHEEARAAERRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 GEBRRANVMEBH (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and (b)
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

BIEMXEREARERAENE G
EAAVH AR

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Profit before taxation for the year F AT A @ A 695,861 583,736
Notional tax on profit before taxation, A B8 a1 A 4E & ¥4 7 F 7 =R

calculated at the rates applicable  FFE & ADG F ) & &Z T IB

to profits in the jurisdictions

concerned 186,330 152,551
Effect of non-deductible expenses T AT X KT £ 12,148 12,178
Effect of tax concessions MG & (123,644) (64,036)
Provision of withholding tax on ERAFENBERARREARDIK

undistributed profits retained i A B TEHN A A

by PRC subsidiaries 35,597 3,019
Over-provision in respect of BEFEBBEEE

prior years (1,687) (1,719)
Actual tax expenses ERERY 108,744 101,993
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

6 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section

383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

E=Me
RIBEECRBED) 5£383(1) KR (AR
(WBESENmER) RO FE28 D M F
EWBENEEMESFHBTOT ¢

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021 512831 ALEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme  Share-based
fees in kind bonus  contribution  payment (i) Total
e 2RR NRGAER
£k ENER BB BIGHELR R 5
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR
Executive directors YnEs
Mr. An Meng R (R2021F
(appointed as executive 3AUBEZAA
director on 24 March 2021 B{TEZRi2021F
and appointed as chairman on 7 A9REZRTALE)
9 July 2021) 1,076 670 12,087 6 - 13,839
Mr. An Yubao RHERE
(resigned, effective from (BRHE 52021
9 July 2021) TROBREH) 1,252 689 - - 2,159 4,100
Ms. Li Qian REnt 2,349 1,127 12,087 30 2,159 17,752
Mr. Zhu Quan RERE - 466 280 - 322 1,068
Mr. Xu Hanxing RHELE
(appointed on 24 March 2021) (R202143F24H
EZ{) - 249 81 9 - 339
Non-executive director FUTES
Ms. Zhang Lihua REZLT
(appointed on 9 July 2021) (20217 A9R
 £35) - - - - - -
Independent BIFHES
non-executive directors
Mr. Su Yuanfu BrRtE 144 - - - - 144
Mr. Feng Zhongshi BHELE 144 - - - - 144
Ms. Chen Yujun REENL 156 - - - - 156
5,121 3,201 24,535 45 4,640 37,542
@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EERE#¥&EEERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREAEIAI - LAARKETIR)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 6 EEME (E)

Year ended 31 December 2020

HE00F12A31B LR
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind honus contribution payment (i) Total
e 2R DR RER
0k EmiEh MEFL  RIGEIER BN st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors yEs
Mr. An Yubao THELE 2,116 1,097 9,791 - 487 13,491
Ms. Li Qian BEat 2,236 1,024 9,791 34 487 13,572
Mr. Zhu Quan KEEE - 570 292 - - 862
Mr. Tang Ning EEEE
(resigned on 29 May 2020)  (R2020%5A29A
BHE) - 36 - 1 - 37
Independent
non-executive directors ~ BUFHTEES
Mr. Su Yuanfu Yy 182 - - - - 132
Mr. Feng Zhongshi BHELE 132 - - - - 132
Ms. Chen Yujun REELL 120 - - - - 120
4,736 2,121 19,874 35 974 28,346

(i) BERRBEARFBREFSRT

(i) These represent the estimated value of share

options granted to the directors under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme, and fair
value of share award granted and vested to the
directors under the Share Award Scheme. These
values are measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions as set out in note 1(q)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted,
are disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option
Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” in the
directors’ report and notes 22(a) and (b).

SR CBREONMGEER  URIR
BEERMDEBFICR T REBRE
EZBRMBBNAAE - ZFEE
12 BN SR 8 DAR D A B BE R 30
RZEGETBER (BRI EE1(q)(ii)

e -

%

=113

=z

RENTEBRAREB)EEER
W BT E | & [R5 BT
2 | SR A R M sE22(a) R (D) I EE ©

ZEMBRMNFE (BEELE
=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ%%I}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEHEBEI - AARKIIR)

7 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 7 BEaHMAL
Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, three hEReHFMALFE =% (2020F : =
(2020: three) are directors of the Company whose B)RARBIES - HHEMRME6HKRE -
emoluments are disclosed in note 6. The aggregate of SN G (20204 - B ) ATHEH IR
the emoluments in respect of the other two (2020: two) BT :

individuals are as follows:

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Salaries and other emoluments e N E fib 37 A 1,843 1,999
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRGTEIH R 32 1
Share-based payment LARR 1 B ERER S 3K 1,005 365
2,880 2,365
The emoluments of the two (2020: two) individuals with ZME (20204 : WA ) = a A TH
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: F T AT S5 E

2021 2020
2021%F 20204
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AT &E ALTEH

HKD1,000,001 — HKD1,500,000 1,000,001& 0%
1,500,000/ 7T - 1

HKD1,500,001 — HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 L2
2,000,000/& 7T 2 1

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERE#HXSEEFRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic earnings per share

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

8 BREF

(a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share

is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB590,172,000
(2020: RMB498,788,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of
801,581,000 shares (2020: 817,264,000 shares)
in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

BREXEF

EREABFNDIREFAARA
AESKREEMERTANARE
590,172,0007T (20204 : AR
498,788,0007T) R E BEITE @R
B ANHEFE 5 E801,581,000 A& A 1%
(20204 : 817,264,000R% %17 ) 5t
o AEMT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZEAERINEFITE
2021 2020
20215 20204
’000 shares ‘000 shares
T F A%
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January H1A1HEETEERK 819,625 865,532
Effect of shares repurchased and FEE R HR DR 2
cancelled (note 24(b)) (KizE24(b)) - (28,570)
Effect of shares repurchased but not B E1E 5 R DO E
yet cancelled (786) -
Effect of share options exercised BT EERENZE
(note 22(a)) (MfsE22(a)) 2,300 =
Effect of treasury shares held under  RERD B2 E &
the Share Award Scheme EERE (HiE22(b))
(note 22(b)) (19,698) (19,698)
Effect of Award Shares vested under  RIED EEE) 2157 B &9
the Share Award Scheme BRI < 2
(note 22(b)) (Mt3E22(b)) 140 -
Weighted average number of ordinary %12 A31H E@EARH
shares at 31 December InHEFEH 801,581 817,264
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

8

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB590,172,000 (2020:
RMB498,788,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 804,702,000 shares
(2020: 817,264,000 shares), calculated as

8 EBRERN#E)
(b) ERBERR

HZE2021F12A31HIEFED
BRESRANTIBEBEAR R AR
R ER (5% A A R #590,172,000
7T (20204 : AR® 498,788,000
L) R T B NETEH
804,702,000 & f&1n (20204 :
817,264,000/ x1n) 5t & « 51 &

follows: LU
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERIMEFIIE (#F)
(diluted)
2021 2020
20214 20204
000 shares ‘000 shares
TR F A%
Weighted average number of 12 B 31 B @A N
ordinary shares at 31 December T8 801,581 817,264
Dilutive effect of deemed issue FERRREET EIIE TR R AT
of shares under the Share Option frip g 2
Scheme 3,048 -
Dilutive effect of awarded shares &t B2 ED T B 18 T 42/
under the Share Award Scheme It BB E R & 73 =
Weighted average number of ordinary ®12 A31H E@AKH)
shares (diluted) at 31 December N9 (BE) 804,702 817,264

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERE#HXSEEFRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSERAEIN - LAREIITR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 9 BREWE

Land use

rights Buildings Total
& ihf5E AR BF et
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T
Cost A
At 1 January 2020, R2020F1H18 »

31 December 2020, 2020F12 A31H -
1 January 2021 and 2021F1 A1 &

U Degmmeer 2ozt 20219 12A31R SN0 (56 680
Accumulated depreciation: ZFITE :
At 1 January 2020 R 2020F1 A1H (473) (1,766) (2,239)
Charge for the year FAHBR (135) (395) (530)
At 31 December 2020 R20204 12 A318 (608) (2,161) (2,769)
Charge for the year F AR (135) (366) (501)
At81December2021 ~~~ M2021%12A31R (48] (2027) ... (3,270)
Net book value: BRIEFE ¢
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12 831 H 4,261 11,359 15,620
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 831 H 4,396 11,725 16,121
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ‘%El}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties of the Group are situated in
the PRC, and their addresses are part of the land
and buildings on No. 1, Chengzhan Road, Yulin City,
Guangxi Province, currently being leased to a third
party for hotel operations; and land and buildings on
No. 162, Miaoyuan Lane, Yuzhou District, Yulin City,
Guangxi Province, currently being leased to a third
party for storage purposes.

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 5 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased every year to
reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

As at 31 December 2021, included in investment
properties, properties with cost of RMB18,890,000 (31
December 2020: RMB15,704,000) were leased out
under operating leases that would otherwise meet the
definition of investment property, and no property (31
December 2020: RMB3,186,000) is held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties of the Group were stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
carrying amounts of the investment properties were
not materially different from their fair value as at 31
December 2020 and 2021.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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A ETEE IR 1SR E o it
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AEBERBKEHELBEREME - 1)
IR A5F REXAKAEZERHE
# o ERSEMEEMBGR - HEMRK
BESTFIEN  ARBRTSEHES - HE
MEEEXEES -

R2021F 12 A31H » EMEBIEUL
EHELHERMEREMETENYE -
A B AR 18,890,0007T (2020412 A
318 : AR#15,704,0007T) @ M B A1
B AREERKAEHNYE (20205612 A
318 : AR#3,186,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y% - BERRE
Reconciliation of carrying amount IREE 2 BR
Machinery
and Motor Office Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BT  HERRE B BARE ERIE by

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTz  ARETR  ARRIR  ARMTR

Cost: A
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H 332,677 205,329 21,810 20,090 285,921 865,827
Transfer from construction ~ BERTREH

in progress 22 12,373 - 667 (13,062) -
Other additions HRE 455 8,032 294 2,728 41,795 53,304
Disposals RE - (1,392) (406) (530) - (2,328)

At 31 December 2020 and 7202012318 K

1 January 2021 20211718 333,154 224,342 21,698 22,955 314,654 916,803
Transfer from construction ~ BERIR2ER

in progress 988 2,356 - 171 (3,515) -
Other additions HiRE 1,531 12,706 2,182 2,490 70,531 89,440
Disposals RE (1,571) (3,588) (2,229) (934) - (8,322)
At 31 December 2021 R2021512A31H 334,102 235,816 21,651 24,682 381,670 997,921

Accumulated depreciation: Z:H7E :

At 1 January 2020 1202051818 (100,409) (81,523) (10,067) (12,519) - (204518)
Charge for the year R (14,602) (18,836) (1,684) (3,362) - (38,484)
Written back on disposal ~ REEREE = 1,138 375 459 = 1,972

At 31 December 2020 and ~ $2020F 12831 K

1 January 2021 2021118 (115,011) (99,221) (11,376) (15,422) = (241,030)
Charge for the year FRHG (14,496) (19,736) (1,522) (2,514) = (38,268)
Written back on disposal KRR EEEE 346 2775 2,050 839 = 6,010
At 31 December 2021 12021512 318 (129,161) (116,182) (10,848) (17,097) - (273,288)
Net book value: REFE:

At 31 December 2021 12021512318 204,941 119,634 10,803 7,585 381,670 724,633
At 31 December 2020 12020512 4318 218,143 125,121 10,322 7,533 314,654 675,773
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

11  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS ERAEEE
Land use
rights Total
=+ b {55 FA et
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T
Note (i)
FEEE (i)
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1H1H 143,799 143,799
Additions INE — _
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 A31H 143,799 143,799
Additions NE - 14,601
At31December 2021 M2021%12A31H 143799 14601 158,400
Accumulated depreciation: ZFITE :
At 1 January 2020 R 2020F1 A1H (16,991) (16,991)
Charge for the year F AR (3,133) (3,133)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 A31H (20,124) (20,124)
Charge for the year F AR (3,133) (4,461)
At31December 2021~ M2021F12A31H (23257) .. (1.328) (24,585)
Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December 2021 RK2021412AH31H 120,542 133,815
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 831 H 123,675 123,675

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FRE#ZEKE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 11

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

EREEE (&)

FRAREERANEENEXIER 2M
T :

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETTT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 1&Z+EEEELE RIS < 6 A&

by class of underlying asset: BENEIL

Land use rights T Hb{E A (3,133) (3,133)

Buildings BF (1,328) =

(4,461) (3,133)

Interest on lease liabilities (note 4(a)) HEaBEZFE (HizFs(a)) 343 =
Expense relating to short-term leases BEHEERENRX 3,907 3,793
Expense relating to leases of low-value HEEEEEHEFMNAX

assets, excluding short-term leases of (TEEREBREEDN

low-value assets MHAME) 28 26

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
RMB14,601,000 (2020: Nil). This amount were related
to the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 17(d)
and 25(b), respectively.

RFER FREEERAEAARE
14,601,000 (20204 : £) - Z 4 5EEE
BEFHERZENERNEBAENKE
7 o

FRANERSRHREERGREIHAD

2818 - S RIBIIR M 17(d) R25(b)
W o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

11

AAREIITR)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: (Continued)

()

Land use rights

It represents prepayments for the land use rights
which was identified as right-of-use assets under
HKFRS 16 in the PRC paid to the PRC authorities,
on which the Group’s manufacturing plants were
built. The Group was granted land use rights for
a period of 50 years initially and the remaining
periods range from 27 to 45 years.

On 31 May 2019, the Group entered into a
series of cooperative development agreements
with Guangxi Huafa Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (“Guangxi Huafa”) and Yulin City
Shunlang Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Yulin Shunlang”) in relation to a development
project of a plant site of Yulin Pharmaceutical.
Pursuant to the cooperative development
agreements, a parcel of land wholly owned by
Yulin Pharmaceutical with the total site area of
approximately 83,670 sqg.m. (“Parcel-1"), shall
be developed integrally together with other
parcels of land planned to be acquired after
Yulin Pharmaceutical has removed all plant and
machinery located on the site. Parcel-1 is located
at No.3, Jiangnan Road, Yulin City, Guangxi
Province, the PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, the development
project was still in the initial planning stage and
Parcel-1 was still being occupied and wholly
owned by Yulin Pharmaceutical for its own use
for production, office and storage purposes.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\éﬁji%ﬁ% MTJ‘%E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 11 ERAREE (&)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases FEREZRIANEENEXER S
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: (Continued) T: (&)

(i) Buildings (i) BF

AEBEBBEHZESERLY
BTHERN - HE—ROT HHI5
F - HEMNFABTGRIEARKRT
SRS KTE -

The Group has obtained the right to use certain
buildings through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 5
years. Lease payments are usually increased to
reflect market rentals.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 B\REEE
Patents Trademark Total
=¥ EE HEt
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
Cost: AN :
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1H 248,283 256,233 504,516
Additions NE 5,000 - 5,000
At 31 December 2020 and R2020F 12318 &
__81December 2021 2021%12A81H 253283 256,283 509,516
Accumulated amortisation: KT
At 1 January 2020 202051 A18 (102,956) - (102,956)
Charge for the year F AR (29,648) = (29,648)
At 31 December 2020 R 202012 A31H (132,604) = (132,604)
Charge for the year FRHIBR (29,759) = (29,759)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12A431H (162,363 - (162,363)
Accumulated impairment R EERE :
losses:
At 1 January 2020, R2020F1H18 -
31 December 2020 and 202012 A318B &
_81December2021 = : 2021%12A81H - T (5.489) | (5,489)
Net book value: BRI FE -
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 90,920 250,744 341,664
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 A31H 120,679 250,744 371,423
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV—\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ‘%El}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

12

AAREIITR)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “cost
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Four patents with an aggregate net book value of
RMB2,500,000 (2020: Nil) were pledged as securities
for bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2021
(note 19(b)).

Trademark acquired through business combination is
assessed to have indefinite useful lives when, based
on an analysis of all of the relevant factors including
beneficial pattern, there is no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the asset is expected to generate
net cash inflows for the Group. The recoverable
amount of the trademark that has indefinite useful
life is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment. The amount is allocated to the
Group’s cash-generating units of Yulin Pharmaceutical
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group”) (“Yulin CGU”).

The recoverable amount of Yulin CGU was determined
based on value-in-use calculations by the directors
of the Company, with the reference to professional
valuation reports issued by Jones Lang LaSalle
Incorporated, independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers. These calculations apply the cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. The
average budgeted sales growth rate of the five-year
period is 14.3% (2020: 22.7%). Cash flows beyond
the aforementioned financial forecasts period are
extrapolated using estimated sales growth rate of 3%
(2020: 3%), which was estimated on the basis of the
long-term inflation rate in the PRC. It is a commonly
used valuation assumption that the long-term growth
rate of a company will converge with the long-term
growth rate of the PRC. The cash flows are discounted
using a discount rate of 17.2% (2020: 18.1%). The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the Yulin CGU.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent
management’'s assessment of future trends in the
relevant industries and have been based on historical
data from both external and internal sources.

No impairment loss was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Had the estimated key assumptions during the forecast
period been changed as below, all changes taken in
isolation, the recoverable amount of Yulin CGU would
be approximately equal to its carrying amount:

Pre-tax discount rate increase to 19.4%
Average revenue growth rate
decrease to 11.6%

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

12

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

BILEE (#£)
RRERARANEERREEEH A
TTEHNARRBB TG - WARB IR
W ERE B HUR RO EE 52 BUR B IRIR ©

HZE2021512A31BILFE @ HERR
SFUEEE (20204 : &) -

fis 78 TR B A9 1 51 B 82 (B2 5% 1 3R T &) &
B MATEZETABLERE - I EMHE
S EEBMNA A IS RE A HRE(EE
FHATHTIR R INE 19.4%
Tzt R RO 11.6%

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE®mE @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ%%I}ﬁ.%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEHEBEI - AARKIIR)

13  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RHEARNRE
(a) List of subsidiaries (a) MEARRE
As at 31 December 2021, the Company had RK2021F12A831H » ARRKR T
direct or indirect interests in the following B AR (2R AFARE) #EE
subsidiaries, all of which are private companies, BESHERER  FEEHINOT :

particulars of which are set out below:

Place of Authorised/
incorporation registered and Attributable equity
Name of company and business  fully paid up capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
ARER AMAIREENE 28/ DERRARKE AADIRENEERAER TEEE
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Brilliant Reach Group Limited BVl United States Dollars 100% - Investment holding
BESEARAT EERAHE  ('USD")50,000/USD1 RAER
50,000% T
(%)) /1%m
Immense Value Holdings Limited BVI USD50,000/USD1 100% - Investment holding
Immense Value Holdings Limited RBRTHEE  50000%7m/1%T REER
Century International Develop Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000/HKD1 - 100% Investment holding
R ERRR AR BE 1000087 /18T RERR
Grand Reach Company Limited Hong Kong  HKD10,000/HKD1,000 - 100% Investment holding
EHAERLA F#% 10,000%7,/1,00087 RERR
Guangzhou Consun PRC RMB300,000,000/ - 100% Production and
(BMEREBZARAF) () hE RMB300,000,000 sales of
BNRRERAR AR AK#300,000,0007,/ pharmaceutical
AR#300,000,0007 products
Ef%n
Guangzhou Consun Medicine Company Limited PRC RMB3,000,000/ = 100% Trading of
(ENREBERRAR) i RMB3,000,000 pharmaceutical
BNREBERRAA" AR%3,000,0007 / products
AR3,000,0007 B8

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERE#HXSEEFRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREAEIAI - LAARKETIR)

13  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 RHEBARNRE (&)
(a) List of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MBAIRE(E)
Place of Authorised/
incorporation registered and Attributable equity
Name of company and business  fully paid up capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
NAE® AMAIREERS 28/ DETIRARKE AADTBAENEERARER TEEE
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical Research PRC RMB10,000,000/ - 100% Research and
Company Limited qﬂ RMB10,000,000 development of
(BMNREEYHEERAA) AE#10,000,0007% / pharmaceutical
ENREENHAARAR" AK%10,000,0007 products
gL
Guangzhou Consun Health Technology PRC RMBS5,000,000/ - 100% Research and
Company Limited HEl RMB Nil development of
(BEMNREREREERAA) ARH5,000,0007 / pharmaceutical
BNRERENRERAR AREZT products
gL
Inner Mongolia Consun PRC RMB25,000,000/ = 100% Production and
(FREX(ARD) ARAAAA) e RMB25,000,000 sales of
REGE (ARG BRELAT AR#25,000,0007T / pharmaceutical
AR #25,000,0007C products
ERER
Consun Pharmaceutical (Horgos) Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000/ = 100% Production and
(REEX (EARE) ERAA) e RMB50,000,000 sales of
RE5¥ (ERRY) BRAR" AR 50,000,007,/ pharmaceutical
AR #50,000,0007C products
ERER
Yulin Pharmaceutical PRC RMB448,834,102/ = 72.69% Production and
(EREMREEEEREELR) e RMB448,834,102 sales of
BRIMSEEEERALAR" AR448 8341027 / pharmaceutical
AR%448,834,1027 products
ERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ%%I}ﬁ.%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEHEBEI - AARKIIR)

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 RHEARNRE (E)
(a) List of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MBAIRE(E)
Place of Authorised/
incorporation registered and Attributable equity
Name of company and business  fully paid up capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
NAE® AMAIREENS 28/ DERRARKE AADTBRAENEERARER TEEE
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Yulin Capsule PRC RMB1,340,000/ = 72.69% Production and
(EREMEEBRARLA) hE RMB1,340,000 sales of
BRINEEBRARAA AR¥%1,340,0007 / capsule
AR1,340,0007 ERBE
Yuming Chinese Traditional Medicine PRC RMB2,000,000/ = 72.69% Trading of
(ERAIEEE RSP EEREMAF) i RMB2,000,000 pharmaceutical
BRFSEBRHTEEREAAA AK#2,000,0007,/ products
AE#%2,000,00070 5%
Yonglv Chinese Traditional Medicine PRC RMB1,000,000/ = 72.69% Production and
(BEEEEE T EEZERAR) hE RMB1,000,000 sales of
BREIEEEKGTEELRRAR AR#1,000,0007 / pharmaceutical
AR%1,000,0007 products
EHER
Hongsheng Trading PRC RMB500,000/ - 72.69% Trading of
(Tﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁgf%“%ﬁ B AR e RMB500,000 pharmaceutical
ERINYEEBLAE HERAT ARE500,0007/ products
ARE500,0007T EnE5
Guangxi Yulin Yunxiang Real Estate Co., Limited PRC RMB3,000,000/ - 69.06% Property development
(BREREREXARAA) hE RMB3,000,000 mER%
EREHERELARAA" ABR#3,000,0007T/
AR3,000,0007
e These entities are all PRC limited liability * ZEBRRBE2HMHRTEARE
companies. The English translation of the EFAR - REAIBWHEES
company names are for reference only. The EBHZ2E -ZERFANESA
official names of these companies are in AP -
Chinese.
(i) This subsidiary is registered under PRC (i) ZMBRRRIEHBIAEE
law as a wholly foreign owned enterprise. MREIEEFLE -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following table lists out the information

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b)

relating to Yulin Pharmaceutical Group, the only
sub-group of the Group which has a material

NCI.

The summarised financial information

presented below represents the amounts before

any inter-company elimination.

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

RNEARNERE (&)

TRINLEHEEMREEE (K&
BEAEAERERE—T&
B)MER - TX2MNMEER
BB SR T REA R B[R H
RIH) SR8

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000
ARMEF T AR¥ETTT
NCI percentage at 31 December W12 A31 AR ER B AL 27.31% 27.31%
Current assets MENEE 540,862 642,504
Non-current assets FEMBEE 975,106 1,006,962
Current liabilities mENEE (372,116) (492,619)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (69,901) (71,945)
Net assets BEFE 1,073,951 1,084,902
Carrying amount of NCI PR AR E A 293,266 296,256
Revenue of the year FEUWA 311,677 253,712
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEREZEREETE
income of the year (10,951) (62,205)
Loss allocated to NCI DT IR E R A E R (2,990) (16,986)
Cash flows from operating activities &2 E8IH SR 2,217 250,268
Cash flows from investing activities REEHIRE R (32,539) (33,356)
Cash flows from financing activities BIEEBNIRE R 1,121 (21,423)
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

BAARESI)R)
14 OTHER PREPAYMENTS 14 HihFARIE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARBTT
Prepayment for purchase of other property, BB H W% - ME MREHH
plant and equipment SEENES 44,318 45679
15 INVENTORIES 15 FE
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTIT
Raw materials R 148,255 120,129
Work in progress E8 M 43,609 43,096
Finished goods IR 51,171 64,149
243,035 227,374

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as

EERASAX YT ABRNEFESEIMN

an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: s
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 493,430 419,345
Write down of inventories FEMOR 23,894 11,814
517,324 431,159

All of the inventories are expected to be recovered

within one year.

CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED

BRI AIAFERR —FRKE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB AEIERIN » UAREIIR)
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EZRHMEWKE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Trade debtors and bills receivable, net of & 5 FEURBE X % FE UL =4 -
loss allowance (a) R E B (a) 351,226 448,540
Other debtors, net of loss allowance (b) E IR - kR EE
2 L=1(9)) 18,341 9,886
Financial assets measured at HEEK AT ENEREE
amortised cost 369,567 458,426

Note:

All of
to be
year.

(a)

The Group accepts bank acceptance bills from major
banks in the PRC for settlement of trade debts. The
management considered that the risk of these bills
relates substantially to credit risk. Accordingly, when
these bills were transferred by either discounting or
endorsement, they were derecognised as a financial
asset.

the trade and other receivables are expected
recovered or recognised as expense within one

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the
ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills
receivable (which are included in trade and other

it « AEEEADEE BRITHRITA
REBNGERESHER - BEEER
RZEZENERIZEEERR
B - it - ERERBEBRR
HEEHERN  AFRRCRULRE

RRTEEE

B A B S R EMEBKIBEHR —F R
W Bl KRR ©

AR 2 A7

RI|BEIR - B 5 RURERR LB
F& (Bt AR S R E M RWKIR)
NBEZEHRELETNREREE

(a)

receivables), based on the invoice date and net RIBREC DT
of loss allowance, is as follows:

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Within 3 months 3ME A A 281,114 328,529
3 to 12 months 3&121@ A 36,950 16,765
Over 12 months 1218 A N £ 33,162 103,246
351,226 448,540
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV—\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ‘%El}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 16 BZREMEWRIE &)

(a) Ageing analysis (Continued) (a) HREDH (&)
Trade debtors and bills receivable are due B 5 BRI ERER B % R
within 30-180 days from the date of billing. B HHEEET30E 180 H A E|H © A<
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and SEEEBRRURREE Z ERER
credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills HEREREBENEERRANE—ZF
receivable are set out in note 25(a). FIFEA M E25(a)

(b) Other debtors (b) HibEWRK
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s other RK2021F12A831H - AEEEAb
receivables of RMB524,000 (31 December 2020: FEW R IE A R #524,0007T (2020
RMB524,000) were determined to be impaired in F12H31H : AR¥524,0007T)
full. ERETERME o

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 17 HERBRESEEBEHURHEMESR

CASH FLOW INFORMATION EER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) HRekBELZEEEBGE:
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARET ARBETIT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 2,198,643 1,940,273
Less: Restricted cash B PR HIER & 2,320 =

2,196,323 1,940,273

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERE#HXSEEFRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRE SRR M EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 17 HRERBRESESEEBEHURHEMESR

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) BER (&)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BiADRFIELKE ISR SWEER

generated from operations:

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETT

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation

(Reversals)/recognition of provision
for doubtful debts

Interest income

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Equity-settled share-based
transactions

Write down of inventories

Foreign exchange gains

Changes in working capital

Increase in inventories
Decrease in trade and other

i Bl 7 695,861 583,736
e R 72,989 71,795
(Bm),/ HRARERE

(18,043) 29,363
M EWE (39,248) (27,888)
BE AR 12,905 21,401
HEWH « BFEREEEER
(g 1,990 244
VARG AR 4 B 37 DA R 1 B R A
X5 23,411 12,165
T EMOR 23,894 11,814
HNE U S (11,326) (27,366)

BEES#L

&L (39,555) (28,504)

B 5 R E MR IRR A

receivables 114,207 304,456
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments ~ FEfTFIERA /(3 0) 18,040 (9,137)
Increase in trade and other payables 2 5 K& H i & {5 5RIE L AN 50,989 41,433
Increase/(decrease) in deferred BRI CRd)

income 1,673 (1,136)

Cash generated from operations REMBRE 907,787 982,376
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ‘%El}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 17 HRERBRESEEBEEHURHEMESR
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) BER (&)
(¢) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) RETHELENEGEHIR:

financing activities:

Loans and Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
ERRER HESE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®T T AR®T T
(note 19) (note 20)
(HHEE19) (FfEE20)
At 1 January 2020 1202061818 553,567 - 553 567
Changes from financing cash flows: ?ﬂlﬁﬁﬁuw;ﬁiﬁ
Proceeds from new bank loans MBRITERA A 263,757 - 263,757
Repayments of bank loans RITEFENE (237,924) = (237,924)
Finance costs paid BERRERA (21,401) = (21,401)
Total changes from financing cash flows = BARGRSEDEE agee SR .
Exchange adjustments ERAE (29,986) - (29,986)
Other changes: Hith2 8
Interest on bank loans (note 4(a)) RITE A & (ME4(a)) 13,243 = 13,243
Interest expenses on discounted bills HREETEHZ (Mit4(a))

(note 4(a)) 8,158 - 8,158
Total other changes Hin#g)azs 21,401 - 21,401
At 31 December 2020 R2020%F12A31H 549,414 - 549,414
Changes from financing cash flows: RMERSRERE
Proceeds from new bank loans B ITERE A 295,716 = 295,716
Repayments of bank loans BOEFESE (232,878) - (232,878)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BNEEEEMERTD = (2,930) (2,930)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BNHEERSMFIEHD - (343) (343)
Other borrowing costs paid BEREMEREA (12,562) = (12,562)
Total changes from financing cash flows = BARGRSEDEE 0216 8278 | AT.008
Exchange adjustments ERRE (12,950) = (12,950)
Other changes: Hith 28
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into HHWI FUHBAEmEMMEE

new leases during the period =4 - 14,601 14,601
Interest on bank loans (note 4(a)) RITERTS (fi5E4(a)) 9,017 = 9,017
Interest expenses on discounted bills HRZEFERZ (ME4(a)

(note 4(a)) 3,545 - 3,545
Interest on lease liabilities (note 4(a)) HEBEZHE (Mia(a) - 343 343
Totalotherchanges & AteEoas ... 12562 14944 27506
At 31 December 2021 R2021%F12H31H 599,302 11,671 610,973
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 17 HRERBRESESEEBEHURHEMESR

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) BER (&)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d HERSRHAEE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow REEFAGERERERNEH
statement for leases comprise the following: BRETIIFIE :
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Within operating cash flows RELEIRESREN 3,935 3,819
Within financing cash flows REEREREN 3,273 =
7,208 3,819

These amounts relate to the following: ZECRHATIZIEER :
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBFIT
Lease rentals paid 2ftHEe 7,208 3,819
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REEHEBEI - AARKIIR)

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18 EBEZRHMESKE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Trade payables (i) B 5 FERTFRIA() 66,638 50,889
Contract liabilities GHAME 18,979 13,857
Refund liabilities BREAE 76,332 80,419
Accrued expenses EErFX 307,785 265,875
Employee benefits payable JERHE B & T 157,743 140,542
Other payables ot B 5RIE 91,063 108,130
Project development deposits (ii) 18 B R (i) 31,674 50,000
750,214 709,712

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.

(i) As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade payables (which are included
in the trade and other payables), based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

AR S REMENFRAERERER —FA
EBRERRBA - HERERER -

() MRHEHKR - BHEMFEAE(SE
ANE S REMENRE) AEER
HAEENREDTIT

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Within 1 month 18 AR 47,535 48,842
1 to 12 months 121218 A 15,904 1,359
Over 12 months HBid121E A 3,199 688

66,638 50,889

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERE#HXSEEFRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(i) As of 31 December 2021, project development
deposits represented deposits received by the
Group from Guangxi Huafa and Yulin Shunlang
pursuant to a series of cooperative development
agreements (see note11(i)).

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

(a) The analysis of the repayment schedule of
bank loans is as follows:

fRE SRR M EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

18 EBFREMENRE(Z)

(i) HZE2021F12A31H ' BEMAE
ReERAEERE— R G ERE
a5 B B A EE 3 R R ARIEDR W@y
me (RMEE113)) °

19 EBIRRMER
(a) RITEFRNEREBERIFAOT :

2021 2020
2021 %F 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Within 1 year —FRN

599,302 549,414

(b) Assets pledged as security and covenants for
bank loans

At 31 December 2021, the bank loans and
overdrafts were secured as follows:

(b) CERERBTERERRZEN

BE
N2021FE12A8318 @ RITER K
B HIRFERAT
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Bank loans RITER
— secured — FiE 30,000 =
— unsecured — I 569,302 549,414
599,302 549,414

At 31 December 2021, the loan of
RMB30,000,000 were secured by four patents
with a carrying value of RMB2,500,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

At 31 December 2021, total banking facilities of
the Group amounted to RMB1,008,480,000 (2020:
RMB784,368,000) were utilised to the extent of
RMB599,302,000 (2020: RMB549,414,000).

R2021F12831H ' ERARE
30,000,000 J5LA2021 412 A 31
HEREEAARE2,500,0007TH
PYIE FEFEHE R (20204F : f&]) ©

R2021F12A31 8 » REEIETT
B &M A AR 1,008,480,000
7T (20204F : AR# 784,368,000
L) EHRFEHAARE
599,302,000 (20204 : AR™E
549,414,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSHIERIN  UARBIIR)
19 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (Continued) 19 ERRER(E)
(b) Assets pledged as security and covenants for (b) CEFERBTERERREEN
bank loans (Continued) BE (&)
As at 31 December 2021, certain banking M2021F12HA31H - A&EEZ
facilities of the Group amounted to MIRTTELE AR¥579,680,000
RMB579,680,000 (31 December 2020: 7T (2020512 H31H : AR
RMB402,480,000) are subject to the fulfiiment 402,480,0007T) X R ¥ AN & B
of covenants relating to certain of the Group's FMBARE TS KA REHE
or the subsidiaries’ financial ratios, as are (REZRATANSREBENER
commonly found in lending arrangements with ZHH) BREAEEERT%SE
financial institutions. If the Group had breached i ERIMERESEK AR
the covenants, the drawn down loans would EREER - NEBTFHHERETZ
have become payable on demand. The Group ERHEMIBEN o R20214 12 A 31
regularly monitors its compliance with these B ASEIWEERTEMED IR
covenants. As at 31 December 2021, none of EFEBR R (2020912 A 31
the covenants relating to drawn down loans had H:&)-o
been breached (31 December 2020: Nil).
20 LEASE LIABILITIES 20 HE&AE
At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were R2021F 128310 - HEGEMEREN
repayable as follows: R
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETTT
Within 1 yearorondemand 1ERsEREX 3124 .
After 1 year but within 2 years HBiB1FEDR2F 2,982 =
After 2 years but within 5 years FRiB2F B DREF 5,565 =
8,547 -
11,671 -

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

21 DEFERRED INCOME 21 EAE W S
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
At 1 January ®1A1H 17,258 18,394
Additions =T 5,910 560
Credited to profit or loss (note 3) FrABE (MiFE3) (4,237) (1,696)
At 31 December W12 H31H 18,931 17,258
Representing: ]/R
Current portion BNERZ6 5 2,231 1,629
Non-current portion JEBNHAES 16,700 15,629
18,931 17,258
Deferred income of the Group mainly includes various AEBMNEEREFEERENERNIRE
conditional government grants for research and ZmiffEEE W Z A GO BUT/HE) - A
development projects of new or existing pharmaceutical NERREE + b B e waL
products and subsidies relating to purchase of land use
rights.
Deferred government grants relating to research and FEMEBEENECRFEYBESEESL
development projects will be recognised as income MEEERASMBRBEERSKZE - B
in the same periods in which the expenses for the R T AR ECBUT MBS E
development project are incurred. Deferred government R EAENB I FEREHRNNE
grants relating to purchase of land use rights will be OETER RIS -

recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful life of the relevant land use rights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

22 LRELEIURGHERNRS
(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (a) EEBKRESS
()  The terms and conditions of the grants are () BREOERREENT :
as follows:
In 2014, the Company adopted a share R2014%F » ARBHRM—
option scheme (the “Share Option TR ([BRRER
Scheme”) whereby the directors of Bl Bt ARRERE
the Company are authorised, at their EETNEEFEAEEHER
discretion, to invite employees of the (BRAKEETTMAKXE
Group, including directors of any RAMES) ZNBIRE -
Company in the Group, to take up options UREB1IEBTRERARRK
at a consideration of HKD1 to subscribe 0 o SpBARES M TR
for shares of the Company. Each option RSB AR A R — A
entitles the option holders to subscribe R EE > AAF DRI
one ordinary share of the Company. The 20144 - 20164 ~ 20194
Company granted share options to certain %2020 RE TEFERE
directors and employees in 2014, 2016, ERHBRE -
2019 and 2020 respectively.
Tranche Number of Contractual
Date of grant number options granted  Vesting period life of options
R A #5 ERLBRERE RES BRENSOES
Options granted to employees:
BT ESHNBRE -
- on 28 March 2014 2014 T1 10,000,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
~ 20143/ 28R 014FEE 14 RLBMRIE 105
- on 28 March 2014 2014 T2 10,000,000 2 years after the date of grant 10 years
~ 20143/ 28H 2014FE 24t R MgoE 105
-on 1 April 2016 2016 T1 12,600,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
—R2016F4 7818 2016FE 14t RILBERIE 105
-on 1 April 2016 2016 T2 12,600,000 2 years after the date of grant 10 years
- R2016F4A18 2016FE24t Rt B EgoE 105
-on 1 April 2016 2016 T3 16,800,000 3 years after the date of grant 10 years
- R2016%F4A1H 201638t BRIt B E%3E 105
-on 2 January 2019 2019 T1 13,650,000 15 months after the date of grant 10 years
— 201951 A28 201914t it B H 1518 A 105
-on 2 January 2019 2019 T2 13,650,000 27 months after the date of grant 10 years
~R2019F1 A28 2019F %24t it B H%o7{EA 105
-on 2 January 2019 2019 T3 18,200,000 39 months after the date of grant 10 years
—- 20191 A28 201934t it B #2398 A 105
- on 24 March 2020 2020 T1 16,500,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
—R2020F3A24H 202014t B AMBEIF 105

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERE#HXSEEFRAA
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERIN - UAREBIIR)
22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22 LEREGRREIUROAERNRS
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (%)
(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) EEBRETS (E)

()  The terms and conditions of the grants are () BENERREEAT :

as follows: (Continued) (%)
Tranche Number of Contractual

Date of grant number options granted  Vesting period life of options
R A i EREBRERE HED BRENAOES
Options granted to directors:
BRTESMERE -
-on 28 May 2014 2014 T3 6,000,000 1 year after the date of grant 9.8 years
- R2014F5R28R 20145 £3#t R BSE1E 9.85F
- on 28 May 2014 2014 T4 6,000,000 2 years after the date of grant 9.8 years
—R2014%5A28H 2014FF48t Rt B #%2E 9.8%
-on 1 April 2016 2016 T4 600,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
—R2016F4A18 20165 £ 44t R BSR1E 10%
-on 1 April 2016 2016 T5 600,000 2 years after the date of grant 10 years
—R2016%4A1H 2016558 Rt A #%R2E 105
-on 1 April 2016 2016 T6 800,000 3 years after the date of grant 10 years
— 201654418 2016564 Bt A HR3E 105
-on 27 May 2016 2016 T7 2,400,000 1 year after the date of grant 9.8 years
—R2016%5A27H 2016FE7H# REAHRIE 9.8%
-on 27 May 2016 2016 T8 2,400,000 2 years after the date of grant 9.8 years
—R2016%5A27H 2016F5E8H Rt A HR2E 9.8%
-on 27 May 2016 2016 T9 3,200,000 3 years after the date of grant 9.8 years
—R2016%5A27H 2016FF9H R A HR3E 9.8%
-on 31 May 2019 2019 T4 5,250,000 11 months after the date of grant 9.6 years
—R2019%5A31H 2019FF48t REAHE1EA 96%
-on 31 May 2019 2019 T5 5,250,000 23 months after the date of grant 9.6 years
—R2019%5A31H 2019F 58 i A H& 2318 A 9.6%
-on 31 May 2019 2019 T6 7,000,000 35 months after the date of grant 9.6 years
—R2019%5A31H 20195564 i A #2358 A 9.6%
-on 18 June 2020 2020 T2 1,688,000 9.5 months after the date of grant 10 years
—R2020%6A18H 2020 E 21 i A #9518 A 105
Total share options granted
REBRELH 165,188,000

The Company did not grant any options
under the Share Option Scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

REE2021F12A31H1E
FE - AQRWEBIEER
R EIIR ] B AR A -
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ARE MR M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22 LRELEIURGHBERNRZS
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (&)
(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) EEBRESTE (&)
(ii) The number and weighted average exercise (i) FERSEEE E h NS 1T(E
prices of share options are as follows: BWR :
2021 2020
20216 20204

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise  Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options

mEFS AT
TfEE  BREHE IEE BREZE
HKD ’000 HKD ‘000
BT T4 BT Fin
Outstanding at 1 January 1B B MARTTE 4.55 106,592 4.73 109,484
Granted during the year FAKHT - - 3.29 18,188
Exercised during the year FRTEE 3.84 (4,593) - -
Forfeited during the year FRRYK 4.16 (18,522) 4.37 (21,080)
Outstanding at 31 December R 12 A31 AWK 4.68 83,477 4.55 106,592
Exercisable at 31 December W12 A31HAI{T(E 4.75 63,690 5.06 50,762

The weighted average share price at
the date of exercise for share options
exercised during the year was HKD5.34
(2020: Nil).

The share options outstanding at 31
December 2021 had an exercise price of
HKD6.64, HKD4.01,HKD4.476,HKD3.28 or
HKD3.44 (31 December 2020: HKDG6.64,
HKD4.01,HKD4.476,HKD3.28 or HKD3.44)
and a weighted-average remaining
contractual life of 5.3 years (31 December
2020: 6.5 years).

The Group recognised share option
expenses of RMB20,003,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB12,165,000).

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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FRABITENBERERITE
B E R N R (B A5.34
BT (2020 : &) -

R2021F12H318 © #k
TEBRETFEEARG6.64
HBIT ~ 4.0187C » 4.47678
JC > 3.28 703 3.44 7 T
(202012 A31H : 6.64
BIL - 4.0187C ~ 4.476
BT 3.288L83.44%8
TL)  MEFEHFIRE L F
HiA5.34F (2020412 A 31
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B AEEERERESER
AE#20,003,0007T (2020
F: AR¥12,165,0007T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(iii)

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in return
for the share options granted is measured
by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimated fair value
of the share options granted is measured
The
contractual life of the share options is used

based on a binomial tree model.

as an input into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the
binomial tree model.

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

Share options were granted under a
service condition. This condition has not
been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22
(%)

(a)
(iii)

(BB -

AAREIITR)

UREGEXURGBEFRHIXE

ESERESE (F)

BRREARBERRR

PR PASR BRIR H B S 4 P 2 AR
BHARBELI2ERELE
iz ARERE - RHEE
BHENE ARBEIERS
XitERET 8 - BRES K
FHELBRREDBELS R
BWABIE - HERITTERTEH]
B AL = XA EAR o

8 HA R 08 DA JE SRR R (AR 1%
8 FEUHE B0 D4 15 TR 5 5 1
AE)REE YREAR
FESHER BRI E
EEREETARE - &
HI B AE L B R EE -
TBRABERRNES T
NABEZEFELEERE

o

I WE

PR HE P 7 AR A MR 1 T IR
oo b R I R EH AP ERR
BRE LB BN EE
B o B2 LY\
MG RIT
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IIV—\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ‘%El}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

AAREIITR)

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR

Employees’ Share Award Scheme

In 2014, the board of directors of the Company
approved the adoption of a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) under which
shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”)
may be awarded to selected employees (the
“‘Selected Employees”) in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Award Scheme and the
nominal value of the shares awarded under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time.

Unless terminated earlier by the board of
directors in accordance with the rules of the
Share Award Scheme, the Share Award Scheme
will be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
starting on 21 July 2014. A trust has been set up
and fully funded by the Company for the purpose
of purchasing, administrating and holding the
Company’s shares for the Share Award Scheme.

22 LBRELEYLUROR/RERNRS
(%)

(b) EERGRBES

R2014%F + NAREE BHER
m—IERR 0 BB ET S ([ B {2 S st
) - B RER D BN SR
REXTHEEE ([HEEE] K
ANRIMEG ([RERG]) - BRH 5
EhET 2B T REM AR EE TS
BN R NEEE BITIRAAI10% °

BRIEEE E RRIB ARG BB &K
HAMR BRI - RV EEFTEINE
MERHE B 20144F7 A 21 Bt A
106 - ARAIEKY —BEFEIIR

RE2HES  EERERBE R
A AR R BE 8 T HAX
{/\ ®

(i) Details of the treasury shares held under (i) BRI (0 BB &5 A A =
the Share Award Scheme are set out FARFFIBEMN T
below:
Average
purchase No. of
price shares held Value of shares
THREE BERHEE RHEE
HKD ‘000 HKD'000 RMB’000
o TR THT ARETT
At 31 December 2020 R2020%F 12 A31H 5.68 19,698 111,854 88,642
Shares vested during FREBBHORNO (i)
the year(ii 5.68 (1,215) (6,901) (5,469)
At 31 December 2021 #2021612 8318 5.68 18483 104,953 83,173

YNC]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Employees’ Share Award Scheme (Continued)

At 31 December 2021,18,583,000 ordinary shares
were held by the trustee under the Share Award
Scheme (2020: 19,798,000 shares), among
which 100,000 shares in respect of the Awarded
Shares vested were held on behalf of certain
employees (2020: 100,000 shares), while the
remaining 18,483,000 shares were held on behalf
of the Company (31 December 2020: 19,698,000
shares).

fRE SRR M EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEERIN - UAREBIIR)
22 LURELEYURGHREENRS
(%)
(b) EERGRE:E(Z)

R2021F12A31H » FEARIE
B B2 B 5T 213545 18,583,000 %
A% (20204 : 19,798,0000%
Bm) EREBBHREEKRG M
100,000k AR EKE TIERESR
A (20204 : 100,000 H28%) - M
H#418,483,000% 8% 15 (20204 12
A31H : 19,698,000 %5 ) Allft
RARBEEA -

(i)  Movement in the number of shares (i) RERHEE REAR T
awarded and their related average fair NREREEHAT -
value is as follows:
2021
202145
Average Number of
fair value the Awarded
per share Shares
BRFHARE REBRGEE
HKD ‘000
BIT T A%
Unvested at 31 December 2020 #20204F 12 A 31 B &)
5= -
Granted on 28 October 2021 R2021F10 H28HE
B 3.41 1,215
Vested during the year FHNEFB 3.41 (1,215)

Unvested at 31 December 2021

MN2021FE12 A31 B4

¥ _

During the year ended 31 December
2021, a total of 1,215,000 shares (2020:
Nil) at a fair value of HKD3.41(equivalent
to approximately RMB2.80) per share
were granted to Mr. An Yubao (resigned,
effective from 9 July 2021) and Ms.
Li Qian. Share award expense of
RMB3,408,000 (2020: Nil) has been
recognised in the consolidated income
statement as employee benefit expenses
(note 6). In 2021, the 1,215,000 shares
were vested with average purchasing fair
value of RMB5,469,000.

HZE=2021F12A318 1t
FE LTHEBELE (B
£ B2021F7H898#
EW) RRELTEERE
1,215,000 i1 (2020
F &) BRAAEAR
SABTL(HERDAR
#2.8070) ° Rty REIF X
AR #3,408,0007T (2020
FE)EREARERNA
HRAEREEAMAS (K&
6) o 720214 1,215,000
BRHEESESB - FHBE
NhrEAEARES,469,000
=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 HEVBKRRRANFAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) HREMBMRRALEABIRE -
of financial position represents:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
At 1 January ®1A1H 71,108 69,461
Provision of PRC income tax FRFEIFTS TR
for the year 67,798 118,684
PRC dividend withholding tax FAFR B STENT
for the year 47,567 -
Over-provision for PRC income tax BEFEREFAEHERE
in respect of prior years BE (1,687) (1,719)
113,678 116,965
PRC income tax paid BT B AT IS A (134,683) (115,318)
PRC dividend withholding tax paid B B R B TR A (47,567) =
At 31 December Mm12H31H 2,536 71,108
REXNFEEBR AT

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERIN - UAREBIIR)
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 HBEUMBRRRANFAES (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ECRIAECEHEEERAE:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERE AR R R AR A R IER
recognised in the consolidated statement of BEE /(BF) WAKSH RFA
financial position and the movements during the BET -
year are as follows:
Withholding
tax on future Fair value
dividend adjustment
income from Intra group
from PRC Unused Provisions business unrealised
subsidiaries  tax losses# and accruals  acquisition profits Total
RETENE
Deferred tax assets/ RETHRENEENE AAXRKS BER  EHWEN SEM
(liabilities) arising from: BE/(8R): WENELR RBARBEE EHER  DMNEFE  AEBRER )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2020 Ro020%1A18 (15,208) 2,803 43,139 (73722) 638 (42,350)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (B &) /st AR (3,019) 1582 11,361 5,048 - 14972
At 31 December 2020 and W2020£12 4318 R
1 January 2021 202151418 (18,227) 4,385 54,500 (68,674) 638 (27,378)
Released upon distribution of RORREREE
dividends (note 5(a)) (B3E5(a)) 47,567 - - - - 47,567
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (B8 /st A (35,597) 6,343 (18,369) 4,990 - (42,633)
At 31 December 2021 a021%12A318 (6,257) 10,728 36,131 (63,684) 638 (22,444)
@ Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused i EERBEEDRASEEE T

tax losses of certain PRC subsidiaries of the

Group. They are now progressing to their

normal operation stage and are deriving profits.

Accordingly, it is considered probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available in the

future to utilize their unused tax losses before

they expire. As at 31 December 2021, tax
losses of RMB62,284,000 will expire from 2022

to 2026.

RR B B /BB /A B ) oK B FR i 7S A
BmMER - ZE QA HAER
BEREIREERRIELS
wA Bt AR AR AR RA
BEEH T A FE R B E T LAE
MR EAREZRDABS
518 - R2021F12A318 «
THE 18 AR 62,284,000 1%
2022 F E 2026 F F Hf -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV—\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ‘%El}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 HFEUBKRRRAWFAEHR (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement (c) #HFEVBEMRRRWEIR

of financial position

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE B SRR R R AR

in the consolidated statement of TR A EFE

financial position 46,859 58,885
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 4R A BIFEAR N R FER IR

in the consolidated statement of TR A R

financial position (69,303) (86,263)

(22,444) (27,378)
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: (d) KREIWELHEAS:
As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax R2021F12A31H » WARER
liabilities of RMB69,499,000 (31 December HBEAR R REMNARE
2020: RMB72,817,000) in respect of temporary 1,389,986,0007L (20204 : A
differences relating to the undistributed profits R #1,456,340,0007T) BREARE
of subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,389,986,000 RUEZENEEHBEABARE
(2020: RMB1,456,340,000) were not recognised 69,499,0007T (2020412 A 31
as the Company controls the dividend policy of H: AR¥72,817,00070) © JhH
these subsidiaries and it has been determined RARBIESZEHBRATHRE
that those profits will not be distributed in the B - WERERAIFERBARRD
foreseeable future. IREZEHT
24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BEX - HERRE
(a) Movement in components of equity (a) REZARBIHNES

The reconciliation between the opening and REEGE =S EAR MO R
closing balances of each component of the HAT)) Be HA R 4 84 2 ] &) 5 BR & PO o
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the ERERBERK o ARRERAETR
consolidated statement of changes in equity. HERE DN ENRFRERNES)
Details of the changes in the Company’s FFIEEN T :

individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EE#AZSEEARAF]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE IR R B EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEERIN - UAREBIIR)
CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BX  RERRE (E)
(Continued)
(a) Movement in components of equity (Continued) (a) HERAKBINEH (F)
Treasury
shares held
under Other
Share Share Other Capital ~ Share Award treasury ~ Retained
capital premium reserves reserve Scheme shares profits Total
RERfER
BE L)
& Ry AR -l ERk  HbERR REER it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  AREfT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AREfR
note 24(d)i)  note 24(g)(i) note 24(e)(v) note 24(e)(ii)  note22(b)  note 24(b)
Weoda)  Waoue)) W) WEoe)in)  Woan)  KE()
At 1 January 2020 H2020F1 718 68,033 145,402 143,091 145,257 (88,642) - 210,070 683,211
Dividends approved and paid HERERORS - - - - - - (192299 (1322%9)
Purchase of own shares EnEERSRN
during the year - - - - - (152,745) - (152,745)
Cancellation of shares EmERG
during the year (3609)  (145402) - - - 162,745 - 3734
Recogniton of Employees Share B2 ERE
Option Scheme - - - 12,165 - - - 12,165
Total comprehensive income EmEENGLE
for the year - - - - - - 255877 285,877
At 31 December 2020 H2020E 124318 64,424 - 143,091 167,422 (88.642) - 393,648 669,943
At 1 January 2021 RONE1518 64424 - 143,091 157422 (88,642) - 303648 669,943
Dividends approved and paid HERERORS - - - - - - (200824 (200824)
Purchase of own shares EnEERSRN
during the year - - - - - (30,151) - (30,151)
Recogniton of Employees Share B2 ER
Option Scheme - - - 20,003 - - - 20,003
Shares issued dug 1o exercise REREETENL
of Share Option Scheme ikt 376 19,789 - (5,598) = = = 14567
Shares granted under the RERN B AR
Share Award Scheme ki - - - 3,408 - - - 3,408
Shares vested under the BERNEEHEEN
Share Award Scheme R - - - (5.469) 5,469 - - -
Total comprehensive income Enmhaes
for the year - - - - - - 603,376 603,376
At 31 December 2021 B E12R318 64,800 19,789 143,091 169,766 (83,173) (30,151) 796,200 1,080,322

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REEHEBEI - AARKIIR)
24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EBEXR - RERRE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Purchase of own shares (b) BEEIRKK
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the HZE2021F12831HIEFE - &
Company repurchased 10,115,000 shares (2020: RNERBEABERZABERARE
45 907,000 shares) (the “Buy-back Shares”) of BEHBH10,115,000/% 8% (2020
the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong F 45,907,000 8% 15) ([ BB E B
Kong Limited as follows: @71) T
2020
20204
Number Highest Lowest
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate
Month/year repurchased per share per share price paid
B BREAM BRER 2
/R [ESnE 4= R=ER RIEER BIRERR
HKD HKD HKD’000
BT BT T
January 2020 20201 H 8,077,000 4.00 3.77 31,682
February 2020 20202 H 9,705,000 4.20 3.90 39,737
March 2020 202043 H 534,000 8.51 3.22 1,868
April 2020 20204 H 7,541,000 4.00 3.48 28,300
May 2020 20205 H 4,082,000 4.00 3.87 16,260
August 2020 20208 H 1,542,000 3.25 3.19 4,974
September 2020 202069 H 6,885,000 3.5 3.22 23,456
October 2020 202010 A 5,201,000 3.40 3.06 17,042
November 2020 2020411 A 2,340,000 3.25 2.97 7,191
170,510
2021
20215
Number Highest Lowest
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate
Month/year repurchased per share per share price paid
£ B8 sREN BREN g1
®/A8 KRB B BSER BIEE®S ERAEE
HKD HKD HKD’ 000
BT BT THERT
November 2021 202111 H 5,312,000 3.65 3.40 18,644
December 2021 2021%F 12 A 4,803,000 4.19 3.61 18,192
36,836

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FRE#FSEERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\éﬁji%ﬁ% MTJ‘%E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BX  RERRE (E)

(Continued)

(b)  Purchase of own shares (Continued) (b) BEBSRH(E)
The repurchase was governed by section 257 of EEDXEERAENFE257 1K
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. During ME - HZE2021F12H31H
the year ended 31 December 2021, the total EFE  BEROMCDHENRLE
amount paid on the repurchased shares of 36,836,000 L (MAERH A
HKD36,836,000 (equivalent to approximately R#30,151,0007t) (20204 :
RMB30,151,000) (2020: HKD170,510,000 170,510,000 7T * HERHAR
equivalent to approximately RMB152,745,000) #152,745,0007T) T LAIR B & Fl|
was paid wholly out of retained profits. ZFERAT o
The Buy-back Shares during 2021 were not HZE2021F12H318 ' 20215 %
cancelled up to 31 December 2021, which were BB O IR R - B8 2022
subsequently cancelled in January 2022. F1 A o

(c) Dividends (c) RE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity (i) FERE LR A m KRR

shareholders of the Company £

attributable to the year

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTTT

Interim dividend declared and paid of 2 B & & s {5 &) 1 Hi A%

HKDO0.10 per ordinary share (2020: B &ML RAX0.10748

HKDO0.08) 7T (20204 : 0.087%8
7T) 66,874 58,458

Final dividend proposed after the endfF K14 & MR BAA% &

of the year of HKDO0.20 per ordinary &A% E@EA%0.20/5 7T

share (2020: HKDO0.20) (20204 : 0.20/87T) 128,691 133,950

195,565 192,408

Final dividend proposed after the end of RER  ERBREEHNRAE
the year have not been recognised as R BN REREAE -

liabilities as at the end of the year.
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IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ‘%El}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EBX RERRE (&)
(continued)
(c) Dividends (Continued) (c) BE(#E)
(i)  Dividends payable to equity (i) EFBRL—HBEEERE
shareholders of the Company FEHERITRATHI BN L
attributable to the previous financial A KR AR 2

year, approved and paid during the year

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000

AR¥TR ARBTTT

Final dividend in respect of the B E R
previous financial year, approved & - ERFEREL &
and paid during the year of RE N ERE B
HKDO.20 per ordinary share (2020: 0.207 7T (20204 :
HKDO0.10) 0.10/87T) 133,950 74,689
Less: Dividends for Buy-back Shares J& : L8 @& 1D X &9
[ ds) - (848)

133,950 73,841

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERE#HXSEEFRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(d) Share capital

()

(ii)

(BB -

AAREIITR)

24 BX- - FERRE (&)

(d KX
Issued share capital (i) EBTRE
Nominal Nominal
value of value of
Number of fully paid fully paid
shares shares shares
BRAHE HERGEE HERHEHE
‘000 HKD'000 RMB'000
Fik TET ARBTT
Ordinary shares, issued and fully BZ/7 kAR L@ :
paid:
As at 1 January 2020 R2020%F1A1H 865,532 86,553 68,033
Cancellation of shares during the &R E A% (FiisE
year (note 24(b)) 24(b)) (45,907) (4,591) (3,609)
As at 31 December 2020 and 20205128318 K
1 January 2021 2021F1A1H 819,625 81,962 64,424
Shares issued due to exercise of FIEREETEME
Share Option Scheme (ii) 1THYBR A3 (i) 4,593 460 376
As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12831H 824,218 82,422 64,800
The ordinary shares of the Company have ARArETEEEmEATIR
a par value of HKDO.10 per share. 0.10%7T °
Shares issued due to exercise of Share (i) FHEBREETEMZETH
Option Scheme Y. aria

During 2021, share options were exercised
to subscribe for a total of 4,593,000 (2020:
Nil) ordinary shares in the Company
at a consideration of HKD17,631,000
(equivalent to approximately
RMB14,567,000), of which RMB376,000
and RMB14,191,000 were credited to
share capital and the share premium
account respectively. RMB5,598,000 was
transferred from the capital reserve to the
share premium account in accordance
with the Company’s accounting policy set
out in note 1(q)(ii).

R20214F - BIREETE
LAREES £ 4,593,000 0%
(20204 : &) AR A&
g - K{EA17,631,000
BT (HERHARE
14,567,0007T) + HF A
R#376,0007T & AR
14,191,000t 5 BlIET A B
RAERG&®ER o B&EH
FE1(q)(IFTE AR R 5T
B - AR#5,598,0007C
HERNHEEREERDEE
E-Eo
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

24

AAREIITR)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the
difference between the par value of the
shares of the Company and proceeds
received from the issuance of the shares
of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised)
of the Cayman lIslands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial information
of operations with functional currency
other than RMB.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents (a) the
portion of the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company that has
been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in note 1(q)(ii); and (b)
the difference between the consideration
paid by NCI and the proportion of the
carrying amount of the net assets/liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the
ownership interest being disposed of.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR

n

24

a

]

X RERKRE (F)

(e)

RENHEERAR

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BRGwE

IR0 i@ B A A Al E A
B [ 377 AR B B 1 Uk ER Y
FifS kI8 2 ER) =58 -

RIEMAEHERRE (KE
71) 0 AR E D E RS
MESAHOIKTARAR
R IEZEZZEDRREE
Bi&  ARBHEBENE
BERARERBRES I
HERS

ELFE

EXREERREAARE
LASMNEO T B B 6 51 (B ) 2675
B B 75 B R BT EE R RO P S
MEZEEE -

B HE

BANEETE (a)RRFE1(q)
(i) Bt LA R 7 7% EE B8 6 1< SR AT
Bz st IE - TR
NAEEHNRITEERED
BERHR L BHRRE
7 ¢ R (b)HIEZEARIE &R P
HREEMTHEMAEER
LB ARFEE BF&
REE D 2 =58 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(e) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

Other reserves

The other reserves of the Group represent
the difference between (a) the nominal
value of share capital of Guangzhou
Consun; and (b) the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company in
exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group completed on 24 December 2012.

The other reserves of the Company
represent the difference between (a) the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company in
exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group on 24 December 2012.

The other reserves of the Company are
distributable. The dividend appropriation
made through other reserves in the
Company’s financial statements is
recorded as through retained earnings in
the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

24

(BB -

AAREIITR)

'R RERKRE (F)

(e) HEMMERARE

(iv)

Rt

AEEREMEESE T
mEZHERZERE : (a)BEM
BREEMRAEE : R(b)A
ANEIRIFER20126F 12 A 24
HER AN S B EH T
RERBHRHEE -

AARREMmEEEET
HIMEZHEHZERE : (a)FT
WHEHRBARMEREEE
FE R(b)ARBRER
2012F 12 A24B AL E
EAEMETRIERBRARG
B °

ARRMEAMEBSAHED
& ° AR BB 15 R &Y
HoAh 5 8 1E H BV ARLB 0 IR AT
AREBERE P ERR AR
B A -
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ARE MR M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

24

AAREIITR)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(e)

()

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v)

PRC statutory reserves

Pursuant to the articles of association
of the Group’'s PRC subsidiaries now
comprising the Group, appropriations to
the PRC statutory reserves were made
at a certain percentage of profit after
taxation determined in accordance with
the accounting rules and regulations
of the PRC, until the PRC statutory
reserves was equal to 50% of the entity’'s
registered capital. The percentage for this
appropriation was decided by the directors
of the respective subsidiaries. This
reserve fund can be utilised in setting off
accumulated losses or increasing capital
of the subsidiaries and is non-distributable
other than in liquidation.

During 2021,
Horgos Consun and Yulin Pharmaceutical
appropriated 10% of its net profit to
the PRC statutory reserves. The PRC
statutory reserves balances of Inner
Mongolia Consun had reached 50% of
their registered capital, and no further

Guangzhou Consun,

appropriation was made for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Other PRC
subsidiaries of the Group had made losses
during 2021 or had accumulated losses,
no appropriation was made accordingly.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount

of distributable reserves of the Company,

calculated in accordance with the Companies

Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
RMB1,015,522,000 (2020: RMB605,519,000).

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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a

]

X RERKRE (F)

(e)

()

RENEERAZR (&)
(v) HEEERE

REAKBERBET ST E
M AR AZERAR
AEBCRBRHESRR
ROR S TE B BR B 18 )48 K1) B
REB DR BUAERE
LB BEERBDEER
BHEREERFMELRD
50% ° % H) B 7 L A AE
BB ARNESRETE ° %
EES AREHENEAR
MRFHEEHIEE - A
AR DK GERERIN) °

MR20214F - BMEE - &
RMEHRE R EMBEEEH
B 10% D B2 BEDE
EfEE  AEEHERENTE
ETERELEHEERESE
MEARN50% » BMmRE
E2021F12A31HILFE
WRAVE L E— PR - A&
EmE M ENBRRR
2021 FER1S BB REHE
B A EIE LK

A 4 0 K 1k

R2021F 128318 » KR ARIE
MEHSRARATTENH#Ho IR
FEREAARYK1,015,522,000
70 (20204 : AR%¥605,519,000

) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(9)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at
a reasonable cost.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.
For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined
as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
loans and borrowings) plus unaccrued proposed
dividends, less cash and cash equivalents and
deposits with banks with original maturity date
over three months. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity.

During 2021, the Group’s strategy, which
was unchanged from 2020, was to maintain
the debt-to-equity ratio at a level considered
reasonable by the Group’s management from
time to time with reference to the prevailing
market conditions. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to equity shareholders, issue new
shares or raise new debt financing.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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e TR R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EBX RERRE (&)
(continued)
(g) Capital management (Continued) (9) EXEE(E)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group presented R2021F12A31H » XEEZ7
adjusted net asset, thus net debt-to-capital ratio THRAREETE ARNTESE
was not calculated. The Group's adjusted net SFEMEE AR R - REE K 2021
asset at 31 December 2021 was as follows: F12H 1 HWEHAEREEFEN
T
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
HtaE ARBT R ARBTIT
Current liabilities: mENBE :
- Loans and borrowings — B RER 79 599,302 549,414
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 20 3,124 =
Non-current liabilities: ERBEE :
~ Lease liabilities —HE8E 20 8,547 =
Add: Proposed dividends n - HBRAR S 24(c) 128,691 133,950
Less: Cash and cash equivalents H RekBeEE
BH 17 (2,196,323) (1,940,273)
Deposits with banks with REEEBIE=
original maturity date over & A BiR1T1F
three months K (230,000) =
Adjusted net asset KRR EEFE 1,686,659 1,256,909

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements, except that banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries are subject
to the fulfilment of covenants relating to the
subsidiaries’ balance sheet ratios (note 19).
The Group will actively and regularly monitor its
compliance to such covenants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s

business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the

financial risk management policies and practices used

by the Group to manage these risks are described

below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents and bills
receivable is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions, for which
the Group considers to represent low credit risk.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk
management policy under which individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-90
days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

fRE SRR M EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

25

AAREIITR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk in industries or countries in which the
customers operate. Significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers.
At the end of the reporting period, 28% (2020:
24%) and 70% (2020: 62%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on ageing status is not further
distinguished between the Group's different
customer bases.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The following tables provide information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade receivables:

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

BREBEEREMIANAAE
(%)

(a) FERRGE)
ESEWNE (&)

TREH#RABAKEEERBRIAK
BHRMFENEREEBENE

2021
20214
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

FRHBAR SRE4E BERE
%  RMB’000  RMB’000
% AR®BTRT AR®TR

Current BN ER 1.00% 158,711 (1,587)
1 - 90 days past due #HI1 =90 H 2.00% 9,346 (187)
91 — 180 days past due #HI91Z=180H 4.50% 24,093 (1,083)
181 — 365 days past due w181 %365 H 10.00% 27,516 (2,749)
1 — 2 years past due BH1 =24 48.00% 988 (474)
2 — 3 years past due BH2 = 34F 90.00% 81,907 (73,891)
More than 3 years past due BHASF LA = 100.00% 70 (70)

302,631 (80,041)
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e TR R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

25

BREREEREMIANAARE

(&)
(a) f=ERRKE)
BSEWKE (&)
2020
20204
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

EHIEAR R FRmARE ERRE

% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AREBTT ARETRT

Current Bl HA

1 - 90 days past due #HI1 =90 H

91 — 180 days past due #HI91 =180 H
181 — 365 days past due w181 %365 H
1 — 2 years past due BH1 =24

2 — 3 years past due BHA2 =34
More than 3 years past due BHASF LA =

1.00% 320,056 (3,198)
2.00% 6,022 (120)
4.50% 7,414 (321)
10.00% 4,203 (419)
48.00% 187,682 (90,087)
75.00% 18,522 (13,891)
100.00% 736 (736)

544,635 (108,772)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 BEERREERESHIENARE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%)
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) FEER(E)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESERNIE (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in FANE S RWFIBENEERERE
respect of trade receivables during the year is as ZEmr :
follows:
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETTT

Balance at 1 January R1 B 1B e 4R 108,772 80,533

(Reversals)/recognition of impairment (@), / #R R EEE

loss (18,043) 29,495
Amounts written off WiHR 25 (10,688) (1,256)
Balance at 31 December W12 A31 Bay 4R 80,041 108,772
The decrease in the gross carrying amounts CEHBIE1IENE S EWHIEER
of trade receivables past due over 1 year HABRDERESERERDAR
contributed to the decrease of loss allowance #530,279,0007T (20204 : A
of RMB30,279,000 (2020: increase of R#55,818,0007T) °

RMB55,818,000).
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

25

AAREIITR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements, and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’'s financial liabilities
(exclude contract liabilities), which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:

25

(%)

(b)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

BREBEEREMIANAAE

REBESRER(F)

TRIBAEENSREARE (AD
BERIN) RBERRORERS L
B IREEORTEEASR (2
BIREHM RS (NRFER) RRE
HIR e IRAT M R G E @R BT 3R
RAGEEBEXNORFEHZS

2021
20215
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHNRFRRER

More than  More than

Within 1 year but 2 years but
1yearor less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount

15/ BE1F #BiB2F
RERER  EBIR2E EORSE @t REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TR ARWTR ARBTRT AR®TR
Loans and borrowings BERRER 604,039 - - 604,039 599,302
Lease liabilities HEAR 3,272 3,272 6,544 13,088 11,671

Trade and other payables B REMER

] 731,235 - - 731,235 731,235
1,338,546 3,272 6,544 1,348,362 1,342,208
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ARE MR M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 HERREEREHMITANAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%)
(Continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) HREBELRAR(Z)
2020
20204
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRTRRAS R
More than
Within 1 year but
1 year or less than Carrying
on demand 2 years Total amount
HiE1F
1EASHRER BAR2F mEt AREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
Loans and borrowings ERRER 554,219 - 554,219 549,414
Trade and other payables &5 & = fEt
R 695,855 - 695,855 695,855
1,250,074 - 1,250,074 1,245,269

(c)

As shown in the above analysis, bank loans and
related interest expense of the Group amounting
to RMB604,039,000 were due to be repaid during
2022. The short-term liquidity risk inherent in this
contractual maturity date was not significantly
changed after the reporting period.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk
arises primarily from borrowings from banks.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group's interest rate risk profile as monitored
by management is set out in (i) below.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk profile

The following table, details the interest rate
risk profile of the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowings at the end of the reporting

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

BREBEEREMIANAAE

(%)

(c) FEmk (&)

(0

TRANAKENREHR
sHRERNMXRBBIR

period.
Notional amount
EREHE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Amount Amount
&5 &5
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEMER
Lease liabilities HEBE 11,671 -
Bank loans RITER 321,318 296,934
332,989 296,934
Variable rate borrowings: FEER
Bank loans RITEK 277,984 252,480
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ARE MR M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

25

AAREIITR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variable held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group's
profit after taxation and retained profits
by approximately RMB2,780,000 (2020:
RMB2,525,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group's
profit after tax and retained profits that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(d)

Currency risk

As the Group's principal activities are carried out
in the PRC, the Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must
take place through the People’s Bank of China
or other institutions authorised to buy and sell
foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted
for the foreign exchange transactions are the
rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank
of China that are determined largely by supply
and demand.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
give rise to cash balances that are denominated
in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than
the functional currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise
to this risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
and the Company’s exposure at the end
of reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in
RMB translated using the spot rate at the
period end date. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group's
presentation currency are excluded.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)
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IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ‘%El}ﬁ-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 BBEREERSMIANAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%)
(Continued)
(d)  Currency risk (Continued) () EREREGE)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) EHYEEREE (&)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Renminbi)

HVER R
(AARBIITR)

2021 2020

2021 2020F
Hong Kong United States Hong Kong  United States
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
BT n BT ET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRL  AR®TR ARETE  ARETR

Cash and cash equivalents R&KBEESEER 228,263 1,102 85,033 3,280
Loans and borrowings ERRER (469,302) - (449,414) =
Exposure arising from ERREERARE

recognised assets and E:0)EN

liabilities (241,039) 1,102 (364,381) 3,280
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEIAI - LAARKETIR)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 BERBEERESMIANAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%)
(Continued)
(d)  Currency risk (Continued) (d) EREERE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SREDH
The following table indicates the TERBRMARERREH
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit RBEXRRBRAFERERR
after tax and retained profits that would ZBAEME - WKRZRAA
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the HiEREH MR TE - K
Group has significant exposure at the end B RERTR 12 )0 ) R AR E i
of the reporting period had changed at 7] 88 H 3R 2 BB &£ ) o
that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.
2021 2020
20214 2020
Effect on Effect on
Increase profit after Increase profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rate profit rate profit
HERHRRF HRR RN
RRERR BARE &
EXLH i0p2 BEx L7t M2
Hong Kong Dollars BT 5% (12,052) 5% (18,219)
United States Dollars =TT 5% 55 5% 164

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of
the instantaneous effects on each of the
Group entities’ profit after tax measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.

ER2FNWDMERBE A
SEEENSENERS
STERBRBRIEF A A 5t A
B2 W25 8 Nikk
THRANEXRBRE/SAR
M o
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IIV-\éE\ji%ﬁ%Mq-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

25

AAREIITR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(d)
(i)

(e)
(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period,
including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than
the functional currencies of the lender
or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency.

Fair value measurement

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

At 31 December 2020 and 2021, the
Company has no significant financial
instruments accounted for using fair value
model.

Fair value of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair value as at 31 December
2020 and 2021.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 26 EAEE
Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2021812 A31 B RELRE M BHE
2021 not provided for in the consolidated financial BENRBITEARRENT

statements were as follows:

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARET T

Contracted for EEEY 146,010 130,899
Authorised but not contracted for EHLEERFTA 336,485 342,971
Total WBE 482,495 473,870

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 ERBEBAERS

Key management personnel remuneration FTEEEAESME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBETZEEABNEE - BERAARQ
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s AIEE X THFRIA (ARG FT#E 58 ) LA K
directors as disclosed in note 6 and certain of the MET&= 5 EE Z(TRFRIE (M7 AT
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 7, is as WE) &AM :
follows:
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits Fre kEMmEF 39,176 31,300
Retirement scheme of defined contribution 55t FGR K2 134 55
Equity settled share-based transactions LARRRE A Bt DARR 1 A E i

ope7) 6,210 1,534

45,520 32,889

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note BN ATE IR A (RHEE4(b)) o
4(b)).
None of the above related party transactions falls under e s IR B EMRAE14AE
the definition of connected transaction or continuing FIATHBEERZNFEBRERS -

connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FERE#Z

AAREIITR)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical

accounting judgments in applying the Group’s

accounting policies are described below.

(a)

(b)

Impairments for intangible assets — trademark

In considering the impairment losses that may
be required for intangible assets — trademark,
recoverable amount of these assets needs
to be determined. The Group assesses the
recoverable amount of the Yulin CGU using the
value in use method by preparing a discounted
cash flow forecast derived from the most recent
financial forecast approved by the management
covering a five-year period. The assessment
of the recoverable amounts of the Yulin CGU
involves significant management estimation and
judgement, in particular in determining the key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecast,
which include future revenue, future cost of sales,
other operating expenses, and the discount rate
applied.

Loss allowances for trade receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for
trade receivables by assessing the ECLs. This
requires the use of estimates and judgements.
ECLs are based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of reporting period. Where
the estimation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of trade receivables and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed. The Group keeps assessing
the expected credit loss of trade receivables
during their expected lives.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRESEHERIN - LARKETIR)
COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 29 AZEEHEHRRE
POSITION
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
it AREFT ARBFIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B A R IR E 13 342,444 342 444
Total non-current assets FEREBEELE 342,444 342,444
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E M EBGRIR 573,454 703,852
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 688,116 113,990
Total currentassets = ABEERE 1,261,570 817,842
Current liabilities REBEE
Loans and borrowings BERRAERK 19 469,302 449 414
Other payables H fth e~ 5RIE 54,390 40,929
Total current liabilites =~~~ #“BAfE##®E 0000000000 523,692 490,343
Netcurrentassets =~~~ *A®EEFE 737,878 327,499
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 1,080,322 669,943
Net assets EEFE 1,080,322 669,943
Capital and reserves EXREE 24(a)
Share capital f& s 64,800 64,424
Reserves f# 1,015,522 605,519
Total equity ERBE 1,080,322 669,943
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ARE MR M
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEIIR)

30 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(i) After the end of the reporting period, the
directors proposed a final dividend. Further
details are disclosed in note 24(c).

(i) After the end of the reporting period, the
Company repurchased 590,000 shares of its own
ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange
at a total consideration of approximately
HKD2,649,000 (approximately RMB2,168,000).
The Company cancelled 10,705,000 shares at 26
January 2022.

31 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and
a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2021 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

@ CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZEE£EEFR
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(i) RFEHRERE ESEZRTEAR
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24(c) °
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 31
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (Continued)

(B =HE R - UAREFITR)

HZE2021F12A831 L EEC EM
B REMRNIERT - FEARZEN
BUESE (E)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT5 B #s L&
RN E TR EX
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BRI BMEERNEIR BRITAR) - HE2AEZE1EM 20221 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before 1 January 2022
Intended Use
EEGTERIFE165E UBFTR) - WX - BERRE - BEAEF A PiFE 20221 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
BB G ERIFEITSE (BFTAR) - FEIMEEK — BITE KB 20221 A1H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
EBMERELERI2018F 2020 F A HFE BE 20221 A18
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
EEREAEIR BHE) - BESHEBRHLIRD 20231 A 1A
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of 1 January 2023
accounting policies
ERGTERE 1R RBEUBRELNELH B E2S (BETR) Bt HE HE 20231 H1H

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates

1 January 2023

BB G ERIFESSE (BFTAR) - @it lEat 2 /EHE 2023F1A18

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising 1 January 2023
from a single transaction

BRGERFE125 (BFTR) - HE—XZELBERBEBBELENE 20234 1A1H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

AEB L EFGEZFER RAEINRIK
FERPRBHEENTE - REBRAEE
) 48 o A R AR 7% S 18 BT MR 8 RIS K AT g
HEAMBHRRENEATE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hEMBRE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 20184F 20174
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETRT ARBTT AREBETT ARETT AR%Tx
Revenue WA 2,044,660  1,752830 1,728,256 1,843,973 1,660,230
Gross Profit EH 1,527,336 1,321,671 1,261,405 1,384,426 1,228,395
Profit before taxation i Bl A 695,861 583,736 133,663 616,699 544,982
Income tax FriE#t 108,744 101,993 70,541 119,208 123,162
Profit for the year FANm A 587,117 481,743 63,122 497,491 421,820
Profit for the year attributable AR AR RIE
to equity shareholders of 1BE R A
the Company 590,172 498,788 79,820 465,353 396,242
Earnings per share (expressed  SREF| (AFR
in RMB Yuan per share) ARETLIIR)
- basic 7N 0.74 0.61 0.09 0.54 0.46
- diluted -8 0.73 0.61 0.09 0.53 0.46
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,306,909 1,291,556 1298438 1,500,883 1,387,366
Current assets MEEE 3,055,829 2,658,697 2,409,648 2,396,155 2,184,651
Current liabilities mEAE 1,357,407 1,331,863 1,296,294 999,153 970,233
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 94,550 101,892 105,031 400,873 537,636
Net assets BEFE 2,910,781 2,516,498 2,306,761 2,497,012 2,064,148
Capital and reserves B E
Share Capital B 64,800 64,424 68,033 68,782 68,652
Reserves ffEfE 2,552,905 2,155,943 1,926,051 2,088,437 1,678,036
Total equity attributable to AR B RE
equity shareholders of IERERERE
the Company 2,617,705 2,220,367 1,994,084 2,157,219 1,746,688
Non-controlling interests FEE R 293,076 296,131 312,677 339,793 317,460
Total equity B 2,910,781 2,516,498 2,306,761 2,497,012 2,064,148

The summary above does not form part of the audited LA LRZE I T BAZER S B 75 33K 948 Ak 2B
consolidated financial statements. e
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- CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED
REsm U

Headquarters in the PRC A EI#4E6 :
71, Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section, Guangzhou Economic and Technological Development District, Guangzhou, PRC
HEIEMNEMNSBE RN BRRERBEAE 71 5%

Principal place of business in Hong Kong &E&EZ& ¥ 2
22nd Floor, World-Wide House, No.19 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
BREEHET 19 FRRRAE 2248

Liaison office in Hong Kong & BB EMAE :
Room 803, Wing On Plaza, 62 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
NBER DI E S 62 5K ZES 803 &

Tel E3F : (86) 20-82264529 Fax {85 : (86) 20-82261886
Website #3f : www.chinaconsun.com E-mail & F % : ir@chinaconsun.com
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